
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

There will be a Regular meeting of the City of Stoughton Utilities Committee on Monday, April 18, 2011 to be 

held at 5:00 p.m. in the Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room of the Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 

in the Stoughton Utilities Building, 600 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589.   

 

AGENDA: 

 

Call To Order. 

Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda.  (All items are considered routine and will be enacted upon 

by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Stoughton Utilities Committee 

member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the consent agenda and be considered on 

the regular agenda.)  (Action.) 

a) Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report.   

b) Draft Minutes of the March 14, 2011 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting.   

c) Stoughton Utilities February 2011 Financial Summary.   

d) Stoughton Utilities February 2011 Statistical Information.   

e) Stoughton Utilities Communications.   

f) Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar.   

g) Stoughton Utilities March 2011 Activities Report.   

 

BUSINESS: 

 

1. Status of the Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) to The Stoughton Common Council. 

(Discussion.) 

2. Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility Laboratory Quality Manual.  (Action.) 

3. Stoughton Utilities Emergency Action Plan.  (Action.)  

4. WPPI Energy (WPPI) Orientation Meeting.  (Discussion.)   

5. Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Meeting Agenda Item(s).  (Discussion.)   

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mayor Donna L. Olson,  

Stoughton Utilities Committee Chairperson 

April 12, 2011 

 

Notices Sent To: 

Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chair 

Alderperson Carl T. Chenoweth, P.E., Vice-Chair 

Alderperson Eric Hohol 

Alderperson Steve Tone 

Stoughton Utilities Committee Citizen Member David Erdman 

Stoughton Utilities Committee Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny 

Stoughton Utilities Committee Citizen Member Angie Halverson 

Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent Sean Grady 

Stoughton Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

cc: Stoughton Common Council Members 

 Stoughton Alderperson-Elect Larry Peterson 

 Stoughton Alderperson-Elect Tim Swadley 

 Stoughton Utilities and MEUW Southeastern Regional Safety Coordinator Christopher A. Belz 

 Stoughton Utilities Billing and Consumer Services Technician Erin N. Bothum 

 Stoughton City Media Services Director William H. Brehm 

 Stoughton City Attorney Matthew P. Dregne 

 Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian G. Erickson 

 Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor Brian R. Hoops 

Stoughton Deputy City Clerk and Confidential Secretary Maria P. (Pili) Hougan 

 Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager Kim M. Jennings, CPA 

 Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Operator and Laboratory Technician Phillip O. Linnerud 

 Stoughton City Clerk and Personnel Director Kelly S. Michaels 

 Stoughton Library Administrative Assistant Debbie Myren 

 Stoughton Utilities Water System Supervisor Roger M. Thorson 

Stoughton Utilities and WPPI Energy Services Representative Alicia VandenOever 

 Stoughton Utilities Electric Lead Line Worker Craig A. Wood 

Stoughton Leadership Team 

Stoughton Newspapers  

Wisconsin State Journal 

 

IMPORTANT:  FIVE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A QUORUM:  If a Stoughton Utilities Committee member 

encounters a situation that may affect your scheduled participation, please contact Robert Kardasz or Sean Grady at 

877-7423 or 877-7416 respectively prior to 6:00 p.m. or via e-mail at bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com. 

 

It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other committees of the Common Council of 

the City of Stoughton may be in attendance at the above-mentioned meeting to gather information.  No action will be 

taken by any such group(s) at the above-mentioned meeting other than the Stoughton Utilities Committee consisting 

of Mayor Donna Olson, Alderperson Carl Chenoweth, Alderperson Eric Hohol, Alderperson Steve Tone, Citizen 

Member David Erdman, Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, and Citizen Member Angie Halverson.     

 

Please note that items taken on the Consent Agenda will not be discussed.  Any individual Stoughton Utilities 

Committee member may request an item be removed from the consent. 

 

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 

aids and services.  For information or to request this service, please contact the Stoughton Utilities Director at (608) 

877-7423. 

 

An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Common Council. 

 

Current and past Stoughton Utilities Committee documents, including meeting notices, meeting packets, and 

meeting minutes, are available for public download at http://uc.stoughtonutilities.com. 

 

 

 

mailto:bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com




 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Chairperson And Vice-Chairperson. 


 


Subsection 2-527 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances requires that the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee choose a Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson at the first regularly scheduled 


meeting after the Stoughton Common Council Reorganization Meeting which was held on April 


19, 2011. 


 


Mayor Donna Olson has expressed an interest in being re-elected to the committee chairperson 


position.   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 
Date:  May 10, 2011 
 
To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 
 
From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
  Stoughton Utilities Director 
 
Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Agenda Items Requiring Post-Committee Action. 
 
At the April 18, 2011 Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, I was requested to prepare a list of agenda 
items requiring Post-Committee Action.  The following list is provided for Stoughton Utilities Committee 
discussion and possible action: 
 
POST COMMITTEE - COMMON COUNCIL ACTION 
 


 Approve land acquisitions and sales.  (This is a statutory requirement.) 


 Approve new debt actions.  (This requires a Common Council Resolution.) 


 Approve appropriate Wisconsin Administrative Codes by reference.  (This requires a Common 
Council Resolution for an Ordinance.) 


 Set Special assessments.  (This requires a Common Council Resolution.) 


 Approve the Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual Report.  (The Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources requires a Common Council Resolution.)    


 
UTILITIES COMMITTEE ACTION 
 


 Accept Annual Audit and Management Letter.  (The audit and letter are directed to the 
Committee for action.) 


 Approve Stoughton Utilities (SU) rates.  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes 
allow this.) 


 Approve tax role assessments.  (The Statutes allow this past practice.) 


 Govern all Stoughton SU efforts that are not the responsibility of the Common Council.  (As the 
sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow this past and expanded practice.) 


 Establish and monitor SU Goals.  (As the sole entity representing the customers, continue past 
practice.)  


 Approve Declaration(s) of Official Intent.  (Continue past practice.) 


 Select Committee Chairperson and Vice Chairperson.  (Permitted by Ordinance and past 
practice.) 


 Select Liaison and Alternate Liaison to the Common Council.  (Permitted by Ordinance and past 
practice.) 
 







 Designate monthly meeting dates and times.  (Permitted by Ordinance and past practice.) 


 Approve the SU Annual Budget.  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow 
this.) 


 Approve the SU Annual CIP.  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow this.) 


 Approve SU Position Descriptions.  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes 
allow this.) 


 Hire the Utilities Director and establish the compensation package.  (As the sole entity 
representing customers, the Statutes allow this.) 


 Conduct negotiations, authorize SU hirings, and establish the SU employee compensation 
package(s).  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow this.) 


 Initiate SU rate reviews.  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow this.) 


 Review SU Payments Due List.(As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow 
this.) 


 Declare Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends.  (Past practice.) 


 Approve SU Studies.  (Past practice.) 


 Approve SU policies.  (As the sole entity representing customers, the Statutes allow this past 
practice.) 


 Approve SU Shared Savings Program participants.  (As the sole entity representing customers, 
the Statutes allow this.) 


 Approve SU USDA Loan Program participants.  As the sole entity representing customers, the 
Statutes allow this.) 


 
cc: Sean O Grady 
 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Item(s). 


 


This item appears on all agendas of Committees of the City of Stoughton.   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Tour Of The Stoughton Utilities Administration 


Complex. 


 


A tour of the Stoughton Utilities Administration Complex is scheduled for immediately after the 


meeting.   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Liaison And Alternate Liaison To The Stoughton 


Common Council. 


 


Subsection 2-527 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances requires that the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee elect an Alderperson as a Liaison and Alternate Liaison to the Stoughton 


Common Council at the first regularly scheduled meeting after the Stoughton Common Council 


Reorganization Meeting which was held on April 19, 2011. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Liaison And Alternate Liaison To The Stoughton 


Common Council. 


 


Subsection 2-527 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances requires that the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee elect an Alderperson as a Liaison and Alternate Liaison to the Stoughton 


Common Council at the first regularly scheduled meeting after the Stoughton Common Council 


Reorganization Meeting which was held on April 19, 2011. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The 


Stoughton Common Council. 


 


An elected member of the Stoughton Utilities Committee is scheduled to provide a verbal report 


in lieu of a written report prepared for the meeting packet.   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Audit Report And Management Letter. 


 


The Stoughton Utilities Audit Reports and Management Letter will be presented at the May 16, 


2011 Stoughton Utilities Committee meeting.  Ms. Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, 


LLP is scheduled to present the information. Please review the attached information and contact 


us if you have any questions prior to the meeting.   


 


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee accept the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and 


Management Letter and recommend the acceptance of the audit report and the management letter 


to the Common Council on March 24, 2011.   


 


Encl. 


 


cc: John C. Andres, CPA, Partner – Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Jodi Dobson, CPA, Manager – Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 Brian G. Erickson - Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 Laurie Sullivan - City of Stoughton Finance Director 


 Roger M. Thorson - Stoughton Utilities Water System Supervisor 


 Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 







April 11, 2011 


To Stoughton Utilities Committee 
600 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


Dear Committee Members: 


Baker T illy Virchow Krallse, LLP 
Ten Terrace Ct. PO Box 7398 
M adison, WI 53707-7398 
tcl608 249 6622 
fax 608 249 8532 
bakert illy.col11 


We are presenting for your consideration our comments and recommendations that are intended to improve the 
system of internal control or promote other operating efficiencies. These matters came to our attention during 
our audit of the financial statements of Stoughton Utilities (utilities) for the year ended December 31 , 2010 which 
we reported upon on April 11, 2011. 


This letter, by its nature, focuses on improvements and does not comment on the many strong areas of the 
utilities' systems and procedures. The comments and suggestions in this letter are not intended to reflect in any 
way on the integrity or ability of the personnel responsible for the utilities' operations. They are made solely in the 
interest of establishing sound internal control practices and improving the utilities' operations. 


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 


The electric utility's operating income decreased in 2010 to $798,000 compared to $867,000 in 2009. Electric 
sales, kWh sold, were up by about 7% in 2010. In addition, both expenses and revenues increased as a result of 
higher purchased power costs. The primary reason for the decrease in the operating income was an increase in 
depreciation expense resulting from ongoing additions and replacements of equipment and infrastructure. 


The electric utility's rate of return was 4.8% in 2010 compared to a rate of return of 5.6% in 2009. Electric rates 
were last changed in January 2007. Management intends to continue to monitor earnings, reserves, and capital 
plans and has completed a rate application with new rates effective in January 2011 . 


WATER UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 


The water utility's operating income increased in 2010 to $506,000 compared to $291,000 in 2009. Revenues 
were up as the result of a 6% increase in the volume sold, primarily to industrial customers, as well as the 
implementation of a 14% rate increase effective October 1, 2010. 


The water utility's rate of return was 5.2% in 2010 compared to an authorized rate of return of 6.50%. 
Management will need to monitor results in 2011 to see if the anticipated return is achieved once the rates are in 
effect for a full year. 


WASTEWATER UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 


The wastewater utility's operating income decreased in 2010 to $519,000 compared to $642,000 in 2009. 
Revenues decreased $128,000 due to 9% less billed volume. Operating expenses decreased $5,000. Sewer 
rates have not changed since 2007. We understand that the sufficiency of revenues is reviewed as part of the 
annual budget process, but given the usage patterns that could have changed in the last five years we 
recommend management complete a detailed sewer rate review in the near future. 


Managements'Response: Management will continue to monitor earnings, cash flow, debt coverage, and 
capital improvement plans to anticipate need for electric, water, and wastewater retail rate changes. A 
comprehensive in-house sewer rate review is planned for 2011 . 
~ anlndcpenden!mer.ibeIO' 


BAKER TILLY 
I N TE RN ATION A L An AfHrmativc Action Equal 0ppol'cun ity Employer 







To the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


April 11 , 2011 
Page 2 


CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS 


ACCOUNTABILITY FOR MATERIALS INVENTORY 


As part of the annual audit process we complete a physical inspection of a sample of the materials and supplies 
inventory items. By verifying a sample of the items on the inventory report to the physical items on hand we can 
gain assurance that the inventory systems and process are operating correctly. During the 2010 physical 
inventory count we noted small variances between the physical count list and the financial records. Although the 
amount that was unaccounted for was insignificant it creates a concern over other variances that may exist. 
Given the current market value of copper and other metals we felt it important to make management and the 
committee aware of this. We recommend that management review the processes and procedures related to 
charging out inventory and the year end physical count to ensure that there are no gaps which would allow 
materials to be used or taken out of the storeroom without being properly documented and charged to the 
project. 


Managements' Response: Management acknowledges that some inventory variances can occur from 
incomplete documentation of materials placed into and removed from inventory. No system is perfect, but there 
are adequate procedures in place to track and secure inventory as evidenced by the need for only minor 
adjustments at year-end. We expect and accept that most variances likely occur from lack of docume ntation 
during emergency situations such as power interruptions and water main failures. Safety and efficient 
restoration of service always remains the highest priorities of staff. 


INCORPORA TlNG AN ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONSTRUCTION (AFUDC) INTO THE PROJECT 


ACCOUNTING PROCESS 


The utilities annually complete various capital projects, some of which take a significant amount of time and 
resources. Generally accepted accounting principles and regulatory accounting allow the utility to calculae the 
financing costs associated with such projects and include this as a portion of the project costs recoverable 
through rates. There are two methods for calculating the allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC), 
one which applies when there is a specific tax exempt borrowing for that project and one which applies the 
weighted average interest rate on outstanding debt to the project costs during the construction period. The 
theory is that the utilities could choose to borrow funds to complete the project and use funds on hand to pay 
down existing debt, therefore there is always a financing cost to such projects. 


We recommend that management develop criteria for the types of projects that will include AFUDC, possibly 
based on the cost of the project or the duration of the project, and then implement a process to calculate and 
apply the financing charge to the projects prior to closing. We would be happy to provide management with 
additional information on the two methods mentioned above. 


Managements' Response: Management intends to calculate and apply financing costs as a part of any project 
that exceeds the dollar threshold requiring construction authorization from the Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin. For 2011, this would apply to any project that exceeds 3.3% of gross revenues. The PSCW can 
adjust this level bi-annually. 







To the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


April 11, 2011 
Page 3 


CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS (cont.) 


REVIEWING CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS 


The utilities have complex revenue reporting based on customer type, location, meter type or size, usage 
patterns, etc. It is imperative for accurate financial reporting that each customer account is assigned to the 
appropriate billing rates as well as reporting categories. Management noted during the year end reconciliations 
that certain customers who had shifted between electric reporting categories had been updated to the proper 
billing rates but not the revenue classifications within the general ledger. Although the impact was not material, 
and it does not change revenues overall, it emphasizes the need for a second review on any new customer 
accounts or changes to eXisting accounts to ensure that all billing rates and revenue classifications are 
consistent and appropriate. 


Managements' Response: All changes to customer accounts including initial set-up, retail rate changes (with 
corresponding revenue classifications), and adjustments are reviewed by the Office and Information Systems 
Supervisor andlor the Finance and Administrative Manager. In January 2011, we discovered certain accounts 
with old billing rate classification changes did not have the corresponding change in GIL account classification at 
the time. The accounts were corrected and a review of all existing accounts verified that no other changes were 
necessary. 


MONITORING OF RESTRICTED ASSETS 


The utilities maintain several special investment accounts as required by the bond resolutions and the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources . During the 2010 audit we noted that the amounts maintained in 
individual investment accounts at the LGIP or with brokers do not always equate on a one to one basis with the 
restricted funds. As such it is necessary for management to reconcile where the investments are held with the 
purpose for which they are held. For the December 31, 2010 financial statements management did reclassify 
certain investments for reporting as DNR replacement funds based on their purpose, not where they are held. 
The water and electric reserve accounts were overfunded at year end, however we understand these resources 
are maintained in these investments to maximize returns. We note management calculates the required 
balances in each of the restricted accounts and that the utilities have sufficient funds on hand to meet all of their 
current required funding obligations. We recommend that management consider additional reclassifications in 
the future 


Managements' Response: In order to maintain flexibility in investment options, maximize investment earnings, 
and minimize changes in GIL account structure, management will continue to classify restricted funds based on 
their purpose. Restricted funds are correctly reported in the monthly and annual financial statements. If funds 
are higher than what is required ("overfunded"), it is typically due to timing of investment purchases and 
maturities. 


PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS 


TREATMENT OF EXCESS SEWER VOLUMES 


An analysis of volumes billed for sewer treatment and the total volume treated at the plant revealed that for 2008 
the infiltrationlinflow (III) level was at 38%. Although this was an improvement over the 39% III for 2007 this is 
still a significant level. We realize that 2008 was a very unusual year with the record snowfalls and heavy rains, 
but we recommend management begin to monitor this on a regular basis to identify whe n the differences occur 
and work to eliminate any significant leaks in the system. 







To the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


April 11, 2011 
Page 4 


PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS (cont.) 


TREATMENT OF EXCESS SEWER VOLUMES (cont.) 


Status 1213112010: In 2010 the infiltration/inflow (1/1) level decreased to 28% compared to 31% in 2009. We 
understand management is working with a consultant on this issue, which has been determined to relate to the 
age of the system, and has developed a program to complete slip lining projects to address this. 


COMMITMENT TO COMMUNITY PROGRAM 


The electric utility retains the commitment to community program funds at the local level for both the 
conservation and low income programs. We noted that the program spending during 2008 was slightly higher 
than collections, which indicates that customers are utilizing these programs. However we also noted that the 
accumulated balance of $72,000 is still a significant amount of unspent program funds, primarily in energy 
conservation funds. We encourage management to investigate additional programs fo r using these funds or 
promote current programs in the community for increased partiCipation. 


Status 1213112010: During 2010 disbursements were lower than collections. As a result the accumulated 
balance grew to $130,000 compared to $106,000 in 2009. With the change in 2011 from a local program to 
partiCipation in the state program it is imperative these funds are spent in the near future. We understand 
management has several projects planned for 2011 which will utilize these funds. 


TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT 


As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the audit 
process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting the auditor 
and you with more information relevant to the audit. 


As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next year's audit. 
It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our next audit: 


a. We address the significant risks or material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, through our 
detailed audit procedures. 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the risk of 
material noncompliance related to the federal and state awards whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design cif controls relevant to 
an audit of the federal and state awards and to determine whether they have been implemented. We will 
use such knowledge to: 


> Identify types of potential noncompliance. 
> Consider factors that affect the risks of material noncompliance . 
> Design tests of controls, when applicable, and other audit procedures. 


Our audit will be performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, OMS Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Guidelines. 


We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs. For audits done in 
accordance with OMS Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines, our report will contain the 
following restriction: "This report is intended solely for the information and use of the client's 
management, others within the utilities, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and it not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties." 







To the Stoughton Utilities Committee 
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TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont.) 


c. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, are 
important for reporting material noncompliance while other matters are not important. In performing the 
audit, we are concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 
entity's federal and state awards. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that material noncompliance, whether caused by error or fraud, is detected. 


We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 


a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 
b. We understand that the utilities committee has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction of 


your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the responsibility 
for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization's objectives and strategies, and the related 
business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any areas 
where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 
f. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements or the 


federal or state awards? 


Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the utilities 
concerning: 


a. The utilities' internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 


We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 
communications with us. 


With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do preliminary 
financial audit work during the fall. Our final financial fieldwork is scheduled during January to best coincide with 
your readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork, we wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and 
may issue drafts of our report for your review. Final copies of our report and other communications are issued 
after approval by your staff. This is typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a 
number of factors. We typically perform much of the single audit fieldwork during the financial audit. After single 
audit fieldwork, we wrap up our single audit procedures at our office and then issue drafts of our report for your 
review. Final copies of our Report on Federal Awards are issued after approval by your staff. This will be after 
both the utilities and the city audits are complete, but may vary depending upon a number of factors. 


Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, it 
does not change the auditor's sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit plan, 
including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence. 


We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We welcome 
the opportunity to hear from you. 
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INTERNAL CONTROLS 


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Stoughton Utilities as of and for the year 
ended December 31,2010, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered its internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control. 


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. However, 
as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 


A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the following deficiencies in the Stoughton's internal control to be significant deficiencies: 


> Financial Reporting 
> Segregation of Duties 


FINANCIAL REPORTING 


Accounting standards require that the utilities have in place systems and controls to prepare and review a 
complete set of year-end financial statements, including the statement of cash flows and all required footnotes, 
such that there is only a remote likelihood that the auditor will discover a material change to the statements or 
footnotes. In prior years management has relied upon the auditor for the preparation of such statements. 
Beginning with the 2009 financial statements management prepared the initial draft of the statements including 
the statements of cash flows and the footnotes . This is no small undertaking and as such we commend 
management for this. During our audit we did note a few items that needed to be reclassified, added or updated 
in the financial statement presentation. As such we must report a significant deficiency in financial reporting as 
the level of staffing does not allow for a comprehensive review of the financial statements by someone 
independent of the preparer. Very few governments are able to prepare statements requiring no alterations by 
the auditors, however we will re-evaluate this area again next year. 


SEGREGA TlON OF DUTIES 


Our review of internal control disclosed a Significant deficiency in that segregation of duties is not feasible due to 
the limited number of staff in the office. For example, the same person is involved in handling cash and 
bookkeeping. 


This situation necessitates an increased amount of management involvement in the day-to-day operation of the 
system. This is not unusual in utilities of your size, but management should continue to be aware of this 
condition and realize that the concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of individuals is not 
desirable from a control point of view. 
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (cont.) 


SEGREGA TlON OF DUTIES (cont.) 


Procedures, designed to improve controls, have been established by management including: 


> Authorization of official depository. 
> Review and acceptance of the audit report and management letter. 
> Authorization of capital expenditures. 
> Approval of annual.budgets. 
> Cross training of personnel and rotation of duties entailing custody of certain liquid assets. 


These procedures are helpful in assuring that management is knowledgeable of and involved with the day-to­
day system operations. 


Although the above items are beneficial, you should be aware that the following additional controls have not 
been implemented: 


> Review of the year end accrued payroll 
> Reviews of the monthly receivable reconciliations 
> Review of the reconciliation of open work orders to the construction balance in the ledger 


COMMUNICATIONS TO UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


We have completed our audit of the financial statements of Stoughton Utilities for the year ended year ended 
December 31, 2010 and have issued our report thereon dated April 11 ,2011. This letter presents 
communications required by our professional standards. 


OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA, GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT 


GUIDELINES 


The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We 
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
Government Auditing Standards, OMS Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Guidelines. These standards 
require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether 
the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are free of material misstatement, 
whether caused by error or fraud. Our audit included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit does not 
relieve management or the committee of their responsibilities. 


We also considered internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal or major state program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMS Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines. 
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COMMUNICATIONS TO UTILITIES COMMITTEE (cont.) 


OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF 


AMERICA, GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT 


GUIDELINES (cont.) 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the utilities' financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit. Also, in accordance with OMS Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines, we examined, on 
a test basis, evidence about the utilities' compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMS) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement applicable to each of its 
major federal programs for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the utilities' compliance with those 
requirements. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal 
determination on the utilities' compliance with those requirements. 


We have issued a separate document which contains the results of our audit procedures to comply with OMS 
Circular A-133. 


OTHER INFORMATION IN DOCUMENTS CONTAINING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


Our responsibility does not extend beyond the audited financial statements identified in this report. We do not 
have any obligation to and have not performed any procedures to corroborate other information contained in 
client prepared documents, such as official statements related to debt issues. 


PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT 


We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our city­
wide letter about planning matters. 


QUALITA TlVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY'S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 


Accounting Policies 


Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the utilities are described in Note 1 to 
the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the utilities during the year that were both 
significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or 
transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 


Accounting Estimates 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements were the accrual of compensated 
absences and fair value of the ATC investment. We have reviewed managements' assumptions and 
methodologies for this. 
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COMMUNICATIONS TO UTILITIES COMMITTEE (cont.) 


QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY'S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES (cont.) 


Financial Statement Disclosures 


The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 


DIFFICUL TIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT 


We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 


AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS 


Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatement identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 


For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the 
financial statements that, in our jUdgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures. 
An audit adjustment mayor may not indicate matters that could have a Significant effect on the utilities' financial 
reporting process. Matters underlying adjustments proposed by the auditor could potentially cause future 
financial statements to be materially misstated. We did not have audit adjustments to the financial statements. 


A summary of uncorrected financial statement misstatements is attached. Management has determined that 
their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 


DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT 


For purposes of th is letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that 
could be Significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 


CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 


In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 


MANAGEMENT REPRESENT A TlONS 


We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter. This letter is attached. 
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COMMUNICATIONS TO UTILITIES COMMITTEE (cont.) 


INDEPENDENCE 


We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP that, in our professional 
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 


Relating to our audit of the financial statements of for the year ended December 31, 2010, Baker Tilly Virchow 
Krause, LLP hereby confirms in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct issued by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, that we are, in our professional judgment, independent with respect to 
the Stoughton Utilities and provided no services to the utilities other than audit services provided in connection 
with the audit of the current year's financial statements. 


OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES 


We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Utilities' auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 


This information is intended solely for the use of the Utilities Committee and management and is not intended to 
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than the specified parties. 


We welcome the opportunity to discuss the information included in this letter and any other matters. Thank you 
for allowing us to serve you. 


Sincerely, 


BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP 







February 7, 2011 


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 
Ten Terrace Court 
P.O. Box 7398 
Madison, WI 53707 


Dear Auditors: 


Stoughton Utilities 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI 53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Needs Since 1886 


We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Stoughton Utilities as 
of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and for the years then ended for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to 
whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position, results 
of operations, and cash flows of the Stoughton Utilities in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation in the 
financial statements of financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America . 


Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information 
that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person 
relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. 


We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your 
audit. 


1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America . 


2. We have made available to you all -


a. Financial records and related data. 


b. Minutes of the meetings of our governing body and summaries of actions of recent meetings for 
which minutes have not yet been prepared. 


3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 


Office 608-873-3379 
Fax 608-873-4878 


stoughtonutilities.com 
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4. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records 
underlying the financial statements. 


5. We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the 
attached schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the finanCial statements 
taken as a whole. 


6. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to 
prevent and detect fraud . 


7. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving: 


a. Management, 


b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control , or 


c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the finanCial statements. 


8. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in 
communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 


9. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, 
liabilities or fund equity. 


10. The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements: 


a. Joint ventures 


b. Related party transactions, including revenues, expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, 
and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties. 


c. Collateralization agreements with financial institutions. 


d. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the utility is contingently liable. 


e. All accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including the key factors 
and significant assumptions underlying those estimates, and we believe the estimates are 
reasonable in the Circumstances. 


11. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to us, including debt contracts and debt covenants; and we have identified and 
disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of finanCial statement amounts, including legal 
and contractual provisions for reporting speCific activities in separate funds. 


12. There are no-


a. Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements, laws or regulations and any related debt covenants whose effects should be 
considered for disclosure in the finanCial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency. 
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b. Rates being charged to customers other than the rates as authorized by the applicable authoritative 
body. 


c. Violations of restrictions placed on revenues as a result of a bond resolution covenants - such as 
revenue distribution, or debt service funding . 


d. Unasserted claims, assessments or pending lawsuits that our lawyer has advised us are probable 
of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. 


e. Other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed 
by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards NO.5. 


13. Provision, when material, has been made to reduce excess or obsolete inventories to their estimated 
net realizable value. 


14. We have satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets 
nor has any asset been pledged as collateral other than liens created by our revenue debt. 


15. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the 
financia l statement in the event of noncompliance. 


16. Net asset components (invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted) are 
properly classified. 


17. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded . 


18. Interfund activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported . 


19. Special and extraordinary items are appropriately classified and reported . 


20 . Deposits and investment securities are properly classified in category of custodial credit risk. 


21 . Capital assets are properly capitalized and depreciated. Any known impairments have been disclosed 
and recorded. 


22 . We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is 
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and 
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any 
sign ificant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI. 


23. With regards to the Commitment to Community report, we are responsible for the preparation of the 
report including its accuracy, completeness and timely filing with the PSCW. We believe this report to 
be complete and accurate as prepared by WPPI. 


24 . We understand that, as part of your aud it, you prepared and acknowledge that we have reviewed and 
approved those entries and understand the impact on the financial statements. 
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25. With respect to federal award programs -


a. We are responsible for understanding and complying and have complied with the requirements of 
the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMS Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and any other applicable laws and regulations and 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, including requirements relating to preparation of the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 


b. We have, in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, identified in the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, expenditures made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal 
agencies in the forrn of grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, 
property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, food 
commodities, direct appropriations, insurance and other assistance received for the purpose of 
administering federal programs. We have also made records available to you relating to such 
financial awards received directly, as well as indirectly, as pass-through awards. 


c. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(OEFA) in accordance with requirements of OMS Circular A-133 §310.b, and we believe the SEFA, 
including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Circular. The methods of 
measurement and presentation of the SEFA have not changed from those used in the prior period 
and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the SEFA. 


d. We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities 
subject to OMS Circular A-133. 


e. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with in all material 
respects the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements related to each of our federal and state programs and have identified and disclosed to 
you the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements 
that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each major federal program. 


f. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have establiShed and maintained 
effective internal control over compliance requirements applicable to federal programs that provide 
reasonable assurance that we are administering our federal awards in compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that could have a material effect 
on our federal programs. We believe the internal control system is adequate and is functioning as 
intended. Also, no changes have been made in the internal control system to the date of this letter 
that might significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action taken with regard to 
reportable conditions reported in the schedule of findings and questioned costs. 


g. We have made available to you all contracts and grant agreements (including amendments, if any) 
and any other correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities relating to each major 
federal program. 


h. We have received no requests from a federal or pass through agency to audit one or more specific 
programs as a major program. 


i. We have complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements, including when 
applicable, those set forth in the OMS Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, relating to federal 
awards and have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and any known 
noncompliance with the requirements of federal awards, including the results of other audits or 
program reviews. 
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j. We are not aware of any instances of noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements 
subsequent to the period covered by the auditors' report. 


k. We have disclosed any communications from grantors and pass-through entities concerning 
possible noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements, if any, including 
communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of 
the auditors' report. 


I. Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in 
OMS Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Tribal Governments, and OMS's Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local 
Governments. 


m. We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have varying 
interpretations, if any. 


n. We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles. 


o. We have made available to you all documentation related to the compliance requirements, 
including information related to federal program financial reports and claims for advances and 
reimbursements. 


p. Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by 
the books and records from which the financial statements have been prepared, and are prepared 
on a basis consistent with the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 


q. The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports 
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, as 
applicable. 


r. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data Collection 
Form as required by OMS Circular A-133. 


s. We are responsible for preparing and implementing a corrective action plan for each audit finding . 


To the best of our knowledge and belief, no events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred 
subsequent to December 31, 2010 and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to, or 
disclosure in, the aforementioned financial statements. 


}/~ I 11 
Signed: . f~. (llt ll{~.c-: ,t!--


Title/Date: ArI(U)Ck VVlfU\a 5L..Y" d-I I / II 


Signed f?A f. 2~ 
Title/Date: tirl/.' r Ie f f),1l. Ec 'TtZ,(J 2/ z /1/ 
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Water 


Wastewater 


Electric 


Utility 


Total Net Audit 
Differences 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 


SUMMARY OF PASSED ADJUSTING JOURNAL ENTRIES 
Decem ber 31, 2010 and 2009 


2010 


Financial Statements Effect -


Increase (Decrease) to Financial Statement Total 


Current Long-Term Total Cu rrent Long-Term Total Total Total Total Net 


Assets Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Net Assets Revenues Expenses Income 


$ - $ 13,463 $ 13,463 $ 5,617 $ - $ 5,617 $ 7,846 $ - $ (7,846) $ 7,846 


(12,300) __ _ (12 ,300) ________ _ (12,300) __ _ 12,300 (12 ,300) 


$ (12,300) $ 13,463 $ 1,163 $ 5,617 $ - $ 5,617 $ (4454) $ - $ 4,454 $ (4454) 







 


 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Enterprise Funds of the  


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


December 31, 2010 and 2009 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Enterprise Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


December 31, 2010 and 2009 
 
 
 


 


 
Independent Auditors' Report 1 - 2 


Management's Discussion and Analysis 3 - 19 


Financial Statements  


Electric Utility  


Statements of Net Assets 20 - 21 


Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 22 


Statements of Cash Flows 23 - 24 


Water Utility  


Statements of Net Assets 25 - 26 


Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 27 


Statements of Cash Flows 28 - 29 


Wastewater Utility  


Statements of Net Assets 30 - 31 


Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 32 


Statements of Cash Flows 33 - 34 


Notes to Financial Statements 35 - 64 


Supplemental Information  


Electric Utility  


Utility Plant 65 


Operating Revenues and Expenses 66  - 67 


Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 68 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Enterprise Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


December 31, 2010 and 2009 
 
 
 


Supplemental Information (cont.) 
 


 


Water Utility  


Utility Plant 69 


Operating Revenues and Expenses 70 - 71 


Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 72 


Wastewater Utility  


Utility Plant 73 


Operating Revenues and Expenses 74 


 







Page 1 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 


 
 
To the Utilities Committee 
Stoughton Utilities 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of Stoughton Utilities, enterprise funds of the City 
of Stoughton, Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the utilities' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The December 31, 2010 audit was also conducted in accordance with the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Stoughton Utilities enterprise funds and are 
not intended to present fairly the financial position of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, and the changes in its 
financial position and its cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Stoughton Utilities as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the changes in its financial position and 
its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
As Discussed in Note 12, Stoughton Utilities has revised the allocation of certain expenses among the utilities 
for the year ended December 31, 2009. As such, certain line items in the 2009 financial statements have been 
restated to reflect this.  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a report on our consideration of the 
overall City of Stoughton’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, including those systems applicable to Stoughton Utilities. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the result of our audits. 
 
 


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Ten Terrace Ct, PO Box 7398 


Madison, WI 53707-7398 


tel 608 249 6622 


fax 608 249 8532 


bakertilly.com 







, 


To the Utilities Committee 
Stoughton Utilities 


The Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the financial statements but is 
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Management's discussion and analysis does not include a discussion of changes in financial position 
during 2009 since this was discussed in last year's report. We have applied certain limited procedures, which 
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of 
the required supplementary. information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 


Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements. The supplemental 
information as identified in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 


Madison, Wisconsin 
April 11, 2011 
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The management of the Stoughton Utilities (utilities) offers all persons interested in the financial position 
of the utilities an objective, easy to read overview and analysis of the utilities’ financial performance during 
the years ending December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008. You are invited to read this narrative in conjunction 
with the utilities’ financial statements. 


 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 


 


ELECTRIC: 


 


> Purchased two plug-in hybrid electric bucket trucks funded in part by a $200,000 grant from the 
Wisconsin Clean Transportation Program.  
 


> The electric division’s net assets increased by $652,922 from the prior year. 
 


> Revenues increased in 2010 by 12.82%. The increase was due to an increase in sales primarily to 
large power and industrial customers.   
 


> Financed $1.23 million dollars of capital improvements to improve operations and electric system 
reliability. 


 
WATER: 


 
> A federal grant of $613,000 was received through principal forgiveness on a Wisconsin Safe 


Drinking Water Loan used for construction of a new water tower. The loan closed in January 2010 
for $575,018. 


 
> Completed construction on a new 600,000 gallon water tower on the City’s east side. 
 
> The water division’s net assets increased by $818,122 from the prior year.  


 
> Revenues from water sales increased by 18.24% in 2010. A two-phase increase in retail rates 


was effective on October 1, 2009 and September 1, 2010. Water consumption also increased in 
2010.  
 


> Started planning for water main replacement on East Main Street in 2011. 
 
WASTEWATER: 


 
> Financed $185,000 of sewer projects which included slip lining of sewer mains to extend the life of 


the existing mains.    
 


> Preparing and budgeting for potential permit requirements for treatment of phosphorus and 
ammonia. 
 


> The wastewater division’s net assets increased by $436,938 from the prior year. 
 


> Operating revenue decreased slightly in 2010 due to an industrial customer’s change in 
production to eliminate metered billing of wastewater service.  
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The utilities are self-supporting entities and separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (city). The 
utilities provide electric, water, and wastewater service to properties within the city and also provide 
electric service to the following Townships: Dunkirk, Dunn, Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland.  
 
The water and electric utilities are managed by a Utility Committee and operate under service rules and 
rates that are established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). The accounting 
records are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the PSCW, and 
in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  
 
The Utility Committee also manages the wastewater utility. The Utility Committee establishes rates and 
service rules. Accounting records are maintained in accordance with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. 
 
This annual report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the basic financial 
statements, including the independent auditor’s report. 
 
An analysis of the utilities’ financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net Assets, and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. These two statements report the utilities’ 
net assets and changes therein. The utilities’ net assets – ‘the difference between assets and liabilities’ is 
key to measuring the financial health of the utilities. Over time, increases or decreases in the net asset 
value are an indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, it should be 
noted that the financial position may also be affected by other non-financial factors, including economic 
conditions, customer growth, climate conditions and new regulations. 
 
 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS  


 
The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the utilities’ assets and liabilities and provides information 
about the nature and amount of investments in resources and the obligations to creditors. This statement 
provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of 
the utilities.  
 
A summary of the utilities’ Statements of Net Assets is presented below in Tables 1 through 3. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 1 


Condensed Statement of Net Assets – Electric Utility 
 


Restated 2010-2009
2010 2009 2008 Change


Current and Other Assets 9,143,906$   8,923,948$   9,254,386$    219,958$       
Capital Assets 15,303,719   15,005,746   14,568,830    297,973         


Total Assets 24,447,625   23,929,694   23,823,216    517,931         


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 6,280,000     6,630,000     7,160,000      (350,000)        
Other Liabilities 2,552,965     2,337,956     2,350,464      215,009         


Total Liabilities 8,832,965     8,967,956     9,510,464      (134,991)        


Invested in Capital Assets
     Net of Related Debt 8,321,055     7,851,580     6,918,697      469,475         
       -Restricted 1,336,158     1,264,843     1,240,815      71,315           
       -Unrestricted 5,957,447     5,845,315     6,153,240      112,132         


Total Net Assets 15,614,660$ 14,961,738$ 14,312,752$  652,922$       


 
In 2010, the electric utility net assets increased $652,922, an increase of 4.36%.  
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 2 


Condensed Statement of Net Assets – Water Utility 
 


Restated 2010-2009
2010 2009 2008 Change


Current and Other Assets 1,904,584$   1,677,119$   2,152,463$    227,465$       
Capital Assets 12,076,405   10,979,317   10,495,702    1,097,088      


Total Assets 13,980,989   12,656,436   12,648,165    1,324,553      


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 2,441,386     2,035,000     2,150,000      406,386         
Other Liabilities 554,055        454,010        426,237         100,045         


Total Liabilities 2,995,441     2,489,010     2,576,237      506,431         


Invested in Capital Assets
     Net of Related Debt 9,466,387     8,829,317     8,265,702      637,070         
       -Restricted 469,062        342,153        314,707         126,909         
       -Unrestricted 1,050,099     995,956        1,491,519      54,143           


Total Net Assets 10,985,548$ 10,167,426$ 10,071,928$  818,122$       


 
In 2010, the water utility net assets increased $818,122, an increase of 8.05%. The water utility 
implemented a rate increase on September 1, 2010. A federal grant for $613,751 comprised 75% of the 
increase in net assets. Grant funding was used for construction of the new water tower. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 3 
Condensed Statements of Net Assets – Wastewater Utility 


 
Restated 2010-2009


2010 2009 2008 Change


Current and Other Assets 3,536,403$   3,224,003$   3,481,156$    312,400$     
Capital Assets 14,639,909   15,043,459   14,871,445    (403,550)      


Total Assets 18,176,312   18,267,462   18,352,601    (91,150)        


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 4,183,666     4,795,455     5,389,112      (611,789)      
Other Liabilities 800,076        716,375        712,913         83,701         


Total Liabilities 4,983,742     5,511,830     6,102,025      (528,088)      


Invested in Capital Assets
     Net of Related Debt 9,844,578     9,654,470     8,906,387      190,108       
       -Restricted 1,475,695     1,217,299     1,146,596      258,396       
       -Unrestricted 1,872,297     1,883,863     2,197,593      (11,566)        


Total Net Assets 13,192,570$ 12,755,632$ 12,250,576$  436,938$     


 
 
In 2010, wastewater net assets increased $436,938 or 3.43%. 
 
The restricted portion of net assets includes accounts that are limited by bond covenants. Listed below are 
restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption   –  Used for debt service payments. 
 Reserve    – Used for any deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation  –  Used to restore deficiencies in the redemption and reserve accounts, and for funding 


plant replacements. 
 Construction –  Bond issue proceeds used only for the restricted construction project(s).  
 Replacement – Used for plant replacement. 
  
The specific nature or source of these changes becomes more evident in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets as shown in Tables 4 through 6.  







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2010 and 2009 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report. 
Page 8 


 


UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets provides an indication of the utilities’ 
financial health. 
 


Table 4 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - 
Electric Utility 


 
Restated 2010-2009


2010 2009 2008 Change


Operating Revenues 14,140,673$   12,547,681$    12,664,800$    1,592,992$     
Non-Operating Revenues 208,297          369,993           286,012           (161,696)         
     Total Revenues 14,348,970     12,917,674      12,950,812      1,431,296       


Depreciation Expense 865,950          792,269           772,081           73,681            
Other Operating Expense 12,476,782     10,888,022      11,006,309      1,588,760       
Non-Operating Expenses 298,565          335,160           676,772           (36,595)           
     Total Expenses 13,641,297     12,015,451      12,455,162      1,625,846       


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 707,673          902,223           495,650           (194,550)         


Capital Contributions 267,667          38,002             93,363             229,665          
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (291,922)         (258,797)         (237,414)          (33,125)           
Transfers  (30,496)           (32,442)           (35,196)            1,946              


Changes in Net Assets 652,922          648,986           316,403           3,936              


Beginning Net Assets 14,961,738     14,312,752      13,996,349      648,986          


Total Net Assets-Ending 15,614,660$   14,961,738$    14,312,752$    652,922$        
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 5 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - 
Water Utility 


 
Restated 2010-2009


2010 2009 2008 Change


Operating Revenues 1,558,841$     1,320,413$      1,289,936$      238,428$        
Non-Operating Revenues 68,129            134,766           50,641             (66,637)           
     Total Revenues 1,626,970       1,455,179        1,340,577        171,791          


Depreciation Expense 327,160          321,225           309,071           5,935              
Other Operating Expense 725,930          708,094           750,483           17,836            
Non-Operating Expenses 102,724          100,013           348,221           2,711              
     Total Expenses 1,155,814       1,129,332        1,407,775        26,482            


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 471,156          325,847           (67,198)            145,309          


Capital Contributions 612,176          3,421               148,584           608,755          
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (259,162)         (228,514)         (211,710)          (30,648)           
Transfers  (6,048)             (5,256)             (9,010)              (792)                


Changes in Net Assets 818,122          95,498             (139,334)          722,624          


Beginning Net Assets 10,167,426     10,071,928      10,211,262      95,498            


Total Net Assets-Ending 10,985,548$   10,167,426$    10,071,928$    818,122$        
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 6 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - 
Wastewater Utility 


 
Restated 2010-2009


2010 2009 2008 Change


Operating Revenues 2,070,720$        2,198,566$      2,183,333$      (127,846)$       
Non-Operating Revenues 60,772               23,852             140,081           36,920            
     Total Revenues 2,131,492          2,222,418        2,323,414        (90,926)           


Depreciation Expense 649,400             636,277           562,817           13,123            
Other Operating Expense 902,642             920,301           867,565           (17,659)           
Non-Operating Expenses 142,512             160,784           176,460           (18,272)           
     Total Expenses 1,694,554          1,717,362        1,606,842        (22,808)           


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 436,938             505,056           716,572           (68,118)           


Capital Contributions -                         -                      63,644             -                      


Changes in Net Assets 436,938             505,056           780,216           (68,118)           


Beginning Net Assets 12,755,632        12,250,576      11,470,360      505,056          


Total Net Assets-Ending 13,192,570$      12,755,632$    12,250,576$    436,938$        
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Comparison of Electric Sales
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Increasing electric sales to all customer classes and a wholesale power cost adjustment resulted in an 
increase in total sales of $1,592,256, or 12.82% in 2010.  
 
 


2010 2009 2008


Residential 7,262,312$          6,536,235$          6,435,923$        
General Service 1,779,438            1,652,891            1,606,318          
Small Power 1,340,462            1,137,138            1,225,980          
Large Power 944,496               864,748               897,857             
Industrial Power 2,554,604            2,100,050            2,234,590          
Public Lighting 131,157               129,151               119,718             


Total Electric Sales 14,012,469$        12,420,213$        12,520,386$      
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Comparison of Water Sales
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Sales increased $236,809 or 18.24% in 2010. A retail rate increase was implemented in two phases on 
October 1, 2009 and September 1, 2010. 
 
 


2010 2009 2008


Residential 756,725$             650,463$             623,952$           
Commercial 178,491               152,687               144,915             
Industrial 199,210               126,679               130,601             
Public Authority 15,828                 15,857                 14,312               
Private Fire 20,999                 19,394                 18,630               
Public Fire 364,006               333,370               335,256             


Total Water Sales 1,535,259$          1,298,450$          1,267,666$        
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Comparison of Wastewater Sales
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The utility experienced a decline in revenues of $115,823 or 5.49% in 2010. Overall, consumption was 
slightly lower in 2010 and a large industrial customer is no longer billed wastewater charges due to a 
change in production. 
 


2010 2009 2008


Residential 1,415,649$          1,446,074$          1,468,172$        
Commercial 429,388               432,652               434,356             
Industrial 127,345               201,249               215,670             
Public Authority 22,287                 30,517                 29,677               


Total Wastewater Sales 1,994,669$          2,110,492$          2,147,875$        
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows reports the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well as other 
cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for repayment of bonds and capital 
additions. 
 


Table 7 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  


Electric Utility 
 


Restated 2010-2009
2010 2009 2008 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,682,662$     1,606,464$      1,870,692$      76,198$          
     Non-capital financing activities (289,293)         (269,856)         (256,896)          (19,437)           
     Capital and related financing
        activities (1,589,614)      (2,065,190)      (2,951,964)       475,576          
     Investing activities 1,377,387       649,492           (150,297)          727,895          


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 1,181,142       (79,090)           (1,488,465)       1,260,232       


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 2,218,907       2,297,997        3,786,462        (79,090)           


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 3,400,049$     2,218,907$      2,297,997$      1,181,142$     


 
During 2010, several long term investments matured and the funds were not reinvested by the date of this 
report. This is the primary reason for the increase in cash and cash equivalents of $1,181,142.  
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2010 and 2009 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report. 
Page 15 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 8 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - 
Water Utility 


 
Restated 2010-2009


2010 2009 2008 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 853,199$        597,831$         552,615$         255,368$        
     Non-Capital financing activities (234,562)         (216,966)         (206,040)          (17,596)           
     Capital and related financing
        activities (476,129)         (1,008,698)      (1,532,522)       532,569          
     Investing activities 197,668          568,304           (722,534)          (370,636)         


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 340,176          (59,529)           (1,908,481)       399,705          


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 17,382            76,911             1,985,392        (59,529)           


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 357,558$        17,382$           76,911$           340,176$        


 
The water utility experienced an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $340,176 in 2010. The increase 
was due to the 2010 net income and the maturity of long term Certificates of Deposit. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 9 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - 


Wastewater Utility 
 


Restated 2010-2009
2010 2009 2008 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,235,599$     1,282,933$      1,302,723$      (47,334)$         
     Capital and related financing
        activities (953,733)         (1,547,719)      (1,341,679)       593,986          
     Investing activities 293,327          (346,598)         (188,987)          639,925          


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 575,193          (611,384)         (227,943)          1,186,577       


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 1,808,045       2,419,429        2,647,372        (611,384)         


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 2,383,238$     1,808,045$      2,419,429$      575,193$        


 
The utility experienced an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $575,193 in 2010. Net income and the 
sale of a long term investment contributed to the increase.  
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 10 
Capital Assets – Electric Utility 


 
2010-2009


2010 2009 2008 Change


Capital Assets
     Transmission and distribution 20,274,337$  19,735,559$ 19,186,513$  538,778$     
     General 4,258,484      3,816,851     2,861,436      441,633       
          Total Capital Assets 24,532,821    23,552,410   22,047,949    980,411       


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (9,255,784)     (8,597,069)    (7,826,300)     (658,715)      
Construction in progress 26,682           50,405          347,181         (23,723)        


Net Capital Assets 15,303,719$  15,005,746$ 14,568,830$  297,973$     


 
 


 
Table 11 


Capital Assets – Water Utility 
 


2010-2009
2010 2009 2008 Change


Capital Assets
     Source of supply 575,629$       575,629$      563,795$       -$                   
     Pumping 1,526,063      1,506,362     1,482,498      19,701           
     Water treatment 90,763           90,763          90,763           -                     
     Transmission and distribution 13,426,711    11,828,361   11,485,289    1,598,350      
     General 913,082         907,307        688,670         5,775             
          Total Capital Assets 16,532,248    14,908,422   14,311,015    1,623,826      


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (4,501,174)    (4,169,917)    (3,824,456)     (331,257)        
Construction in progress 45,331           240,812        9,143             (195,481)        


Net Capital Assets 12,076,405$  10,979,317$ 10,495,702$  1,097,088$    
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 12 


Capital Assets – Wastewater Utility 
 


2010-2009
2010 2009 2008 Change


Capital Assets
     Collection system 7,822,109$    7,684,151$    7,264,526$    137,958$       
     Collection system pumping 397,412         389,554         387,063         7,858             
     Treatment and disposal 12,757,388    12,735,749    12,582,116    21,639           
     General 846,036         836,829         559,216         9,207             
          Total Capital Assets 21,822,945    21,646,283    20,792,921    176,662         


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (7,246,797)    (6,605,232)     (5,970,625)     (641,565)        
Construction in progress 63,761           2,408             49,149           61,353           


Net Capital Assets 14,639,909$  15,043,459$  14,871,445$  (403,550)$      


 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 


 
As of December 31, 2010, the electric utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding of 
$6,630,000 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the 
operation of the electric utility. These issues were issued for electric system improvements, the 
construction of new substation, an east substation transformer, and costs associated with the 
implementation of automated meter reading (AMR). 
 
As of December 31, 2010, the water utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding of 
$2,610,018 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the 
operation of the water utility. These issues were primarily for additions and improvements to the water 
system, street improvement projects, and AMR implementation. 
 
The wastewater utility had $4,795,444 of clean water fund loans outstanding as of December 31, 2010. 
These bonds were issued for a series of wastewater treatment plant upgrade and expansion projects.  
 
Tables of separate bond issues are included in note 6 of this audit report. 
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CONTACTING UTILITY MANAGEMENT 


 


This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general overview 
of the utilities’ finances. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, 
contact the Finance and Administrative Manager, Stoughton Utilities, 600 South Fourth Street, P.O. Box 
383, Stoughton, WI  53589. 
 
General information relating to the Stoughton Utilities can be found at the utilities’ web site at 
www.stoughtonutilities.com.  
 







ELECTRIC UTILITY 







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 
December 31,2010 and 2009 


ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 


Cash and investments 
Interest receivable 
Restricted Assets 


Redemption account 
Customer accounts receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Due from municipality 
Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 


Total Current Assets 


NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Restricted Assets 


Reserve account 
Depreciation account 


Other Assets 
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 
Sick leave reserve account 
Unamortized debt issuance costs 
Investment in ATC 
Non-utility property (net) 


Capital Assets 
Plant in service 
Accumulated depreciation 
Property held for future use 
Construction work in progress 


Total Non-Current Assets 


Total Assets 


$ 


Restated 
2010 2009 


5,318,499 $ 5,355,995 
22,889 29,103 


339,705 481 ,077 
1,611,101 1,488,877 


114,436 37,998 
32,918 31 ,808 


124,597 131 ,388 
27,043 27,465 


7,591 ,188 7,583,711 


1,046,094 838,094 
25,000 25,000 


103,717 103,498 
97,000 97,000 


5,834 
244,654 230,898 


36,253 39,913 


24,180,157 23,199,746 
(9,255,784) (8,597,069) 


352,664 352,664 
26,682 50,405 


16,856,437 16,345,983 


24,447,625 23,929,694 
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Restated 
LIABILITIES 2010 2009 


CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 1,298,931 $ 1,071,807 
Due to municipality 291,922 258,797 
Customer deposits 118,128 29,031 
Accrued wages 15,083 32,996 
Accrued interest 4,314 5,803 
Accrued liabilities 104,199 59,246 
Commitment to community 129,683 106,450 
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 


Current portion of revenue bonds 350,000 530,000 
Accrued interest 74,641 79,328 


Total Current Liabilities 2,386,901 2,173,458 


NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds 6,280,000 6,630,000 
Accrued sick leave 163,637 158,539 
Customer advances for construction 2,427 5,959 


Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,446,064 6,794,498 


Total Liabilities 8,832,965 8,967,956 


NET ASSETS 
Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,321,055 7,851,580 
Restricted 1,336,158 1,264,843 
Unrestricted 5,957,447 5,845,315 


TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 15,614,660 $ 14,961,738 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 21 







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Years Ended December 31,2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of electricity $ 14,012,469 $ 12,420,213 
Other 128,204 127,468 


Total Operating Revenues 14,140,673 12,547,681 


OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and maintenance 12,476,782 10,888,022 
Depreciation 865,950 792,269 


Total Operating Expenses 13,342,732 11,680,291 


OPERATING INCOME 797,941 867,390 


NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 208,297 369,993 
Interest expense (303,054) (325,283) 
Amortization of debt issuance costs (5,834) (4,033) 
Miscellaneous revenues (expenses) 10,323 (5,844~ 


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (90,268) 34,833 


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 707,673 902,223 


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 267,667 38,002 
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (30,496) (32,442) 
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (291,922) (258,797) 


CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 652,922 648,986 


NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 14,961,738 14,312,752 


NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 15,614,660 $ 14,961,738 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 22 







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Received from customers $ 13,914,342 $ 12,394,609 
Received for street lighting 131,157 129,151 
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (11,506,180) (10,114,074) 
Paid to employees for operating payroll (846,254) (807,264) 
Customer deposit 89,097 4,042 


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,782,162 1,606,464 


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (258,797) (237,414) 
Transfers to other funds (30,496) (32,442) 


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (289,293) (269,856) 


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,039,935) (1,281,384) 
Received from the sale of capital assets 23,753 12,820 
Capital contributions received 164,635 28,998 
Debt retired (530,000) (500,000) 
Interest paid (307,567) (325,624) 


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,689,114) (2,065,190) 


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investments purchased (642,000) (2,733,928) 
Investments sold and matured 1,821,212 3,139,050 
Dividends/(Investment) in ATC 15,087 (21,532) 
Investment income 183,088 265,902 


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 1,377,387 649,492 


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,181,142 (79,090) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 2,218,907 2,297,997 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 3,400,049 $ 2,218,907 


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ 25,209 $ 104,198 
Capital grant accrued $ 99,500 $ 
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Restated 
2010 2009 


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 


Operating income $ 797,941 $ 867,390 
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 10,323 (5,844) 
Noncash items in operating income 


Depreciation 865,950 792,269 
Depreciation charged to clearing and other uti lities 39,600 63,600 


Changes in assets and liabilities 
Customer accounts receivable (122,224) (21,214) 
Other account receivable 23,062 17,338 
Due from municipality (1,110) (17,830) 
Materials and supplies 6,791 8,379 
Prepayments 422 (25,177) 
Accounts payable 16,939 (8,551) 
Customer deposits 89,097 4,042 
Accrued sick leave 5,098 (2,215) 
Other current liabilities 27,040 (71,038) 
Commitment to community 23,233 5,315 


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,782,162 $ 1,606,464 


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS ACCOUNTS 


Cash and investments $ 5,318,499 $ 5,355,995 
Redemption account 339,705 481,077 
Reserve account 1,046,094 838,094 
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000 
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 103,717 103,498 
Sick leave reserve account 97,000 97,000 


Total Cash and Investments 6,930,015 6,900,664 
Less: Noncash equivalents (3,529,966) (4,681,757) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 3,400,049 $ 2,218,907 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 24 







WATER UTILITY 







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 
December 31,2010 and 2009 


ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 


Cash and investments 
Interest receivable 
Restricted Assets 


Redemption account 
Customer accounts receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 


Total Current Assets 


NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Restricted Assets 


Reserve account 
Depreciation account 


Other Assets 
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 
Sick leave reserve account 
Non-utility property (net) 


Capital Assets 
Plant in service 
Accumulated depreciation 
Construction work in progress 


Total Non-Current Assets 


Total Assets 


$ 


Restated 
2010 2009 


675,467 $ 593,894 
5,178 4,968 


111,922 97,287 
193,105 165,728 


4,413 4,455 
27,101 33,175 


9,470 9,623 
1,026,656 909,130 


349,660 235,660 
25,000 25,000 


367,089 366,870 
79,861 79,861 
56,318 60,598 


16,532,248 14,908,422 
(4,501,174) (4,169,917) 


45,331 240,812 
12,954,333 11,747,306 


13,980,989 12,656,436 
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Restated 
LIABILITIES 2010 2009 


CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 9,832 $ 9,564 
Due to municipality 259,162 228,514 
Accrued wages 13,218 11,466 
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 


Current portion of revenue bonds 168,632 115,000 
Accrued interest 17,520 15,794 


Total Current Liabilities 468,364 380,338 


NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds 2,441,386 2,035,000 
Accrued sick leave 85,691 73,672 


Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,527,077 2,108,672 


Total Liabilities 2,995,441 2,489,010 


NET ASSETS 
Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,466,387 8,829,317 
Restricted 469,062 342,153 
Unrestricted 1,050,099 995,956 


TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 10,985,548 $ 10,167,426 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 26 







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Years Ended December 31,2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of water $ 1,535,259 $ 1,298,450 
Other 23,582 21,963 


Total Operating Revenues 1,558,841 1,320,413 


OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and maintenance 725,930 708,094 
Depreciation 327,160 321,225 


Total Operating Expenses 1,053,090 1,029,319 


OPERATING INCOME 505,751 291,094 


NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 68,129 134,766 
Interest expense (98,444) (95,733) 
Miscellaneous expenses ~4,280) (4,280) 


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (34,595) 34,753 


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 471,156 325,847 


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 612,176 3,421 
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (6,048) (5,256) 
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (259,162) (228,514) 


CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 818,122 95,498 


NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 10,167,426 10,071,928 


NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 10,985,548 $ 10,167,426 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 27 







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31,2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Received from customers $ 1,531 ,506 $ 1,304,703 
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (425,528) (422,356) 
Paid to employees for operating payroll ~252,779) ~284,516} 


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 853,199 597,831 


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (228,514) (211,710) 
Transfers to other funds (6,048) ~5 , 256) 


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (234,562) (216,966} 


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,453,311) (835,671 ) 
Received from the sale of capital assets 1,706 
Capital contributions received 612,176 3,421 
Debt proceeds 575,018 
Debt retired (115,000) (80,000) 
Interest paid (96,718) ~96,448} 


NefCash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (476,129) (1,008,698) 


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investments purchased (1 ,369,931 ) 
Investments sold and matured 136,126 1,854,367 
Investment income 61,542 83,868 


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 197,668 568,304 


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 340,176 (59,529) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 17,382 76,911 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 357,558 $ 17,382 


NONCASH CAP IT AL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ 13,133 $ 6,756 
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Restated 
2010 2009 


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 


Operating income $ 505,751 $ 291,094 
Noncash items in operating income 


Depreciation 327,160 321 ,225 
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 27,357 30,831 


Changes in assets and liabilities 
Customer accounts receivable (27,377) (14,014) 
Other account receivable 42 (4,389) 
Due from municipality 2,693 
Materials and supplies 6,074 2,768 
Prepayments 153 (9,061) 
Accounts payable 268 (26,789) 
Accrued wages 1,752 936 
Accrued sick leave 12,019 2,537 


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 853,199 $ 597,831 


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS ACCOUNTS 


Cash and investments $ 675,467 $ 593,894 
Redemption account 111,922 97,287 
Reserve account 349,660 235,660 
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000 
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 367,089 366,870 
Sick leave reserve account 79,861 79,861 


Total Cash and Investments 1,608,999 1,398,572 
Less: Noncash equivalents (1,251,441) (1,381 ,190) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 357,558 $ 17,382 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 29 
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STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 
December 31,2010 and 2009 


ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 


Cash and investments 
Interest receivable 
Restricted Assets 


Redemption account 
Customer accounts receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Prepayments 


Total Current Assets 


NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Restricted Assets 


Depreciation account 
Replacement account 
Construction account 


Other Assets 
Sick leave reserve account 


Capital Assets 
Plant in service 
Accumulated depreciation 
Construction work in progress 


Total Non-Current Assets 


Total Assets 


2010 


$ 1,726,300 
2,471 


427,323 
234,352 


1,547 
11,838 


2,403,831 


33,283 
1,037,836 


123 


61,330 


21,822,945 
(7,246,797) 


63,761 
15,772,481 


18,176,312 


Restated 
2009 


$ 1,639,038 
2,400 


432,003 
264,423 


1,595 
12,029 


2,351,488 


33,283 
777,779 


123 


61,330 


21,646,283 
(6,605,232) 


2,408 
15,915,974 


18,267,462 
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Restated 
LIABILITIES 2010 2009 


CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 56,722 $ 40 
Accrued wages 15,488 14,621 
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 


Current portion of revenue bonds 611 ,788 593,657 
Accrued interest 22,747 25,766 


Total Current Liabilities 706,745 634,084 


NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds 4,183,666 4,795,455 
Accrued sick leave 93,331 82,291 


Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,276,997 4,877,746 


Total Liabilities 4,983,742 5,511 ,830 


NET ASSETS 
Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,844,578 9,654,470 
Restricted 1,475,695 1,217,299 
Unrestricted 1,872,297 1,883,863 


TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 13,192,570 $ 12,755,632 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 31 







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Years Ended December 31,2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


OPERATING REVENUES 
Treatment charges $ 1,994,669 $ 2,110,492 
Other 76,051 88,074 


Total Operating Revenues 2,070,720 2,198,566 


OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and maintenance 902,642 920,301 
Depreciation 649,400 636,277 


Total Operating Expenses 1,552,042 1,556,578 


OPERATING INCOME 518,678 641,988 


NON·OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 60,772 23,852 
I nterest expense (142,512) (160,784) 


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (81 ,740) (136,932) 


CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 436,938 505,056 


NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 12,755,632 12,250,576 


NET ASSETS· END OF YEAR $ 13,192,570 $ 12,755,632 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 32 







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY 


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31,2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Received from customers $ 2,100,839 $ 2,226,097 
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (541,818) (545,719) 
Paid to employees for operating payroll (323,422) p97,445~ 


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,235,599 1,282,933 


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (214,544) (808,292) 
Debt retired (593,658) (576,069) 
Interest paid (145,531 ~ (163,358) 


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (953,733) (1,547,719) 


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investments purchased (247,000) (1,147,412) 
Investments sold and matured 500,000 756,829 
I nvestment income 40,327 43,985 


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 293,327 (346,598) 


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 575,193 (611,384) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 1,808,045 2,419,429 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 2,383,238 $ 1,808,045 


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ 8,545 $ p1,901~ 
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Restated 
2010 2009 


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 


Operating income $ 518,678 $ 641,988 
Noncash items in operating income 


Depreciation 649,400 636,277 
Changes in assets and liabilities 


Customer accounts receivable 30,071 24,753 
Other account receivable 48 (1,595) 
Due from municipality 4,373 
Prepayments 191 (11,311) 
Accounts payable 29,190 (10,975) 
Accrued sick leave 11 ,040 2,704 
Other current liabilities (3,019) (3,281) 


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,235,599 $ 1,282,933 


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS ACCOUNTS 


Cash and investments $ 1,726,300 $ 1,639,038 
Redemption account 427,323 432,003 
Depreciation account 33,283 33,283 
Replacement account 1,037,836 777,779 
Construction account 123 123 
Sick leave reserve account 61,330 61,330 


Total Cash and Investments 3,286,195 2,943,556 
Less: Noncash equivalents (902,957) (1,135,511) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 2,383,238 $ 1,808,045 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 34 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2010 and 2009 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 


 
The financial statements of Stoughton Utilities (utilities) have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles g enerally ac cepted i n t he U nited States of  A merica as  appl ied t o ent erprise f unds of  
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  
 
The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the utilities are described below. 
    
 REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The utilities are separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (municipality). The utilities are 
managed by a utilities committee. The utilities provide electric, water and wastewater service to properties 
within the m unicipality. The ut ilities a lso pr ovide e lectric s ervice to t he T ownships of D unkirk, D unn, 
Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland. 
 
The electric and water ut ilities operate under s ervice rules and rates es tablished b y the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). The wastewater utility operates under rules and rates established by 
the utilities committee. The utilities are also regulated by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 
 
 MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
 
The utilities are presented as enterprise funds of the municipality. Enterprise funds are used to account 
for oper ations t hat are f inanced a nd o perated i n a manner s imilar t o pr ivate business or  w here t he 
governing body has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and net income is 
necessary for management accountability. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, as sets and liabilities r esulting f rom ex change and exchange-like t ransactions ar e r ecognized 
when the exchange takes place.  
 
Private-sector s tandards of accounting and financial r eporting i ssued prior to D ecember 1,  1989, 
generally are followed in the utilities' financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict 
with or  c ontradict gui dance of  t he G overnmental A ccounting S tandards B oard. Utilities al so h ave t he 
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance subject to this same limitation. The utilities have 
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.  
 
Preparation of  f inancial s tatements i n c onformity with ac counting pr inciples ge nerally accepted in t he 
United States of  America r equires m anagement t o m ake es timates and assumptions t hat af fect t he 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
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 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
 
  Deposits and Investments 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents have original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Investment of utilities’ funds is restricted by state statutes. Investments are limited to: 
 
 1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or 


less. 


 2.  Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or 
school district of  t he s tate. A lso, bonds i ssued b y a local ex position di strict, l ocal pr ofessional 
baseball p ark di strict, l ocal professional f ootball s tadium district, l ocal c ultural ar ts di strict or  b y 
the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. 


 3.  Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government. 


 4.  The local government investment pool. 


 5.  Any s ecurity m aturing i n s even years or  less an d ha ving t he h ighest or  s econd hi ghest r ating 
category of a nationally recognized rating agency. 


 6.  Securities of  an ope n en d management i nvestment c ompany or  i nvestment t rust, s ubject t o 
various conditions and investment options. 


 7.  Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions. 
 
The utilities h ave a dopted an investment po licy. T hat po licy f ollows t he s tate s tatute f or al lowable 
investments. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current t ransaction bet ween willing parties. F air v alues ar e based on  qu oted m arket pr ices. No 
investments are r eported a t am ortized c ost. A djustments nec essary t o r ecord investments at  f air value 
are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income. Market values 
may have changed significantly after year end. 
 
  Receivables/Payables 
 
Transactions bet ween t he ut ilities an d ot her f unds of  t he m unicipality that ar e r epresentative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year end are referred to as advances to/from other funds. 
All other outstanding ba lances between the ut ilities and other f unds of  the m unicipality are reported as  
due to/from other funds. 
 
The ut ilities have the r ight under Wisconsin statutes to place delinquent electric, water and wastewater 
bills on the tax roll for collection for properties within the municipality. As such, no allowance for 
uncollectible customer accounts is considered necessary. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (cont.) 
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  Materials and Supplies  
 
Materials a nd s upplies ar e gen erally used f or c onstruction, operation a nd m aintenance work, not  f or 
resale. They are valued at the lower of cost or market utilizing the average cost method and charged to 
construction or expense when used. 
  
  Restricted Assets 
 
Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are required by 
bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so 
classified.  
   
  Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC) 
 
The electric utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct, 
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns less than 1/2 of 1 
percent of ATC. 
 
The i nvestment ear ns dividends quarterly, s ome of  w hich are paid in c ash a nd s ome of  w hich ar e 
required to b e r einvested. From t ime to t ime, t he ut ility has  the opt ion t o c ontribute a dditional f unds to 
maintain t heir pr oportionate s hare of  o wnership. The as set i s v alued at or iginal c ost p lus a dditional 
contributions and reinvested dividends.  
 
  Sick Leave Reserve Account 
 
Upon retirement, these funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees. 
 
  Non-Utility Property 
 
Electric utility non-utility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental 
property with a balance of  $91 ,458 at  D ecember 31,  20 10 and 200 9. Water ut ility non-utility pr operty 
consists of  a par k shelter with a b alance of  $107, 000 at  December 31,  2010 and 200 9. The c osts are 
being amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful life. 
 
       Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are generally defined by the utilities as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
 
Capital assets of the utilities are recorded at cost or the fair market value at the time of contribution to the 
utilities. Major outlays for utilities plant are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during 
the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the capital assets constructed, net of interest 
earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Capital assets in service are depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (cont.) 
 
  Capital Assets (cont.) 
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Electric Plant 


Years  
   


Transmission  33  
Distribution  25 - 54  
General  5 - 30  
    


Water Plant    
Source of supply  34  
Pumping  23 - 31  
Water treatment  30 - 31  
Transmission and distribution  18 - 77  
General  4 - 34  
    


Wastewater Plant    
Collecting system  100  
Collecting system pumping  25 - 50  
Treatment and disposal  15 - 40  
General  5 - 20  


 
  Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 
 
Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only 
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements. Vested vacation and sick leave pay is 
accrued when earned in the financial statements. The liability is liquidated from general operating 
revenues of the utilities.  
 
  Customer Advances for Construction 
 
The bal ance r epresents f ees c ollected f or f uture c apital i mprovements. The f ees m ay be refundable 
based on rules filed with the PSCW or statutory requirements.  
 
     Commitment to Community 
 
The electric utility charges fees to all customers as required by the 1999 Energy Reliability Act and 2005 
Act 141. Revenues generated from the fees are used to fund energy conservation and low-income energy 
assistance ( "Commitment t o Community") programs. The ut ility i s ac ting as  an agen t adm inistering the 
program so revenues and expenses associated with the program are recorded as a current liability on the 
statement of net assets. 
 
  Customer Deposits  
 
This account represents amounts deposited with the utilities by customers as security for payment of bills. 
 
  Accrued liabilities 
 
The balance r epresents c ollections of  v arious p ayroll a nd s ales t axes d ue to t he s tate and f ederal 
government.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (cont.) 
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  Long-Term Obligations 
 
Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as utilities liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest 
method. Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the 
life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.  
  
 REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 
The utilities distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with the utilities' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the utilities are charges 
to customers for sales and  services. Operating expenses for enterprise f unds include the cost of  sales 
and s ervices, adm inistrative ex penses, an d depr eciation o n c apital as sets. A ll r evenues an d ex penses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
  Charges for Services 
 
Billings are rendered and recorded m onthly based on metered usage. The ut ilities do ac crue revenues 
beyond billing dates.  
  
Current el ectric r ates w ere appr oved b y t he P SCW on J anuary 2, 200 7. The r ates ar e des igned t o 
provide a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective September 1, 2010. The rates are designed to 
earn a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective July 5, 2007.  
  
    Capital Contributions 
 
Cash an d c apital as sets ar e c ontributed t o t he utilities f rom c ustomers, t he m unicipality or ex ternal 
parties. The value of  pr operty c ontributed t o t he utilities i s reported as  r evenue on the s tatements of  
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.  
 
  Transfers 
 
Transfers include the payment in lieu of taxes to the municipality and other operating transfers. 
 
 EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The G overnmental A ccounting S tandards B oard ( GASB) has  ap proved G ASB Statement N o. 60 , 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements and S tatement No. 61,  The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. Application of these standards may restate portions of these 
financial statements.  
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 COMPARATIVE DATA 
 
Certain am ounts presented in the pr ior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent 
with the current year’s presentation.  
 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 


 
 Carrying Value as of 


  
 


December 31,   
   2010   2009  


Checking and Savings 


Risks  


$ 4,521,297  $ 2,447,381  Custodial credit risk 
LGIP  1,618,798   1,841,204  Credit and interest rate risks 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  2,670,519  3,239,224  Custodial credit, credit, 


concentration, and interest 
rate risks 


U.S. Agency Securities  1,965,500   2,678,848  Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Corporate Bonds  1,048,345   1,035,385  Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Petty Cash   750   750  


 Totals $ 11,825,209  $ 11,242,792   
 


Deposits i n eac h l ocal a nd ar ea bank ar e i nsured by t he F DIC i n t he am ount of $250, 000 f or i nterest 
bearing and unlimited for non-interest bearing accounts. 
 
Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund (SDGF) in the amount of $400,000. 
However, d ue t o t he r elatively s mall s ize of  t he G uarantee F und i n r elationship t o t he t otal de posits 
covered and ot her legal i mplications, r ecovery of  m aterial pr incipal l osses m ay not be s ignificant t o 
individual municipalities.  
 
The utilities may also maintain separate cash and investment accounts at the same financial institutions 
utilized by the municipality. Federal depository insurance and the SDGF apply to all municipal accounts, 
and ac cordingly, t he am ount of  i nsured f unds i s not  det erminable f or t he ut ilities al one. Therefore, 
coverage for the ut ilities may be r educed. Investment income on c ommingled investments of  the ent ire 
municipality is allocated based on average investment balances.  
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$500,000 of the utilities' investments have coverage from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation 
(SIPC).  
 
In addition, the utilities, with the city, have collateral or depository insurance agreements in the amount of 
$4,389,470 at December 31, 2010 and $5,292,470 at December 31, 2009. 
 
The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and 
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange C ommission, bu t oper ates und er t he s tatutory au thority of Wisconsin C hapter 25.  T he S IF 
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw 
their f unds in t otal on  on e da y's notice. A t D ecember 31,  2 010 and 20 09, t he fair v alue of t he LG IP's 
assets were substantially equal to the utilities' share. 


Custodial Credit Risk 


Deposits 


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the utilities' deposits may 
not be returned to the utilities. 


The utilities maintain certain deposits at the same institutions as the municipality. The custodial credit risk 
pertaining specifically to the utilities' resources at these institutions cannot be determined individually for 
those accounts. The following is a summary of the utilities' total deposit balances at these institutions. 


 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 
Investments 
 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
utilities will no t be able t o r ecover t he value of i ts i nvestments or  c ollateral s ecurities t hat ar e in t he 
possession of an outside party. 
 


Bank Carrying Bank Carrying 
Balance Value Balance Value 


Wells Fargo 4,056,266 $      4,023,157 $       2,291,453 $        2,201,453 $      
Wells Fargo Brokerage 928                  928                   928                    928                  
Ameriprise Financial 497,212           497,212            245,000              245,000            
Deposits Exposed to Custodial  
  Credit Risk 4,554,406 $      4,521,297 $       2,537,381 $        2,447,381 $      


2010 2009 
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As of  D ecember 31,  20 10 and 2 009 the utilities' i nvestments w ere ex posed t o c ustodial c redit r isk as  
follows: 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed   2010  


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty 


2009  


$ 1,965,500  $ 2,678,848  


Corporate Bonds – GE Capital   


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty  $ 1,048,345  $ 1,035,385  


Negotiable Certificates of Deposit   


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty  $ 2,670,519  $  3,239,224  
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


Credit Risk 
 


Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
 
As of December 31, 2010, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aaa 
Corporate Bonds AA+ Aa2 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  


 
As of December 31, 2009, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aaa 
Corporate Bonds AA A2 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  
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The utilities held investments in the Local Government Investment Pool which is an external pool that is 
not rated. 


 
The utilities' investment policy follows state statutes. There is one investment which does not meet these 
standards as it is rated below the highest two categories. 
 


Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in 
a single issuer. 
 
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the utilities' investment portfolio was concentrated as follows: 
 
   


Issuer 
Percentage of Portfolio  


Investment Type   2010  


FHLB 


2009  


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed -% 7.19% 
Ginnie Mae U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed 16.62% 20.75% 
GE Capital Corporate bond   8.87% 14.89% 


 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 


 
Interest Rate Risk 


 
Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
 
As of December 31, 2010, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 1,965,500  $ - $ -  $ 1,965,500  
Corporate Bonds  1,048,345   -   1,048,345   -  
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit   2,670,519   1,386,000   1,284,519  


Totals 


-  


$ 5,684,364  $ 1,386,000  $ 2,332,864  $ 1,965,500  
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Investment Type Fair Value 


Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Years) 


External investment pools $ 1,618,798  .20 
 
As of December 31, 2009, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 2,678,848  $ -  $ 500,000  $ 2,178,848  
Corporate Bonds  1,035,385   -   512,750   522,635  
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit   3,239,224   838,816   2,152,532  


Totals 


247,876  


$ 6,953,457  $ 838,816  $ 3,165,282  $ 2,949,359  
 


Investment Type Fair Value 


Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Years) 


External investment pools $ 1,841,204  .24 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 


 
The following is a schedule of interfund balances for the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009: 
 
   2010  
 


2009  
 Due To   Due From   Amount   Principal Purpose   Amount  


 
Principal Purpose  


     
Municipality Water  utility $ 259,162  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
$ 228,514  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Electric utility Municipality  32,918  Operating  31,808  Operating 
Municipality Electric utility  291,922  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 258,797  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
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The following is a schedule of transfer balances for the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009: 
 
   2010  
 


2009  
 To   From   Amount   Principal Purpose   Amount  


 
Principal Purpose  


     
Municipality Electric utility $ 30,496  Operating  $ 32,442  Operating 
Municipality Electric utility  291,922  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 258,797  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Municipality Water utility  6,048  Operating  5,256  Operating 
Municipality Water utility  259,162  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 228,514  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 


NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS 


 
 Restricted Accounts 
 
Certain pr oceeds of  t he ut ilities' debt , as  well as c ertain r esources s et as ide f or t heir r epayment, ar e 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is limited. The following 
accounts are reported as restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments  
   over the next twelve months.  
 
 Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future  
   deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 
 Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and  
   replacement or make up potential future deficiencies in the  
   redemption account. 
 
 Construction - Used to report debt proceeds restricted for use in construction. 
 
 Replacement Account 
 
As a c ondition of  r eceiving s tate and f ederal f unds f or wastewater pl ant c onstruction, t he ut ilities ha ve 
established an account for replacement of certain mechanical equipment.  
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 Restricted Net Assets 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of electric restricted net assets: 
 


   2010  
Restricted Assets 


2009  
  


Redemption account $ 339,705  $ 481,077  
Reserve account  1,046,094   838,094  
Depreciation account   25,000  


Total Restricted Assets 
25,000  


  1,410,799  
 


1,344,171  
  


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets   (74,641)  
 


(79,328)  
  


Total Restricted Net Assets as Calculated $ 1,336,158  $ 1,264,843  
 
The following calculation supports the amount of water restricted net assets: 
 


   2010  
Restricted Assets 


2009  
  


Redemption account $ 111,922  $ 97,287  
Reserve account  349,660   235,660  
Depreciation account   25,000  


Total Restricted Assets 
25,000  


  486,582  
 


357,947  
  


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets   (17,520)  
 


(15,794)  
  


Total Restricted Net Assets as Calculated $ 469,062  $ 342,153  
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The following calculation supports the amount of wastewater restricted net assets: 
 


   2010  
Restricted Assets 


2009  
  


Redemption account $ 427,323  $ 432,003  
Depreciation account  33,283   33,283  
Replacement account  1,037,836   777,779  
Construction account   123  


Total Restricted Assets 
123  


  1,498,565  


Less:  Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues 


1,243,188  


  
Construction account   (123)  


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets 


(123)  


  (22,747)  


Total Restricted Net Assets as Calculated 


(25,766)  


$ 1,475,695  $ 1,217,299  
 


NOTE 5 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS 


 
 Electric Utility 
 
A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2010 follows: 
 
  Balance         Balance  
   01/01/10   Increases   Decreases  
Capital assets, not being depreciated 


12/31/10  
    


Land and land rights $ 573,461  $ -  $ -  
 


$ 573,461  
    


Capital assets being depreciated         
Transmission  15,019   -   -   15,019  
Distribution  19,499,743   614,512   75,734   20,038,521  
General   3,464,187   622,152   180,519  


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


3,905,820  
 
 


 
22,978,949   


 
1,236,664   


 
256,253   


 
23,959,360  


    
Total Capital Assets   23,552,410   1,236,664   256,253  


 
24,532,821  


    
Less:  Accumulated depreciation         


Transmission  (19,366)   -   -   (19,366)  
Distribution  (6,758,531)   (726,744)   90,069   (7,395,206)  
General   (1,819,172)   (202,559)   180,519  


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


(1,841,212)  
 
 


 
(8,597,069)   


 
(929,303)   


 
270,588   


 
(9,255,784)  


    
Construction in progress   50,405   851,018   874,741  
 


26,682  
    


Net Capital Assets $ 15,005,746    $ 15,303,719  
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A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2009 follows: 
 
  Balance         Balance  
   01/01/09   Increases   Decreases  
Capital assets, not being depreciated 


12/31/09  
    


Land and land rights $ 220,797  $ 352,664  $ -  
 


$ 573,461  
    


Capital assets being depreciated         
Transmission  15,019   -   -   15,019  
Distribution  18,950,697   633,121   84,075   19,499,743  
General   2,861,436   602,751   -  


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


3,464,187  
 
 


 
21,827,152   


 
1,235,872   


 
84,075   


 
22,978,949  


    
Total Capital Assets   22,047,949   1,588,536   84,075  


 
23,552,410  


    
Less:  Accumulated depreciation         


Transmission  (19,366)   -   -   (19,366)  
Distribution  (6,147,373)   (709,078)   97,920   (6,758,531)  
General   (1,659,561)   (159,611)   -  


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


(1,819,172)  
 
 


 
(7,826,300)   


 
(868,689)   


 
97,920   


 
(8,597,069)  


    
Construction in progress   347,181   1,514,812   1,811,588  
 


50,405  
    


Net Capital Assets $ 14,568,830    $ 15,005,746  
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 Water Utility 
 
A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2010 follows: 
 
  Balance         Balance  
   01/01/10   Increases   Decreases  
Capital assets, not being depreciated 


12/31/10  
    


Land and land rights $ 24,841  $ -  $ -  
 


$ 24,841  
    


Capital assets being depreciated         
Source of supply  563,994   -   -   563,994  
Pumping  1,506,363   19,701   -   1,526,064  
Water treatment  90,763   -   -   90,763  
Transmission and distribution  11,815,154   1,607,620   9,270   13,413,504  
General   907,307   21,471   15,696  


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


913,082  
 
 


 
14,883,581   


 
1,648,792   


 
24,966   


 
16,507,407  


    
Total Capital Assets   14,908,422   1,648,792   24,966  


 
16,532,248  


    
Less:  Accumulated depreciation         


Source of supply  (253,729)   (16,356)   -   (270,085)  
Pumping  (919,032)   (59,798)   -   (978,830)  
Water treatment  (79,614)   (2,981)   -   (82,595)  
Transmission and distribution  (2,469,153)   (233,979)   9,270   (2,693,862)  
General   (448,389)   (43,109)   15,696  


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


(475,802)  
 
 


 
(4,169,917)   


 
(356,223)   


 
24,966   


 
(4,501,174)  


    
Construction in progress   240,812   1,468,382   1,663,863  
 


45,331  
    


Net Capital Assets $ 10,979,317    $ 12,076,405  
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A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2009 follows: 
 
     
  Balance         Balance  
   01/01/09   Increases   Decreases  
Capital assets, not being depreciated 


12/31/09  
    


Land and land rights $ 24,841  $ -  $ -  
 


$ 24,841  
    


Capital assets being depreciated         
Source of supply  552,160   11,834   -   563,994  
Pumping  1,482,499   23,864   -   1,506,363  
Water treatment  90,763   -   -   90,763  
Transmission and distribution  11,472,082   349,667   6,595   11,815,154  
General   688,670   218,637   -  


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


907,307  
 
 


 
14,286,174   


 
604,002   


 
6,595   


 
14,883,581  


    
Total Capital Assets   14,311,015   604,002   6,595  


 
14,908,422  


    
Less:  Accumulated depreciation         


Source of supply  (237,545)   (16,184)   -   (253,729)  
Pumping  (860,192)   (58,840)   -   (919,032)  
Water treatment  (76,633)   (2,981)   -   (79,614)  
Transmission and distribution  (2,260,922)   (214,826)   6,595   (2,469,153)  
General   (389,164)   (59,225)   -  


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


(448,389)  
 
 


 
(3,824,456)   


 
(352,056)   


 
6,595   


 
(4,169,917)  


    
Construction in progress   9,143   696,394   464,725  
 


240,812  
    


Net Capital Assets $ 10,495,702    $ 10,979,317  
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 Wastewater Utility 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2010 follows: 
 
  Balance         Balance  
   01/01/10   Increases   Decreases  
 


12/31/10  
    


Capital assets being depreciated         
Collecting system $ 7,684,151  $ 137,958  $ -  $ 7,822,109  
Collecting system pumping  389,554   9,993   2,135   397,412  
Treatment and disposal  12,735,749   27,339   5,700   12,757,388  
General   836,829   9,207   -  


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


846,036  
 
 


 
21,646,283   


 
184,497   


 
7,835   


 
21,822,945  


    
Less:  Accumulated depreciation   (6,605,232)   (649,400)   7,835  
 


(7,246,797)  
    


Construction in progress   2,408   233,536   172,183  
 


63,761  
    


Net Capital Assets $ 15,043,459    $ 14,639,909  
 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2009 follows: 
 
  Balance         Balance  
   01/01/09   Increases   Decreases  
 


12/31/09  
    


Capital assets being depreciated         
Collecting system $ 7,264,526  $ 421,295  $ 1,670  $ 7,684,151  
Collecting system pumping  387,063   2,491   -   389,554  
Treatment and disposal  12,582,116   153,633   -   12,735,749  
General   559,216   277,613   -  


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


836,829  
 
 


 
20,792,921   


 
855,032   


 
1,670   


 
21,646,283  


    
Less:  Accumulated depreciation   (5,970,625)   (636,277)   1,670  
 


(6,605,232)  
    


Construction in progress   49,149   585,331   632,072  
 


2,408  
    


Net Capital Assets $ 14,871,445    $ 15,043,459  
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 


 
 Revenue Bonds - Electric 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding   
       Final   Interest   Original   Amount   
  Date   Purpose   Maturity   Rates   Amount   12/31/10  
       
 April 1, 2003  Electric system 


improvements 
 April 1, 2023  2.25 - 5.10% $ 4,580,000  $ 4,180,000   


September 
15, 2004  


Additions and 
improvements 


 April 1, 2010   2.00 - 3.50   2,090,000   -   


November 
15, 2006  


Electric system 
improvements 


 April 1, 2023   4.00 - 4.50   2,550,000   2,450,000   


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
 December 31  Principal   Interest  


 
Total  


   
2011 $ 350,000  $ 291,993  $ 641,993  
2012  375,000   278,243   653,243  
2013  400,000   263,368   663,368  
2014  450,000   246,968   696,968  
2015  450,000   227,868   677,868  
2016 - 2020  2,650,000   781,556   3,431,556  
2021 - 2023   1,955,000   135,665  


 
2,090,665  


     
Totals $ 6,630,000  $ 2,225,661  $ 8,855,661  


 
All utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue 
bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid f or 2010 and 20 09 were $837,567 and 
$825,624, r espectively. Total gross r evenues as  defined f or t he s ame per iods were $ 14,348,970 and 
$12,917,674, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 4.5% of gross 
revenues. 
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 Revenue Bonds - Water 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding   
       Final   Interest   Original   Amount   
  Date   Purpose   Maturity   Rates   Amount   12/31/10  
 
March 25, 
2003  


 
Additions and 


improvements 


 
 May 1, 2013  


  
3.50 - 4.80% 


 
$ 520,000  


 
$ 235,000  


 


November 
15, 2006  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2023   4.00 - 4.50   1,925,000   1,800,000   


January 27, 
2010  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2029   2.668   575,018   575,018  


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
 December 31  Principal   Interest  


 
Total  


   
2011 $ 168,632  $ 101,794  $ 270,426  
2012  179,263   94,742   274,005  
2013  184,910   87,146   272,056  
2014  150,575   80,277   230,852  
2015  151,257   74,273   225,530  
2016-2020  917,175   263,798   1,180,973  
2021-2025  712,180  68,775  780,955 
2026-2029   146,026   7,920  


 
153,946  


     
Totals $ 2,610,018  $ 778,725  $ 3,388,743  


 
All utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue 
bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid f or 2010 and 20 09 were $211,718 and 
$176,448, r espectively. Total gr oss r evenues as  def ined f or t he s ame per iods w ere $1 ,626,970 and 
$1,455,179, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 16.5% of gross 
revenues. 
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 Revenue Bonds - Wastewater 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding   
       Final   Interest   Original   Amount   
  Date   Purpose   Maturity   Rates   Amount   12/31/10  
       
March 9, 
1994  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2013   3.224 % $ 5,472,357  $ 1,162,798   


December 
22, 1999  


Wastewater interceptor  May 1, 2019   3.049   623,465   330,810   


July 12, 
2000  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2020   3.049   1,116,259   643,905   


September 
10, 2003  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2023   2.766   1,670,624   1,193,897   


June 27, 
2007  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2027   2.475   1,539,762   1,464,044   


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
 December 31  Principal   Interest  


 
Total  


   
2011 $ 611,788  $ 127,123  $ 738,911  
2012  630,475   108,150   738,625  
2013  649,737   88,589   738,326  
2014  256,735   75,084   331,819  
2015  263,891   67,829   331,720  
2016-2020  1,391,429   223,623   1,615,052  
2021-2025  785,956  68,378  854,334 
2026-2027   205,443   5,116  


 
210,559  


     
Totals $ 4,795,454  $ 763,892  $ 5,559,346  


 
All utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue 
bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid f or 2010 and 20 09 were $739,189 and 
$739,427, r espectively. Total gr oss r evenues as  def ined f or t he s ame per iods w ere $2, 131,492 and 
$2,222,418, respectively. Annual pr incipal and interest payments are expected to require 34% of  gross 
revenues. 
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 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Electric 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/10         12/31/10   Due Within  
   Balance   Additions   Reductions   Balance  
 


One Year  
          


Revenue bonds $ 7,160,000  $ -  $ 530,000  $ 6,630,000  $ 350,000  
Accrued sick leave  158,539   24,317   19,219   163,637   -  
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 


 
5,959   


 
61,552   


 
65,084   


 
2,427   


 
-  


     
Totals $ 7,324,498  $ 85,869  $ 614,303  $ 6,796,064  $ 350,000  


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/09         12/31/09   Due Within  
   Balance   Additions   Reductions   Balance  
 


One Year  
          


Revenue bonds $ 7,660,000  $ -  $ 500,000  $ 7,160,000  $ 530,000  
Accrued sick leave  160,754   24,432   26,647   158,539   -  
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 


 
14,963   


 
32,895   


 
41,899   


 
5,959   


 
-  


     
Totals $ 7,835,717  $ 57,327  $ 568,546  $ 7,324,498  $ 530,000  


 
 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Water 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/10         12/31/10   Due Within  
   Balance   Additions   Reductions   Balance  
 


One Year  
          


Revenue bonds $ 2,150,000  $ 575,018  $ 115,000  $ 2,610,018  $ 168,632  
Accrued sick leave   73,672   17,405   5,386   85,691  


 
-  


     
Totals $ 2,223,672  $ 592,423  $ 120,386  $ 2,695,709  $ 168,632  


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/09         12/31/09   Due Within  
   Balance   Additions   Reductions   Balance  
 


One Year  
          


Revenue bonds $ 2,230,000  $ -  $ 80,000  $ 2,150,000  $ 115,000  
Accrued sick leave   71,135   8,047   5,510   73,672  


 
-  


     
Totals $ 2,301,135  $ 8,047  $ 85,510  $ 2,223,672  $ 115,000  
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 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Wastewater 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/10         12/31/10   Due Within  
   Balance   Additions   Reductions   Balance  
 


One Year  
          


Revenue bonds $ 5,389,112  $ -  $ 593,658  $ 4,795,454  $ 611,788  
Accrued sick leave   82,291   17,390   6,350   93,331  


 
-  


     
Totals $ 5,471,403  $ 17,390  $ 600,008  $ 4,888,785  $ 611,788  


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/09         12/31/09   Due Within  
   Balance   Additions   Reductions   Balance  
 


One Year  
          


Revenue bonds $ 5,965,181  $ -  $ 576,069  $ 5,389,112  $ 593,657  
Accrued sick leave   79,587   10,513   7,809   82,291  


 
-  


     
Totals $ 6,044,768  $ 10,513  $ 583,878  $ 5,471,403  $ 593,657  


 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures 
 
The following i nformation i s pr ovided i n c ompliance w ith t he r esolutions c reating t he ut ilities' r evenue 
bonds: 
 
 Insurance 
 
The ut ilities ar e ex posed t o v arious r isks of  l oss r elated t o t orts, t heft of , dam age t o, or des truction of  
assets, errors and omissions, workers compensation, and health care of its employees. These risks are 
covered through the purchase of commercial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not 
exceeded c overage i n an y of t he l ast t hree years. T here w ere n o s ignificant r eductions i n c overage 
compared to the prior year. 
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The utilities are covered under the following insurance policies at December 31, 2010: 
 


  Type   Coverage  
 


Expiration  
   


Automobile $ 10,000,000  CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/11 
Excess Liability  5,000,000  CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/11 
Workers Compensation  5,000,000  CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/11 
  1,000,000  CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/11 
Boiler Insurance  100,000,000  CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/11 
Property  42,830,334  Wisconsin Local 2/1/11 
  Property Insurance  
  Fund  


 
 Debt Coverage - Electric  
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net  earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or 
other debt. The coverage requirement was met in 2010 and 2009 as follows: 
 


   2010   2009  
    
Operating revenues $ 14,140,673  $ 12,547,681   
Investment income  208,297   369,993   
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses   (12,476,782)   (10,888,022)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,872,188  $ 2,029,652   
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 704,728  $ 837,927   
Coverage factor   1.30   1.30  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 916,146  $ 1,089,305   


Actual Debt Coverage  2.66   2.42   
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 Debt Coverage - Water 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net  earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or 
other debt. The coverage requirement was met in 2010 and 2009 as follows: 
 


   2010   2009  
    
Operating revenues $ 1,558,841  $ 1,320,413   
Investment income  68,129   134,766   
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses   (725,930)   (708,094)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 901,040  $ 747,085   
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 274,005  $ 235,355   
Coverage factor   1.30   1.30  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 356,207  $ 305,962   


Actual Debt Coverage  3.04   3.17   
 
  Debt Coverage - Wastewater 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net  earnings) must exceed 1.1 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or 
other debt. The coverage requirement was in 2010 and 2009 as follows: 
 


   2010   2009  
    
Operating revenues $ 2,070,720  $ 2,198,566   
Investment income  60,772   23,852   
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses   (902,642)   (920,301)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,228,850  $ 1,302,117   
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 738,910  $ 739,427   
Coverage factor   1.10   1.10  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 812,801  $ 813,370   


Actual Debt Coverage  1.66   1.76   
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 Number of Customers - Electric 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2010 and 2009: 
 


   Customers  
 


Sales (000 kWh)  
  2010   2009   2010  


 
2009  


    
Residential  7,585   7,569   66,538   63,498  
General  774   771   24,349   17,254  
Small power  50   50   14,071   13,215  
Large power  9   9   9,663   9,894  
Industrial  7   7   28,994   24,379  
Street and highway lighting   6   6   935  
 


1,012  
    


Totals  8,431   8,412   144,550   129,252  
 
 Number of Customers - Water 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2010 and 2009: 
 


   Customers  
 


Sales (000 gals)  
  2010   2009   2010  


 
2009  


    
Residential  4,370   4,373   219,210   225,614  
Commercial  424   405   78,293   80,243  
Industrial  21   21   148,088   111,817  
Public authority 36 35 5,740 7,152 
Interdepartmental   2  2  45  
 


41 
    


Totals  4,851   4,836   451,376   424,867  
 
 Number of Customers - Wastewater 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2010 and 2009: 
 


   Customers  
 


Sales (000 gals)  
  2010   2009   2010  


 
2009  


    
Residential  4,365   4,344   219,059   225,276  
Commercial  388   380  77,612   78,758 
Industrial  17   17   25,046   47,391  
Public authority 24 24 3,709 5,389 
Interdepartmental   2  2  45  
 


41  
    


Totals  4,794   4,767   325,471   356,855  
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2010 and 2009 


 


NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.) 
 


Page 60 


 Utilities Budget    
 
The 2010 and 2009 utilities' budgets were prepared and approved as required by the bond resolutions.  
   


NOTE 7 - NET ASSETS  


 
GASB No. 34 requires the classification of net assets into three components - invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, 
including r estricted c apital as sets, net  of  ac cumulated depr eciation and r educed b y t he out standing 
balances of  a ny bonds, m ortgages, n otes, or ot her borrowings t hat are a ttributable t o t he ac quisition, 
construction, or  improvement of t hose assets. I f t here are s ignificant uns pent r elated debt proceeds at 
year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net 
assets component as the unspent proceeds. 
 
Restricted - This c omponent of  net  as sets c onsists of  c onstraints pl aced on  net  as set us e t hrough 
external c onstraints imposed b y c reditors ( such as  t hrough d ebt c ovenants), g rantors, c ontributors, or  
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted net assets - The component of net asset consist of net assets that do not meet the definition 
of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 
 
When bot h r estricted and unrestricted r esources ar e av ailable f or us e, i t i s t he u tilities' p olicy t o u se 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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The following calculation supports the electric net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt: 
 
   2010  
 


2009  
  


Plant in service $ 24,180,157  $ 23,552,410  
Accumulated depreciation  (9,255,784)   (8,597,069)  
Construction work in progress   26,682  


Sub-Totals 
50,405  


  14,951,055  
 


15,005,746  
  


Less:  Capital related debt   
Current portion of capital related long-term debt  350,000   530,000  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  6,280,000   6,630,000  
Unamortized debt issuance costs   -  


Sub-Totals 
(5,834)  


  6,630,000  
 


7,154,166  
  


Total Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related 
Debt 


 
$ 8,321,055  


 
$ 7,851,580  


 
The following calculation supports the water net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt: 
 
   2010  
 


2009  
  


Plant in service $ 16,532,248  $ 14,908,422  
Accumulated depreciation  (4,501,174)   (4,169,917)  
Construction work in progress   45,331  


Sub-Totals 
240,812  


  12,076,405  
 


10,979,317  
  


Less:  Capital related debt   
Current portion of capital related long-term debt  168,632   115,000  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  2,441,386   2,035,000  
Unamortized debt issuance costs   -  


Sub-Totals 
-  


  2,610,018  
 


2,150,000  
  


Total Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related 
Debt 


 
$ 9,466,387  


 
$ 8,829,317  
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The f ollowing c alculation s upports t he wastewater ne t as sets i nvested i n c apital as sets, net  of  r elated 
debt: 
 
   2010  
 


2009  
  


Plant in service $ 21,822,945  $ 21,646,283  
Accumulated depreciation  (7,246,797)   (6,605,232)  
Construction work in progress   63,761  


Sub-Totals 
2,408  


  14,639,909  
 


15,043,459  
  


Less:  Capital related debt   
Current portion of capital related long-term debt  611,788   593,657  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt   4,183,666  


Sub-Totals 
4,795,455  


  4,795,454  
 


5,389,112  
  


Add:  Unspent debt proceeds   
Construction funds   123  


 
123  


  
Total Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related 


Debt 
 
$ 9,844,578  


 
$ 9,654,470  


 


NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 


 
All eligible employees of the utilities participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (System), a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). All permanent 
employees expected t o work ov er 6 00 hours a year are e ligible t o participate in t he S ystem. C overed 
employees in the General category were required by statute to contribute 6.1% and 5.8% of their salary to 
the pl an i n 2 010 and 20 09, r espectively. E mployers generally m ake t hese c ontributions t o t he p lan on 
behalf of employees. Employers are required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to 
fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits. Covered payroll listed below is substantially the same 
as total payroll. 
 
Electric 
 


  
 


Year Ended December 31  
  2010   2009  


 
2008  


   
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 846,254  $ 815,578  $ 779,144  
Total Required Contributions $ 103,243  $ 94,607  $ 91,939  
Total Required Contributions  12.2%   11.6%   11.8%  
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Water 
  
 


Year Ended December 31  
  2010   2009  


 
2008  


   
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 252,779  $ 244,957  $ 262,521  
Total Required Contributions $ 30,839  $ 28,415  $ 30,977  
 Total Required Contributions  12.2%   11.6%   11.8%  


 
Wastewater 


  
 


Year Ended December 31  
  2010   2009  


 
2008  


   
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 323,422  $ 339,224  $ 310,839  
Total Required Contributions $ 39,458  $ 39,350  $ 36,679  
Total Required Contributions  12.2%   11.6%   11.8%  


 
Details of the plan are disclosed in the basic financial statements of the City of Stoughton. 
 


NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 


 
 Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy 
 
The el ectric ut ility is on e of 5 1 WPPI E nergy m ember municipalities l ocated t hroughout t he States of  
Wisconsin, I owa and M ichigan. O n December 1,  1 989, eac h i nitial WPPI Energy m ember c ommenced 
purchasing electric service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating 
Members ( long-term c ontract). U nder t he l ong-term contract, WPPI E nergy is obligated t o pr ovide a nd 
sell, and each m ember is obligated to t ake and pa y for, the electric power and energy required for the 
operation of each member's electric utility.  
 
The l ong-term contract r equires a ll WPPI E nergy m embers t o pa y f or po wer a nd en ergy r equirements 
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue 
requirement i ncluding p ower supply c osts, adm inistrative ex penses and d ebt service. WPPI E nergy's 
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting 
of r epresentatives f rom eac h m ember. T he members ha ve agr eed to c harge r ates t o r etail c ustomers 
sufficient t o m eet t heir WPPI Energy obligations. T he l ong-term c ontract pr ovides t hat a ll pa yments t o 
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of  the u tility pa yable from any operating and m aintenance 
fund established for that system. 
 
In 2 002, a ll WPPI E nergy m embers r atified a t hirteen year ex tension t o t heir or iginal thirty-five y ear 
contracts. The new contract expires at midnight on December 31, 2037. 
 
WPPI E nergy's out standing debt  s ervice obl igation t o be pai d b y i ts members t hrough their w holesale 
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract is $414 million as of December 31, 2010. 
 
 Claims and Judgments 
 
From time to time, the ut ilities are party to various pending c laims and legal proceedings. Although the 
outcome of s uch matters cannot be f orecasted with c ertainty, it i s t he op inion of management and t he 
utilities' l egal c ounsel t hat t he l ikelihood is r emote t hat a ny s uch c laims or  pr oceedings will have a  
material adverse effect on the utilities' financial position or results of operations. 
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NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT 


 
 Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC) 
  Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) 
                        
The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of 
the Wisconsin S tatutes. I t was c reated i n A ugust, 1 987 f or t he pur pose of  f acilitating t he or ganization, 
establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous municipalities as members. 
 
The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 19, 1987 under Section 
611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the municipalities 
which make up the membership of the WMIC. 
 
The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC 
plus adm inistrative ex penses w ill b e r ecovered t hrough pr emiums t o t he par ticipating p ool of  
municipalities. The municipality's share of such losses is less than 1%. 
 
Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of 
representatives e lected by eac h of  t hree c lasses of  par ticipants bas ed o n po pulation. T he m unicipality 
does not exercise any control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and 
board. 
 
Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC are available directly from:  Cities and Village Mutual 
Insurance Company, 1250 South Sunnyslope Road, Suite 105, Brookfield, WI  53005.  
 


NOTE 11 - SELF INSURANCE  


 
The utilities are part of the municipality's self-funded health insurance program with claims processed by 
an a dministrative f irm on behalf of  t he m unicipality. A s eparate f und h as b een es tablished into which 
deposits ar e m ade and ac tual c laims ar e pai d out . As par t of  t he pl an, a r einsurance po licy has bee n 
purchased which c overs c laims i n ex cess of  $45, 000 per  individual u p t o a m aximum of  $1, 000,000. 
Deposits t o t he s elf-insured f und i n excess of  t he c laims and ot her c osts pai d ar e r etained b y t he 
municipality. T he ut ilities' total c ontributions t o t he program dur ing t he years 20 10 and 2 009 were 
$283,197 and $230,646, respectively. Details of the plan can be found in the basic financial statements of 
the City of Stoughton. 
 


NOTE 12 – RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS  


 
The 2009 s tatements hav e been r estated t o adjust the a llocation of  el ectric s ervice c harges f or t he 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
       Electric  Water  
 


Wastewater 


Net Assets – December 31, 2009 (as reported)         $14,922,673      $10,147,893          $12,814,230 
Adjustment to 2009 operating expenses          $      39,065       $      19,533          ($      58,598) 
Net Assets – December 31, 2009 (as restated)         $14,961,738      $10,167,426          $12,755,632 
 
Net Income Increase (Decrease)          $      39,065       $      19,533          ($      58,598) 
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STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 


ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT 
December 31,2010 


Balance Balance 
1/1/2010 Additions Retirements 12/31/2010 


TRANSMISSION 
Land and land rights $ 1 $ $ $ 1 
Poles and fixtures 5,035 5,035 
Overhead conductors and devices 9,984 9,984 


Total Transmission 15,020 15,020 


DISTRIBUTION 
Land and land rights 220,796 220,796 
Structures and improvements 44,389 44,389 
Station eqUipment 3,939,723 78,628 4,018,351 
Poles, towers and fixtures 2,794,282 58,004 21,108 2,831,178 
Overhead conductors and devices 4,652,046 234,363 28,621 4,857,788 
Underground conduit 284,159 29,473 313,632 
Underground conductors and devices 2,400,371 75,666 4,875 2,471,162 
Line transformers 2,715,896 71,243 7,774 2,779,365 
Services 1,549,461 39,285 5,149 1,583,597 
Meters 611,842 15,121 57 626,906 
Street lighting and signal systems 507,574 12,729 8,150 512,153 


Total Distribution 19,720,539 614,512 75,734 20,259,317 


GENERAL 
Structures and improvements 1,551,260 84,689 1,635,949 
Office furniture and equipment 175,860 11,605 187,465 
Computer equipment 173,274 173,274 
Transportation equipment 274,768 15,414 49,184 240,998 
Stores equipment 9,984 9,984 
Tools, shop and garage eqUipment 64,576 64,576 
Laboratory equipment 50,236 50,236 
Power-operated equipment 826,506 505,454 131,335 1,200,625 
Communication eqUipment 58,270 58,270 
SCADA eqUipment 279,453 279,453 
Miscellaneous equipment 4,990 4,990 


Total General 3,464,187 622,152 180,519 3,905,820 


TOTAL ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT $ 23,199,746 $1,236,664 $ 256,253 $ 24,180,157 
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ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31 , 2010 and 2009 


OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of Electricity 


Residential 
Rural 
General service 
Large commercial and industrial 
Large power 
Industrial 
Public street and highway lighting 
Interdepartmental 


Total Sales of Electricity 
Other Operating Revenues 


Forfeited discounts 
Other 


Total Operating Revenues 


OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and Maintenance 


Other Power Supply 
Purchased power 


Transmission 
Operating supervision and engineering 
Station 
Overhead lines 
Underground lines 


Total Transmission 
Distribution 


Street lighting and signal system 
Meter 
Customer installations 
Miscellaneous 
Maintenance 


Structures 
Station equipment 
Overhead lines 
Underground lines 
Line transformers 
Street lighting and signal system 
Meters 
Miscellaneous 


Total Distribution 
Customer Accounts 


Meter reading 
Accounting and collecting labor 
Miscellaneous 


Total Water Treatment 


2010 


$ 4,915,645 
2,721 ,581 
1,404,524 
1,248,510 


944,496 
2,554,604 


131,157 
91 ,952 


14,012,469 


43,067 
85,137 


14,140,673 


10,952,336 


7,250 
1,664 


79,318 
39,282 


127,514 


19,660 
14,076 
24,313 
6,602 


58,175 
239,230 


23,731 
1,603 
3,461 


726 


391,577 


5,738 
186,828 


13,790 
206,356 


Restated 
2009 


$ 4,420,205 
2,456,175 
1,312,746 
1,070,508 


864,748 
2,100,050 


129,151 
66,630 


12,420,213 


42,411 
85,057 


12,547,681 


9,377,438 


5,940 
22,663 
69,121 
36,770 


134,494 


5,605 
17,335 


383 
23,292 


37,047 
224,802 


11,490 
1,790 
2,393 


424 


324,561 


4,783 
170,063 


4,976 
179,822 
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STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31,2010 and 2009 


OPERATING EXPENSES (cont'd) 2010 
Operation and Maintenance (cont'd) 


Administrative and General 
Saiaries $ 224,263 
Office supplies 35,303 
Outside services employed 53,692 
Property insurance 9,059 
Injuries and damages 25,597 
Employee pensions and benefits 193,240 
Regulatory commission 7,262 
Miscellaneous 10,701 
Rents 10,673 
Maintenance 77,509 


Total Administrative and General 647,299 
Taxes 151,700 


Total Operation and Maintenance 12,476,782 
Depreciation 865,950 


Total Operating Expenses 13,342,732 


OPERATING INCOME $ 797,941 


Restated 
2009 


$ 263,215 
22,802 
35,385 
19,642 
27,842 


255,968 


14,611 
10,964 
72,145 


722,574 
149,133 


10,888,022 
792,269 


11,680,291 


$ 867,390 
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STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS 
December 31, 2010 and 2009 


2010 


Utility Plant in Service 
Beginning of year $ 20,901,724 
'-. __ 1 _1:. _____ 


21,454,011 crlu UI year 


Average 21,177,868 


Accumulated DepreCiation 
Beginning of year (8,075,447) 
End of year (8,792,818) 


Average (8,434,133) 


Materials and Supplies 
Beginning of year 131,388 
End of year 124,597 


Average 127,993 


Regulatory Liability 
Beginning of year (310,244) 
End of year (288,084) 


Average (299,164) 


Customer Advances for Construction 
Beginning of year (5,959) 
End of year (2,427) 


Average (4,193) 


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE $ 12,568,371 


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS $ 603,164 


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 4.80 


2009 


$ 19,780,415 
20,901,724 
20,341,070 


(7,390,573) 
(8,075,447) 
(7,733,010) 


139,767 
131,388 
135,578 


(332,404) 
(310,244) 
(321,324) 


(14,963) 
(5,959) 


(10,461 ) 


$ 12,411,853 


$ 694,491 


5.60 


This schedule is computed based on Public Service Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting 
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB 
No. 34 as well as PSC order 05-US-1 05, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004. 
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STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


WATER UTILITY PLANT 
December 31,2010 


Balance Balance 
1/1/2010 Additions Retirements 12131/2010 


SOURCE OF SUPPLY 
Land and land rights $ 11,635 $ $ $ 11,635 
\Nells and spiings 563,994 563,994 


Total Source of Supply 575,629 575,629 


PUMPING 
Structures and improvements 576,342 576,342 
Other power production equipment 246,036 246,036 
Electric pumping equipment 565,195 19,701 584,896 
Other pumping equipment 118,789 118,789 


Total Pumping 1,506,362 19,701 1,526,063 


WATER TREATMENT 
Structures and improvements 13,671 13,671 
Water treatment equipment 77,092 77,092 


Total Water Treatment 90,763 90,763 


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION 
Land and land rights 13,206 13,206 
Structures and improvements 1,611 1,611 
Distribution reservoirs and standpipes 579,803 1,339,450 1,919,253 
Transmission and distribution mains 7,836,229 221,557 7,040 8,050,746 
Services 1,798,681 5,983 1,130 1,803,534 
Meters 573,091 11 ,507 584,598 
Hydrants 1,024,767 29,123 1,100 1,052,790 
Other transmission and distribution plant 973 973 


Total Transmission and Distribution 11,828,361 1,607,620 9,270 13,426,711 


GENERAL 
Land and land rights 405,290 405,290 
Office furniture and equipment 51,400 3,349 54,749 
Computer equipment 75,320 75,320 
Transportation equipment 41,296 18,122 15,696 43,722 
Stores equipment 2,187 2,187 
Tools, shop and garage equipment 35,109 35,109 
Power-operated equipment 102,034 102,034 
Communication equipment 35,668 35,668 
SCADA equipment 158,914 158,914 
Miscellaneous equipment 89 89 


Total General 907,307 21,471 15,696 913,082 


TOTAL WATER UTILITY PLANT $ 14,908,422 $1,648,792 $ 24,966 $ 16,532,248 
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STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31 , 2010 and 2009 


OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of Water 


Metered 
Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Public authorities 
Interdepartmental 


Total Metered Sales 
Private fire protection 
Public fire protection 


Total Sales of Water 
Other Operating Revenues 


Forfeited discounts 
Other 


Total Operating Revenues 


OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and Maintenance 


Source of Supply 
Operation labor 
Maintenance 


Wells and springs 
Total Source of Supply 


Pumping 
Fuel or purchased power for pumping 
Pumping labor 
Miscellaneous 
Maintenance 


Structures and improvements 
Pumping equipment 


Total Pumping 
Water Treatment 


Chemicals 
Operation labor 
Miscellaneous 
Maintenance 


Structures and improvements 
Water treatment equipment 


Total Water Treatment 


$ 


2010 


756,725 
178,173 
199,210 


15,828 
318 


1,150,254 
20,999 


364,006 
1,535,259 


4,607 
18,975 


1,558,841 


407 


833 
1,240 


105,529 
1,332 


18,419 


681 
15,125 


141,086 


14,676 
5,355 


336 


1,550 
4,558 


26,475 


$ 


Restated 
2009 


650,463 
152,417 
126,679 


15,857 
270 


945,686 
19,394 


333,370 
1,298,450 


4,380 
17,583 


1,320,413 


626 


4,529 
5,155 


92,658 
2,045 
8,390 


13,056 
116,149 


11,382 
1,835 


461 


1,450 
3,315 


18,443 
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STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31 , 2010 and 2009 


Restated 
OPERATING EXPENSES (cant'd) 2010 2009 


Operation and Maintenance (cont'd) 
Transmission and Distribution 


Transmission and distribution iines $ 3,252 $ 4,326 
Meters 7,811 6,140 
Miscellaneous 19,884 25,678 
Maintenance 


Reservoirs and standpipes 45,089 8,354 
Mains 50,903 81,829 
Services 28,028 29,152 
Meters 4,961 593 
Hydrants 17,244 21,441 
Miscellaneous 1,695 3,758 


Total Transmission and Distribution 178,867 181,271 
Customer Accounts 


Meter reading 3,697 2,110 
Accounting and collecting labor 63,943 48,496 


Total Customer Accounts 67,640 50,606 
Administrative and General 


Salaries 155,042 154,782 
Office supplies 11 ,657 7,251 
Outside services employed 4,189 29,389 
Property insurance 3,295 6,992 
Injuries and damages 10,718 10,316 
Employee pensions and benefits 102,052 97,372 
Regulatory commission 8,631 
Miscellaneous 4,234 1,864 
Rents 3,881 3,986 
Maintenance 2,020 


Total Administrative and General 295,068 322,603 
Taxes 15,554 13,867 


Total Operation and Maintenance 725,930 708,094 
Depreciation 327,160 321,225 


Total Operating Expenses 1,053,090 1,029,319 


OPERATING INCOME $ 505,751 $ 291,094 
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Utility Plant in Service 
Beginning of year 
End of year 


1\ •• _____ 


r\Vt::1 d~t:: 


Accumulated Depreciation 
Beginning of year 
End of year 


Average 


Materials and Supplies 
Beginning of year 
End of year 


Average 


Regulatory Liability 
Beginning of year 
End of year 


Average 


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY 


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS 
December 31,2010 and 2009 


$ 


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE $ 


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS $ 


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 


2010 2009 


9,502,316 $ 8,905,070 
10,512,396 9,502,316 
10,007,356 9,203,693 


(2,902,806) (3,330,497) 
(3,188,937} (2,902,806) 
(3,045,872) (3,116,652) 


33,175 35,943 
27,101 33,175 
30,138 34,559 


(479,196) (513,424) 
{444,968} (479,196} 
(462,082) (496,310) 


6,529,540 $ 5,625,290 


342,394 $ 151 ,167 


5.24 2.69 


This schedule is computed based on Public Service Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting 
wh ich differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB 
No. 34 as well as PSC order 05-US-1 05, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004. 
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STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY 


WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT 
December 31,2010 


Balance Balance 
1/1/2010 Additions Retirements 12/31/2010 


COLLECTING SYSTEM 
Land and land rights $ 100 $ $ $ 100 
Collecting mains 5,831 ,890 137,958 5,969,848 
Interceptor mains 1,803,210 1,803,210 
Force mains 48,951 48,951 


Total Collecting System 7,684,151 137,958 7,822,109 


COLLECTING SYSTEM PUMPING 
Structures and improvements 67,382 67,382 
Electric pumping equipment 300,773 9,993 2,135 308,631 
Other pumping equipment 21,399 21 ,399 


Total Collecting System Pumping 389,554 9,993 2,135 397,412 


TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL 
Structures and improvements 3,249,743 3,249,743 
Preliminary treatment equipment 1,255,681 9,190 5,700 1,259,171 
Primary treatment equipment 1,134,958 12,207 1,147,165 
Secondary treatment equipment 529,291 529,291 
Advanced treatment equipment 1,924,551 5,942 1,930,493 
Chlorination equipment 366,162 366,162 
Sludge treatment and disposal equipment 3,530,109 3,530,109 
Plant site pumping 685,498 685,498 
Flow metering and monitoring equipment 25,166 25,166 
Other treatment and disposal equipment 34,590 34,590 


Total Treatment and Disposal 12,735,749 27,339 5,700 12,757,388 


GENERAL 
Structures and improvements 232,233 232,233 
Office furniture and equipment 49,947 5,268 55,215 
Computer equipment 110,021 110,021 
Transportation equipment 404,517 404,517 
Communication equipment 14,442 14,442 
Other general equipment 25,669 3,939 29,608 


Total General 836,829 9,207 846,036 


TOTAL WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT $ 21 ,646,283 $184,497 $ 7,835 $21,822,945 
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STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY 


WASTEWATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 


Restated 
2010 2009 


OPERATING REVENUES 
Wastewater Revenues 


D_,...i,..,_ ...... :~1 '" 1,415,649 ... 1,446,074 I 'C~IUC l lllClI ~ ~ 


Commercial 428,949 432,263 
Industrial 127,345 201,249 
Public authorities 22,287 30,517 
Interdepartmental 439 389 


Total Wastewater Revenues 1,994,669 2,110,492 
Other Operating Revenues 


Forfeited discounts 6,491 8,979 
Miscellaneous 69,560 79,095 


Total Operating Revenues 2,070,720 2,198,566 


OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and Maintenance 


Operation 
Supervision and labor 1,205 1,282 
Power and fuel for pumping 92,294 83,115 
Sludge conditioning chemicals 12,686 12,686 
Other operating supplies 23,946 38,336 


-------
Transportation 


Total Operation 130,131 135,419 
Maintenance 


Collection system 83,331 91,400 
Treatment and disposal plant equipment 116,797 116,952 
General plant structures and equipment 68,753 57,032 


Total Maintenance 268,881 265,384 
Customer Accounts 


Accounting and collecting 135,558 130,857 
Administrative and General 


Salaries 74,617 79,589 
Office supplies 15,561 9,800 
Outside services employed 32,593 56,476 
Insurance 14,777 20,095 
Employee pensions and benefits 128,865 126,921 
Miscellaneous 18,140 10,669 
Rents 58,293 59,842 


Total Administrative and General 342,846 363,392 
Taxes 25,226 25,249 


Total Operation and Maintenance 902,642 920,301 
Depreciation 649,400 636,277 


Total Operating Expenses 1,552,042 1,556,578 


OPERATING INCOME $ 518,678 $ 641,988 


Page 74 








 


600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA - Stoughton Utilities Finance & Administrative Manager 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends. 


 


In September of 2003, the Stoughton Utilities Committee declared our first Stoughton Utilities 


Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends to the Finance Committee and Common Council, 


under the following criteria: 


 


 The Tax Stabilization Dividend will be based on 5% of the Stoughton Utilities 


Electric and Water previous year’s net income adjusted for the prior-year dividend 


and contributed capital reported as non-operating income/expense from the audited 


financial statements as presented by Stoughton Utilities’ independent auditing firm. 


 The dividend is estimated at the time the annual budget is approved by the Utilities 


Committee and recommended to the Common Council; and presented to the 


Utilities Committee and Common Council at the time of audit. 


 The dividend can be suspended by the Utilities Committee and Common Council if 


the budget shows a requirement for the cash flow for debt liquidation and/or capital 


outlays, or an acceleration of electric and water rate increases occurs.  


 


Our 2010 annual audit reports that will be presented to the Utilities Committee and Common 


Council on May 16 and 24, 2011 respectively, will show that utility earnings and cash flow are 


sufficient in order to make the full tax stabilization dividend as outlined above.    Stoughton Utilities 


remains the highest taxpayer in the City with electric and water Payments In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) 


equaling $551,084.  If approved by the Stoughton Utilities Committee, tax stabilization dividends of 


$31,387 will be paid to the City of Stoughton in addition to the PILOT. This will lessen property tax 


burdens and strengthen our community. The following chart shows a total payment to the City of 


Stoughton of $582,471 in 2011. 


 
Electric Water Total Total


2010 2010 2010 2009


Tax Stabilization Dividend (Recommended) 20,788$     10,600$       31,387$      36,544$       


Payment in Lieu of Taxes (Required) 291,922$   259,162$     551,084$    487,311$     


Total Payment to City 312,710$   269,762$     582,471$    523,855$      








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


    


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


   


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Electric and Water Annual Reports to the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin 


 


 


The attached 2010 Electric and Water Annual Reports were submitted electronically to the 


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin on March 25, 2011.  The reports are required to be 


filed each year by April 1
st
. 


 


The reports contain financial statements and supporting data reported on the regulatory basis for 


the year ended December 31, 2010.  Statistical data relating to electric and water utility 


operations and service distribution can also be found in the operating sections of the reports. 


 


 Encl. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


Brian R. Hoops – Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


 


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director 
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GENERAL RULES FOR REPORTING
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3.


4.


5.


Prepare the report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Public Service


indicate negative values. Parentheses shall not be used for numeric items. The program will convert the
minus sign to parentheses for hard copy annual report purposes.  Negative values may not be allowed 
for certain entries in the annual report due to restrictions contained in the software program. 


The annual report should be complete in itself in all particulars.  Reference to reports of former years
should not be made to take the place of required entries except as otherwise specifically authorized. 


shown by the annual report of the previous year or an appropriate explanation given why different
data is being reported for the current year.  Where available, use an adjustment column.


Whenever schedules call for data from the previous year, the data reported must be based upon those


Wherever information is required to be shown as text, the information shall be shown in the space 
provided using other than account titles.  In each case, the information shall be properly identified.  
Footnote capability is included in the annual report software program and shall be utilized where 
necessary to further explain particulars of a schedule.


All dollar amounts will be reported in whole dollars.


Commission of  Wisconsin. 


Numeric items shall contain digits (0-9).  A minus sign "-" shall be entered in the software program to 
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03/21/2011


(Signature of person responsible for accounts) (Date)


FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER


(Title)


I KIM JENNINGS of


(Person responsible for accounts)


Stoughton Electric Utility , certify that I


(Utility Name)


am the person responsible for accounts; that I have examined the following report and, to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief, it is a correct statement of the business and affairs of said utility for 
the period covered by the report in respect to each and every matter set forth therein.
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Exact Utility Name:


Utility Address:


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


600 S. FOURTH STREET


P.O. BOX 383


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-0383


 1/1/1891When was utility organized?


Report any change in name:


Effective Date:


www.stoughtonutilities.comUtility Web Site:


Utility employee in charge of correspondence concerning this report:


600 S. FOURTH STREET                


P.O. BOX 383   


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-0383


KIM JENNINGSName:


FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER                Title:


Office Address:


(608) 877 - 7415 EXT       Telephone:


(608) 873 - 4878Fax Number:


kjennings@stoughtonutilities.com                                                Email Address:


Individual or firm, if other than utility employee, preparing this report:


 


 


Name:


Title:


Office Address:


Telephone:


Fax Number:


kjennings@stoughtonutilities.com                                                Email Address:


President, chairman, or head of utility commission/board or committee:


381 E. MAIN STREET                  


STOUGHTON, WI 53589     


 


DONNA OLSONName:


MAYOR                                             Title:


Office Address:


(608) 873 - 6459Telephone:


Fax Number:


dolson@ci.stoughton.wi.us                                                       Email Address:


Are records of utility audited by individuals or firms, other than utility employee? YES


Individual or firm, if other than utility employee, auditing utility records:


MADISON, WI 53718     


 


JODI DOBSONName:


Title: MANAGER                                           


BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE LLP                                             Office Address:


TEN TERRACE COURT                   


(608) 249 - 6622Telephone:


Fax Number:


jodi.dobson@bakertilly.com                                                      Email Address:
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Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


 1/21/2011Date of most recent audit report:


 2010Period covered by most recent audit:


Names and titles of utility management including manager or superintendent:


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-0383


P.O. BOX 383   


600 S. FOURTH STREET                


MR. ROBERT P. KARDASZ, P.E.Name:


UTILITIES DIRECTOR                                Title:


Office Address:


(608) 877 - 7423 EXT       Telephone:


(608) 873 - 4878Fax Number:


rkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com                                                 Email Address:


Name of utility commission/committee:  UTILITIES COMMITTEE


Names of members of utility commission/committee:
MR CARL CHENOWETH, ALDERPERSON


MR DAVID ERDMAN, CITIZEN MEMBER


MR JONATHAN HAJNY, CITIZEN MEMBER


MS ANGIE HALVERSON, CITIZEN MEMBER


MR ERIC HOHOL, ALDERPERSON


MS DONNA OLSON, MAYOR-CHAIR


MR STEVE TONE, ALDERPERSON


YESIs sewer service rendered by the utility?


If "yes," has the municipality, by ordinance, combined the water and sewer service into a single public utility, 


as provided by Wis. Stat. § 66.0819 of the Wisconsin Statutes? NO


Date of Ordinance:


Are any of the utility administrative or operational functions under contract or agreement with an


outside provider for the year covered by this annual report and/or current year (i.e., operation 


of water or sewer treatment plant)? NO


Provide the following information regarding the provider(s) of contract services:


 


 


NONEFirm Name:


Contact Person:


Title:


Telephone:


Fax Number:


Email Address:


Provide a brief description of the nature of Contract Operations being provided:


Contract/Agreement beginning-ending dates:
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INCOME STATEMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


UTILITY OPERATING INCOME


 Operating Expenses:


Operating Revenues (400) 14,140,673 12,547,681 1


Operation and Maintenance Expense (401-402) 12,325,082 10,781,437 2


Depreciation Expense (403) 768,804 706,372 3


Amortization Expense (404-407) 0 0 4


Total Operating Expenses


Net Operating Income


Taxes (408)


603,165 


13,537,508 11,895,739 


651,942 


443,622 407,930 5


Income from Utility Plant Leased to Others (412-413) 0 0 6


Utility Operating Income 603,165 651,942 


OTHER INCOME


Income from Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415-416) 0 0 7


Income from Nonutility Operations (417) 10,323 0 8


Nonoperating Rental Income (418) 0 0 9


Interest and Dividend Income (419) 208,297 369,993 10


Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) 267,667 38,002 11


Total Other Income


Total Income 1,089,452 


486,287 407,995 


1,059,937 


MISCELLANEOUS INCOME DEDUCTIONS


Miscellaneous Amortization (425) (22,160) (22,160) 12


Other Income Deductions (426) 97,146 91,741 13


Total Miscellaneous Income Deductions


Income Before Interest Charges 1,014,466 


74,986 69,581 


990,356 


INTEREST CHARGES


Interest on Long-Term Debt (427) 302,875 321,216 14


Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428) 5,834 4,033 15


Amortization of Premium on Debt--Cr. (429) 0 0 16


Interest on Debt to Municipality (430) 0 0 17


Other Interest Expense (431) 164 4,068 18


Interest Charged to Construction--Cr. (432) 0 0 19


Total Interest Charges


Net Income 705,593 


308,873 329,317 


661,039 


EARNED SURPLUS


Unappropriated Earned Surplus (Beginning of Year) (216) 14,752,668 14,179,179 20


Balance Transferred from Income (433) 705,593 661,039 21


Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (434) 39,065 0 22


Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus--Debit (435) 55,108 55,108 23


Appropriations of Surplus--Debit (436) 0 0 24


Appropriations of Income to Municipal Funds--Debit (439) 30,496 32,442 25


Total Unappropriated Earned Surplus End of Year (216) 15,411,722 14,752,668 
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Description of Item
(a)


1.  Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)
and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


2.  Nonregulated sewer income should be reported as Income from Nonutility Operations, Account 417.


Earnings
(216.1)


(b)


Contributions
(216.2)


(c)


Total
This Year


(d)


UTILITY OPERATING INCOME


 Operating Revenues (400):


 Derived 14,140,673 0 14,140,673 1


14,140,673 0 14,140,673  Total (Acct. 400):


 Operation and Maintenance Expense (401-402):


 Derived 12,325,082 0 12,325,082 2


12,325,082 0 12,325,082  Total (Acct. 401-402):


 Depreciation Expense (403):


 Derived 768,804 0 768,804 3


768,804 0 768,804  Total (Acct. 403):


 Amortization Expense (404-407):


 Derived 0 0 0 4


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 404-407):


 Taxes (408):


 Derived 443,622 0 443,622 5


443,622 0 443,622  Total (Acct. 408):


 Revenues from Utility Plant Leased to Others (412):


 NONE 0 6


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 412):


 Expenses of Utility Plant Leased to Others (413):


 NONE 0 7


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 413):


603,165 0 603,165 TOTAL UTILITY OPERATING INCOME:


OTHER INCOME


 Income from Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415-416):


 Derived 0 0 0 8


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 415-416):


 Income from Nonutility Operations (417):


 NONE 10,323 10,323 9


10,323 0 10,323  Total (Acct. 417):


 Nonoperating Rental Income (418):


 NONE 0 10


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 418):


 Interest and Dividend Income (419):


 INTEREST INCOME 208,297 208,297 11


208,297 0 208,297  Total (Acct. 419):


 Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421):


 Contributed Plant - Electric 267,667 267,667 12


 NONE 0 13


0 267,667 267,667  Total (Acct. 421):


218,620 267,667 486,287 TOTAL OTHER INCOME:
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Description of Item
(a)


1.  Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)
and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


2.  Nonregulated sewer income should be reported as Income from Nonutility Operations, Account 417.


Earnings
(216.1)


(b)


Contributions
(216.2)


(c)


Total
This Year


(d)


MISCELLANEOUS INCOME DEDUCTIONS


 Miscellaneous Amortization (425):


 Regulatory Liability (253) Amortization (22,160) 0 (22,160) 14


 NONE 0 15


(22,160) 0 (22,160) Total (Acct. 425):


 Other Income Deductions (426):


 Depreciation Expense on Contributed Plant - Electric 0 97,146 97,146 16


 NONE 0 17


0 97,146 97,146  Total (Acct. 426):


(22,160) 97,146 74,986 TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS INCOME DEDUCTIONS:


INTEREST CHARGES


 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427):


 Derived 302,875 0 302,875 18


302,875 0 302,875  Total (Acct. 427):


 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428):


 2004 REVENUE BONDS 5,834 5,834 19


5,834 0 5,834  Total (Acct. 428):


 Amortization of Premium on Debt--Cr. (429):


 NONE 0 20


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 429):


 Interest on Debt to Municipality (430):


 Derived 0 0 0 21


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 430):


 Other Interest Expense (431):


 Derived 164 0 164 22


164 0 164  Total (Acct. 431):


 Interest Charged to Construction--Cr. (432):


 NONE 0 23


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 432):


308,873 0 308,873 TOTAL INTEREST CHARGES:


NET INCOME: 705,593 170,521 535,072 


EARNED SURPLUS


 Unappropriated Earned Surplus (Beginning of Year) (216):


 Derived 13,370,848 1,381,820 14,752,668 24


13,370,848 1,381,820 14,752,668  Total (Acct. 216):


 Balance Transferred from Income (433):


 Derived 535,072 170,521 705,593 25


535,072 170,521 705,593  Total (Acct. 433):


 Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (434):


 RESTATEMENT TO CORRECT ALLOCATION OF WWTP POWER CO 39,065 39,065 26*
39,065 0 39,065  Total (Acct. 434):
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Description of Item
(a)


1.  Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)
and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


2.  Nonregulated sewer income should be reported as Income from Nonutility Operations, Account 417.


Earnings
(216.1)


(b)


Contributions
(216.2)


(c)


Total
This Year


(d)


EARNED SURPLUS


 Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus--Debit (435):


 AMORTIZATION OF LOSS ON RETIREMENT OF METERS (AMR) 55,108 55,108 27*
55,108 0 55,108  Total (Acct. 435)--Debit:


 Appropriations of Surplus--Debit (436):


 Detail appropriations to (from) account 215 0 28


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 436)--Debit:


 Appropriations of Income to Municipal Funds--Debit (439):


 NONE 30,496 30,496 29


30,496 0 30,496  Total (Acct. 439)--Debit:


13,859,381 1,552,341 15,411,722 UNAPPROPRIATED EARNED SURPLUS (END OF YEAR):
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Details of Income Statement Accounts (Page F-02)


If amount of Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (Acct 434) exceeds $10,000, please explain fully.
Restatement of prior year to correct allocation of power costs for Wastewater Treatment Plant.


If amount of Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus (Acct 435) exceeds $10,000, please explain fully.
Includes amortization of loss on retirement of meters (AMR Project).  PSC approved in 2008.
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INCOME FROM MERCHANDISING, JOBBING & CONTRACT WORK (ACCTS. 415-416) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Water
(b)


Electric
(c)


Sewer
(d)


Gas
(e)


Total
(f)


Revenues (account 415) 0 1


Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (416):


Cost of merchandise sold 0 2
Payroll 0 3
Materials 0 4


Other (list by major classes):


Taxes 0 5


NONE 0 6


Total costs and expenses 0 0 0 0 0 


Net income (or loss) 0 0 0 0 0 
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REVENUES SUBJECT TO WISCONSIN REMAINDER ASSESSMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


1. Report data necessary to calculate revenue subject to Wisconsin remainder assessment pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 196.85(2)


and Wis. Admin. Code Ch. PSC 5.
2. If the sewer department is not regulated by the PSC, do not report sewer department data in column (d).


Description
(a)


Water
Utility


(b)


Electric
Utility


(c)


Sewer Utility
(Regulated


Only)
(d)


Gas
Utility


(e)
Total


(f)


1Total operating revenues 0 14,140,673 0 14,140,673 0 


2Less: interdepartmental sales 0 189,157 0 189,157 0 


3Less: interdepartmental rents 0 0 0 0 


4Less: return on net investment in meters
charged to regulated sewer department.
(Do not report if nonregulated sewer.)


0 0 


Other Increases or (Decreases)


to Operating Revenues - Specify:


5Less: uncollectibles directly expensed as
reported in water acct. 904 (690 class D),
sewer acct. 843, and electric acct. 904 -or-
Net write-offs when Accumulated Provision
for Uncollectible Accounts (acct. 144) is
maintained


13,592 13,592 


6NONE 0 


Revenues subject to


Wisconsin Remainder Assessment 0 13,937,924 0 0 13,937,924 
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DISTRIBUTION OF TOTAL PAYROLL 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Accounts Charged
(a)


Allocation of
Amounts Charged


Clearing Accts.
(c)


Total
(d)


Direct
Payroll


Distribution
(b)


distributions to accounts on all other lines in column (c) will be positive with the total of column (c) being zero.


3. The amount for clearing accounts in column (c) is entered as a negative for account "Clearing Accounts" and the
2. Amount originally charged to clearing accounts as shown in column (b) should be shown as finally distributed in column (c).


accumulated depreciation accounts.
1. Amounts charged to Utility Financed and to Contributed Plant accounts should be combined and reported in plant or


4. Provide additional information in the schedule footnotes when necessary.


0 0 0 Water operating expenses                          1


693,343 22,268 671,075 Electric operating expenses                       2


0 0 0 Gas operating expenses                            3


0 0 0 Heating operating expenses                        4


0 0 0 Sewer operating expenses                          5


0 0 0 Merchandising and jobbing                         6


0 0 0 Other nonutility expenses                         7


0 0 0 Water utility plant accounts                      8


153,382 4,926 148,456 Electric utility plant accounts                   9


0 0 0 Gas utility plant accounts                        10


0 0 0 Heating utility plant accounts                    11


0 0 0 Sewer utility plant accounts                      12


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of water plant      13


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of electric plant   14


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of gas plant        15


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of heating plant    16


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of sewer plant      17


0 (27,194)27,194 Clearing accounts                                 18


0 0 0 All other accounts                                19


Total Payroll 846,725 0 846,725 
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FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES (FTE) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


hours worked/2080 hours for a fiscal year.  Estimate to the nearest tenth.  If an employee works part time for more than one


Use FTE numbers where FTE stands for full-time employees or full-time equivalency.  FTE can be computed by using total


industry then determine FTE based on estimate of hours worked per industry.


Example: An employee worked 35% of their time on electric jobs, 30% on water jobs, 20% on sewer jobs and 15% on 
municipal nonutility jobs.  The FTE by industry would be .4 for electric, .3 for water and .2 for sewer.


Industry
(a)


FTE
(b)


1Water


2Electric 14.0


3Gas


4Sewer
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BALANCE SHEET 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Assets and Other Debits
(a)


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Balance
First of Year


(c)


UTILITY PLANT


Utility Plant (101) 24,559,509 23,602,821 1
Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and Amortization of Utility Plant (111) 9,255,785 8,597,071 2
Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustments (117-118) 3
Other Utility Plant Adjustments (119) 4


Total Net Utility Plant 15,303,724 15,005,750 


OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS


Nonutility Property (121) 175,670 175,670 5
Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and Amortization of Nonutility Property (122)


Net Nonutility Property


139,417 


36,253 39,913 


135,757 6


Investment in Municipality (123) 0 0 7
Other Investments (124) 244,654 230,898 8
Sinking Funds (125) 1,385,799 1,319,171 9
Depreciation Fund (126) 25,000 25,000 10
Other Special Funds (128) 200,717 200,498 11


Total Other Property and Investments 1,892,423 1,815,480 


CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS


Cash (131) 2,458,488 1,625,616 12
Special Deposits (134) 0 0 13
Working Funds (135) 14
Temporary Cash Investments (136) 2,860,011 3,691,314 15
Notes Receivable (141) 0 0 16
Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 1,611,101 1,488,877 17
Other Accounts Receivable (143) 114,436 37,884 18
Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts- -Cr. (144) 0 0 19
Receivables from Municipality (145) 32,918 31,922 20
Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (154) 124,597 131,388 21
Merchandise (155) 0 0 22
Other Materials and Supplies (156) 0 0 23
Stores Expense (163) 0 0 24
Prepayments (165) 27,042 27,465 25
Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) 22,889 29,103 26
Accrued Utility Revenues (173) 27
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets (174) 28


Total Current and Accrued Assets 7,251,482 7,063,569 


DEFERRED DEBITS


Unamortized Debt Discount and Expense (181) 0 5,834 29
Extraordinary Property Losses (182) 0 0 30
Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183) 0 0 31
Clearing Accounts (184) 0 0 32
Temporary Facilities (185) 0 0 33
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186) 110,217 165,325 34


Total Deferred Debits 110,217 171,159 


Total Assets and Other Debits 24,557,846 24,055,958 
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BALANCE SHEET 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Liabilities and Other Credits
(a)


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Balance
First of Year


(c)


PROPRIETARY CAPITAL


Capital Paid in by Municipality (200) 25,092 25,092 35
Appropriated Earned Surplus (215) 36
Unappropriated Earned Surplus (216) 15,411,722 14,752,668 37


Total Proprietary Capital 15,436,814 14,777,760 


LONG-TERM DEBT


Bonds (221) 6,630,000 7,160,000 38
Advances from Municipality (223) 0 0 39
Other Long-Term Debt (224) 0 0 40


Total Long-Term Debt 6,630,000 7,160,000 


CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES


Notes Payable (231) 0 0 41
Accounts Payable (232) 1,298,920 1,071,805 42
Payables to Municipality (233) 0 0 43
Customer Deposits (235) 118,128 29,031 44
Taxes Accrued (236) 291,922 258,797 45
Interest Accrued (237) 78,950 85,131 46
Tax Collections Payable (241) 50,331 28,419 47
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 18,238 33,172 48


Total Current and Accrued Liabilities 1,856,489 1,506,355 


DEFERRED CREDITS


Unamortized Premium on Debt (251) 0 0 49
Customer Advances for Construction (252) 2,427 5,959 50
Other Deferred Credits (253) 632,116 605,884 51


Total Deferred Credits 634,543 611,843 


OPERATING RESERVES


Property Insurance Reserve (261) 52
Injuries and Damages Reserve (262) 53
Pensions and Benefits Reserve (263) 54
Miscellaneous Operating Reserves (265) 55


Total Operating Reserves 0 0 


Total Liabilities and Other Credits 24,557,846 24,055,958 
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NET UTILITY PLANT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Report utility plant accounts and related accumulated provisions for depreciation and amortization after allocation


of common plant accounts and related provisions for depreciation and amortization to utility departments
as of December 31.


Particulars
(a)


Water
(b)


Sewer
(c)


Gas
(d)


Electric
(e)


First of Year:


Total Utility Plant - First of Year 0 0 0 23,602,821 1


(Should agree with Util. Plant Jan. 1 in Property Tax Equivalent Schedule)


Plant Accounts:


Utility Plant in Service - Financed by Utility Operations or by the
Municipality (101.1)


0 0 0 21,630,993 2


Utility Plant in Service - Contributed Plant (101.2) 0 0 0 2,549,170 3
Utility Plant Purchased or Sold (102) 4
Utility Plant Leased to Others (104) 5
Property Held for Future Use (105) 352,664 6
Completed Construction not Classified (106) 7
Construction Work in Progress (107) 26,682 8


Total Utility Plant 0 0 0 24,559,509 


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and Amortization:


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant in Service -
Financed by Utility Operations or by the Municipality (111.1)


0 0 0 8,653,405 9


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant in Service -
Contributed Plant (111.2)


0 0 0 602,380 10


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant Leased to
Others (112)


11


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Property Held for Future
Use (113)


12


Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Utility Plant in Service
(114)


13


Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Utility Plant Leased to
Others (115)


14


Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Property Held for Future
Use (116)


15


Total Accumulated Provision 0 0 0 9,255,785 


Other Utility Plant Accounts:


Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustments (117) 16
Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Utility Plant Acquisition
Adjustments (118)


17


Other Utility Plant Adjustments (119) 18


Total Other Utility Plant Accounts 0 0 0 0 


Net Utility Plant 0 0 0 15,303,724 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF UTILITY PLANT
 ON UTILITY PLANT FINANCED BY UTILITY OPERATION


OR BY THE MUNICIPALITY (ACCT. 111.1)


 
(c)


 
(d)


 
(e)


Total
(f)


Particulars
(a)


Electric
(b)


1. Report the amounts charged in the operating sections to Depreciation Expense (403).
2. If sewer operations are nonregulated, do not report sewer depreciation on this schedule.


If the sewer is also a regulated utility by the PSC, report an equal amount as a reduction in the Sewer column.


4. Report all other accruals charged to other accounts, such as to clearing accounts.


3. Report the Depreciation Expense on Meters charged to sewer operations as an addition in the Water column. 


Depreciation Accruals (Credits) during the year (111.1):


Balance first of year (111.1) 8,075,447 8,075,447 


Credits During Year


Accruals:


768,804 768,804 Charged depreciation expense (403)


Depreciation expense on meters


0 charged to sewer (see Note 3)


Accruals charged other


accounts (specify):


0 


Salvage 23,753 23,753 


Other credits (specify):


Clearing                           39,599 39,599 


0 


0 


0 


Total credits 832,156 832,156 0 0 0 


Debits during year


Book cost of plant retired 242,615 242,615 


Cost of removal 11,583 11,583 


Other debits (specify):


                                   0 


0 


0 


8,653,405 0 0 0 8,653,405 


254,198 254,198 0 0 0 


0 


1


 2


 3


 5


 7


 8


11


 17


20


 4


 6


 9


10


12


 13


 14


 15


 16


 18


 19


21


22


23


 24


 25


26


27


Total debits


Balance end of year (111.1)


Footnotes
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF UTILITY PLANT
 ON CONTRIBUTED PLANT IN SERVICE


(ACCT. 111.2)


 
(c)


 
(d)


 
(e)


Total
(f)


Particulars
(a)


Electric
(b)


1. Report the amounts charged in the operating sections to Other Income Deductions (426).
2. If sewer operations are nonregulated, do not report sewer depreciation on this schedule.


If the sewer is also a regulated utility by the PSC, report an equal amount as a reduction in the Sewer column.


4. Report all other accruals charged to other accounts, such as to clearing accounts.


3. Report the Depreciation Expense on Meters charged to sewer operations as an addition in the Water column. 


Depreciation Accruals (Credits) during the year (111.2):


1


 2


 3


 4


Balance first of year (111.2) 521,624 521,624 


Credits During Year


Accruals:


97,146 97,146 Charged Other Income Deductions (426)


 5Depreciation expense on meters


0 charged to sewer (see Note 3)


 7Accruals charged other


 8accounts (specify):


0 


Salvage 0 0 


11Other credits (specify):


                                   0 


0 


0 


0 


Total credits 97,146 97,146 0 0 0 


 17Debits during year


Book cost of plant retired 13,581 13,581 


Cost of removal 2,809 2,809 


Other debits (specify):


0 


0 


16,390 16,390 0 0 0 


602,380 0 0 0 602,380 


 6


 9


10


12


 13


 14


 15


 16


 18


0                                    


 19


20


27


26


23


 24


 25


21


220 


Total debits


Balance end of year (111.2)


Footnotes
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NET NONUTILITY PROPERTY (ACCTS. 121 & 122) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


1. Report separately each item of property with a book cost of $5,000 or more included in account 121.


2. Other items may be grouped by classes of property.
3. Describe in detail any investment in sewer department carried in this account.


Description
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Deductions
During Year


(d)


Balance
End of Year


(e)


Nonregulated sewer plant 0 0 1


City Dam 84,212 84,212 2


Leasehold Improvements - Rental 91,458 91,458 3


Total Nonutility Property (121) 175,670 0 0 175,670 


-Less accum. prov. depr. & amort. (122) 135,757 3,660 139,417 4


Net Nonutility Property 39,913 (3,660) 0 36,253 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS-CR. (ACCT. 144) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


Balance first of year                                                           1


Additions:


Provision for uncollectibles during year                                        2


Collection of accounts previously written off: Utility Customers                3


Collection of accounts previously written off: Others                           4


Total Additions 0 


Deductions:


Accounts written off during the year: Utility Customers                         5


Accounts written off during the year: Others                                    6


Total accounts written off 0 


Balance end of year 0 
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MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


 Account 
(a)


Electric Utility


 Generation 
(b)


 Transmission 
(c)


 Distribution 
(d)


 Other 
(e)


Total 
 End of Year 


(f)


Amount
 Prior Year 


(g)


Fuel (151)                              0 0 1


Fuel stock expenses (152)               0 0 2


Plant mat. & oper. sup. (154)           124,597 124,597 131,388 3


Total Electric Utility 124,597 131,388 


Account 
Total 


 End of Year 
Amount


 Prior Year 


Electric utility total                  124,597 131,388 1


Water utility (154)                     0 2


Sewer utility (154)                     0 3


Heating utility (154)                   0 4


Gas utility (154)                       0 5


Merchandise (155)                       0 6


Other materials & supplies (156)        0 7


Stores expense (163)                    0 8


124,597 131,388 Total Materials and Supplies
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UNAMORTIZED DEBT DISCOUNT & EXPENSE & PREMIUM ON DEBT
(ACCTS. 181 AND 251)


Report net discount and expense or premium separately for each security issue.


Debt Issue to Which Related
(a)


Amount
(b)


Balance
End of Year


(d)


Account Charged
or Credited


(c)


Written Off During Year


Unamortized debt discount & expense (181)


 2004 MRB'S 0  428   5,834 1


Total 0 


Unamortized premium on debt (251)


 NONE 2


Total 0 
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CAPITAL PAID IN BY MUNICIPALITY (ACCT. 200) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


and $2,000 (class D, sewer and privates) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using
other than account titles.


Amount
(b)


1Balance first of year                                                           25,092 


Changes during year (explain):


2


Balance end of year 25,092 
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BONDS (ACCT. 221) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Description of Issue
(a)


1. Report hereunder information required for each separate issue of bonds.


2. If there is more than one interest rate for an aggregate obligation issue, average the interest rates and report one rate.
3. Proceeds advanced by the municipality from sale of general obligation bonds, if repayable by utility, should be


included in account 223.


Date of
Issue


(b)


Final
Maturity


Date
(c)


Interest
Rate
(d)


Principal
Amount


End of Year
(e)


3.48%04/01/202304/01/20032003 MRB'S 14,180,000 


3.99%04/01/202311/15/20062006 MRB'S 22,450,000 


Total Bonds (Account 221): 6,630,000 
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NOTES PAYABLE & MISCELLANEOUS LONG-TERM DEBT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


3.  If there is more than one interest rate for an aggregate obligation issue, average the interest rates and report one rate.


2.  Proceeds of general obligation issues, if subject to repayment by the utility, should be included in Account 223.


1.  Report each class of debt included in Accounts 223, 224 and 231.


Account and Description of Obligation
(a and b)


 Date of 
 Issue 


(c)


 Final
Maturity


Date
(d)


 Interest 
Rate 


(e)


Principal 
Amount


End of Year
(f)


Advances from Municipality (223)


00/00/0000 00/00/0000 0.00% 1NONE


0 Total for Account 223   


Other Long-Term Debt (224)


00/00/0000 00/00/0000 0.00% 2NONE


0 Total for Account 224   


Notes Payable (231)


00/00/0000 00/00/0000 0.00% 3NONE


0 Total for Account 231   
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TAXES ACCRUED (ACCT. 236) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


Balance first of year                                                           258,797 1


Accruals:


Charged water department expense                                                2


Charged electric department expense                                             443,622 3


Other (explain):


Charged sewer department expense                                                4


NONE 5


Total Accruals and other credits 443,622 


Taxes paid during year:


County, state and local taxes                                                   258,797 6


Social Security taxes                                                           66,000 7


Other (explain):


PSC Remainder Assessment                                                        12,409 8


Clearing (14,150) 9


Gross Receipts Tax 87,441 10


Total payments and other debits 410,497 


Balance end of year 291,922 
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INTEREST ACCRUED (ACCT. 237) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


1. Report below interest accrued on each utility obligation.


Description of Issue
(a)


2. Report Customer Deposits under Account 235.


Interest Accrued
Balance First


of Year
(b)


Interest Accrued
During Year


(c)


Interest Paid
During Year


(d)


Interest Accrued
Balance End


of Year
(e)


Bonds (221)


2003 MRB'S 48,549 192,160 192,839 47,870 1


2006 MRB'S 27,016 107,313 107,563 26,766 2


1998 MRB's 0 0 3


2004 MRB'S 3,763 3,402 7,165 0 4


Subtotal 79,328 302,875 307,567 74,636 


Advances from Municipality (223)


NONE 0 0 5


Subtotal 0 0 0 0 


Other Long-Term Debt (224)


NONE 0 0 6


Subtotal 0 0 0 0 


Notes Payable (231)


CUSTOMER DEPOSIT 5,803 164 1,653 4,314 * 7


Subtotal 5,803 164 1,653 4,314 


Total 85,131 303,039 309,220 78,950 
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INTEREST ACCRUED (ACCT. 237) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Interest Accrued (Acct. 237) (Page F-20)


If Interest Accrued During Year (for other than Bonds (221)) is non-zero AND the Notes Payable and Miscellaneous
Long-Term Debt schedule shows a Principal Amount EOY of zero or less, please explain.


Interest accrued is for customer deposits.
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DETAIL OF OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Investment in Municipality (123):


NONE 1


0 Total (Acct. 123):


Other Investments (124):


244,654 INVESTMENT IN ATC 2


244,654 Total (Acct. 124):


Sinking Funds (125):


339,705 SPECIAL REDEMPTION 3


1,046,094 RESERVE 4


1,385,799 Total (Acct. 125):


Depreciation Fund (126):


25,000 DEPRECIATION 5


25,000 Total (Acct. 126):


Other Special Funds (128):


103,717 PLANT MAINTENANCE RESERVE 6


97,000 SICK LEAVE RESERVE 7


200,717 Total (Acct. 128):


Special Deposits (134):


NONE 8


0 Total (Acct. 134):


Notes Receivable (141):


NONE 9


0 Total (Acct. 141):


Customer Accounts Receivable (142):


Water 10


1,603,945 Electric 11


Other (specify):


Sewer (Regulated) 12


7,156 SHARED SAVINGS RECEIVABLE 13


1,611,101 Total (Acct. 142):


Other Accounts Receivable (143):


Sewer (Non-regulated) 14


114,436 


Other (specify):


Merchandising, jobbing and contract work 15*


NONE 16


114,436 Total (Acct. 143):


Receivables from Municipality (145):


32,918 TAX ROLL 17*
32,918 Total (Acct. 145):
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DETAIL OF OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Prepayments (165):


27,042 NONE 18


27,042 Total (Acct. 165):


Extraordinary Property Losses (182):


NONE 19


0 Total (Acct. 182):


Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183):


NONE 20


0 Total (Acct. 183):


Clearing Accounts (184):


NONE 21


0 Total (Acct. 184):


Temporary Facilities (185):


NONE 22


0 Total (Acct. 185):


Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186):


110,217 LOSS ON RETIREMENT OF METERS 23*
110,217 Total (Acct. 186):


Payables to Municipality (233):


NONE 24


0 Total (Acct. 233):


Other Deferred Credits (253):


288,084 Regulatory Liability 25


129,683 PUBLIC BENEFITS 26


163,637 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 27


(51)RENEWABLE ENERGY 28


1,036 ROUND UP 29


7,156 SHARED SAVINGS 30


42,571 MISCELLANEOUS 31


632,116 Total (Acct. 253):
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DETAIL OF OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Detail of Other Balance Sheet Accounts (Page F-22)


Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (Acct 186): amortization requires PSC authorization.  Provide date of authorization.
Balance includes unamortized loss on retirement of meters for AMR project.  PSC approved in
2008.


Please explain amounts in Accounts 143, 145 and/or 233 in excess of $10,000, providing a short list or detail using other
than terms such as ''other revenues'' ''general'' ''miscellaneous'' or repeating the account title.


Account 145 - Accounts placed on property tax bills.


Account 143 - Balance includes receivable from WI Clean Transportation Program of $99,000 for
purchase of hybrid line vehicle.
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RETURN ON RATE BASE COMPUTATION 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


2. Calculate those averages by summing the first-of-year and the end-of-year figures for each account and then dividing


1. The data used in calculating rate base are averages.


3. Note: Do not include contributed plant in service, property held for future use, or construction work in progress with


the sum by two.


utility plant in service. These are not rate base components.


Average Rate Base
(a)


Electric
(c)


Sewer
(d)


Gas
(e)


Total
(f)


Water
(b)


Add Average:


Utility Plant in Service (101.1) 21,266,358 0 0 21,266,358 0 1


Other (specify):


Materials and Supplies 127,992 0 0 127,992 0 2


NONE 0 3


Less Average:


Reserve for Depreciation (111.1) 8,364,426 0 0 8,364,426 0 4
Customer Advances for Construction (4,193) (4,193) 5
Regulatory Liability 299,164 0 0 299,164 0 6
NONE 0 7


12,734,953 Average Net Rate Base 0 12,734,953 0 0 


Net Operating Income 603,165 0 0 603,165 0 8


Net Operating Income 
as a percent of 


Average Net Rate Base 4.74% N/A N/A 4.74%N/A
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REGULATORY LIABILITY - PRE-2003 HISTORICAL
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ON CONTRIBUTED UTILITY


PLANT (253)


Particulars
(a)


Total
(f)


Gas
(e)


Sewer
(d)


Electric
(c)


Water
(b)


Balance First of Year 0 0 310,244 0 310,244 1


Add credits during year:
0 2


Deduct charges:


Other (specify):


Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 0 0 22,160 0 22,160 3


0 4


Balance End of Year 0 288,084 0 288,084 0 
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IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Report changes of any of the following types:


1. Acquisitions.


Purchased two hybrid electric line vehicles in 2010 with help from a $200,000 grant from the WI Clean
Transportation Program.


2. Leaseholder changes.


3. Extensions of service.


4. Estimated changes in revenues due to rate changes.


New retail electric rates will be in effect on January 3, 2011.


5. Obligations incurred or assumed, excluding commercial paper.


6. Formal proceedings with the Public Service Commission.


Retail electric rate hearing with rates effective on January 3, 2011.


7. Any additional matters.
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ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES & EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


This Year
(b)


Last Year
(c)


Operating Revenues


Sales of Electricity


12,420,213 Sales of Electricity (440-448) 14,012,469 1


Total Sales of Electricity 14,012,469 12,420,213 


Other Operating Revenues


42,411 Forfeited Discounts (450    ) 43,067 2


0 Miscellaneous Service Revenues (451    ) 0 3


0 Sales of Water and Water Power (453    ) 0 4


0 Rent from Electric Property (454    ) 0 5


0 Interdepartmental Rents (455    ) 0 6


85,057 Other Electric Revenues (456    ) 85,137 7


Total Other Operating Revenues 128,204 127,468 


Total Operating Revenues 14,140,673 12,547,681 


Operation and Maintenenance Expenses


9,377,438 Power Production Expenses (500-557) 10,952,336 8


0 Transmission Expenses (560-573) 0 9


459,055 Distribution Expenses (580-598) 518,364 10


179,822 Customer Accounts Expenses (901-905) 206,885 11


0 Customer Service and Information Expenses (906    ) 0 12


0 Sales Expenses (911-916) 198 13


765,122 Administrative and General Expenses (920-932) 647,299 14


Total Operation and Maintenenance Expenses 12,325,082 10,781,437 


Other Expenses


706,372 Depreciation Expense (403    ) 768,804 15


0 Amortization Expense (404-407) 16


407,930 Taxes (408    ) 443,622 17


Total Other Expenses 1,212,426 1,114,302 


Total Operating Expenses 13,537,508 11,895,739 


NET OPERATING INCOME 603,165 651,942 
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OTHER OPERATING REVENUES (ELECTRIC) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


1. Report revenues relating to each account and fully describe each item using other than the account title.


2. Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous.


Forfeited Discounts (450):


1NONE


Other (specify):


43,067 2Customer late payment charges


Total Forfeited Discounts (450) 43,067 


Miscellaneous Service Revenues (451):


3NONE


Total Miscellaneous Service Revenues (451) 0 


Sales of Water and Water Power (453):


4NONE


Total Sales of Water and Water Power (453) 0 


Rent from Electric Property (454):


5NONE


Total Rent from Electric Property (454) 0 


Interdepartmental Rents (455):


6NONE


Total Interdepartmental Rents (455) 0 


Other Electric Revenues (456):


85,137 7MISCELLANEOUS


Total Other Electric Revenues (456) 85,137 
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ELECTRIC OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Each expense account that has an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15 percent,


but not less than $10,000, shall be fully explained in the schedule footnotes.


POWER PRODUCTION EXPENSES


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


STEAM POWER GENERATION EXPENSES                                                 
Operation Supervision and Engineering (500) 0 1


Fuel (501) 0 2


Steam Expenses (502) 0 3


Steam from Other Sources (503) 0 4


Steam Transferred -- Credit (504) 0 5


Electric Expenses (505) 0 6


Miscellaneous Steam Power Expenses (506) 0 7


Rents (507) 0 8


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (510) 0 9


Maintenance of Structures (511) 0 10


Maintenance of Boiler Plant (512) 0 11


Maintenance of Electric Plant (513) 0 12


Maintenance of Miscellaneous Steam Plant (514) 0 13


0 0 Total Steam Power Generation Expenses                                                 


HYDRAULIC POWER GENERATION EXPENSES                                             
Operation Supervision and Engineering (535) 0 14


Water for Power (536) 0 15


Hydraulic Expenses (537) 0 16


Electric Expenses (538) 0 17


Miscellaneous Hydraulic Power Generation Expenses (539) 0 18


Rents (540) 0 19


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (541) 0 20


Maintenance of Structures (542) 0 21


Maintenance of Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways (543) 0 22


Maintenance of Electric Plant (544) 0 23


Maintenance of Miscellaneous Hydraulic Plant (545) 0 24


0 0 Total Hydraulic Power Generation Expenses                                             


OTHER POWER GENERATION EXPENSES                                                 
Operation Supervision and Engineering (546) 0 25


Fuel (547) 0 26


Generation Expenses (548) 0 27


Miscellaneous Other Power Generation Expenses (549) 0 28


Rents (550) 0 29


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (551) 0 30


Maintenance of Structures (552) 0 31


Maintenance of Generating and Electric Plant (553) 0 32
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ELECTRIC OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Each expense account that has an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15 percent,


but not less than $10,000, shall be fully explained in the schedule footnotes.


POWER PRODUCTION EXPENSES


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


OTHER POWER GENERATION EXPENSES                                                 
Maintenance of Miscellaneous Other Power Generating Plant (554) 0 33


0 0 Total Other Power Generation Expenses                                                 


OTHER POWER SUPPLY EXPENSES                                                     
Purchased Power (555) 9,326,245 10,899,730 34*
System Control and Load Dispatching (556) 0 35


Other Expenses (557) 51,193 52,606 36


9,377,438 10,952,336 


9,377,438 10,952,336 


Total Other Power Supply Expenses                                                     


Total Power Production Expenses


TRANSMISSION EXPENSES                                                           
Operation Supervision and Engineering (560) 0 0 37


Load Dispatching (561) 0 0 38


Station Expenses (562) 0 0 39


Overhead Line Expenses (563) 0 0 40


Underground Line Expenses (564) 0 0 41


Miscellaneous Transmission Expenses (566) 0 0 42


Rents (567) 0 0 43


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (568) 0 0 44


Maintenance of Structures (569) 0 0 45


Maintenance of Station Equipment (570) 0 0 46


Maintenance of Overhead Lines (571) 0 0 47


Maintenance of Underground Lines (572) 0 0 48


Maintenance of Miscellaneous Transmission Plant (573) 0 0 49


0 0 Total Transmission Expenses                                                           


DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES                                                           
Operation Supervision and Engineering (580) 5,940 7,250 50


Load Dispatching (581) 0 51


Station Expenses (582) 0 52


Overhead Line Expenses (583) 0 53


Underground Line Expenses (584) 0 54


Street Lighting and Signal System Expenses (585) 5,605 3,986 55


Meter Expenses (586) 17,335 24,313 56


Customer Installations Expenses (587) 383 195 57


Miscellaneous Distribution Expenses (588) 23,292 6,406 58*
Rents (589) 0 59


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (590) 0 60


Maintenance of Structures (591) 0 61


Maintenance of Station Equipment (592) 59,710 92,899 62*
Maintenance of Overhead Lines (593) 293,923 324,770 63
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ELECTRIC OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Each expense account that has an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15 percent,


but not less than $10,000, shall be fully explained in the schedule footnotes.


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES                                                           
Maintenance of Underground Lines (594) 48,260 53,481 64


Maintenance of Line Transformers (595) 1,790 1,603 65


Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems (596) 2,393 2,032 66


Maintenance of Meters (597) 424 1,429 67


Maintenance of Miscellaneous Distribution Plant (598) 0 68


459,055 518,364 Total Distribution Expenses                                                           


CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS EXPENSES                                                      
Supervision (901) 0 69


Meter Reading Expenses (902) 4,783 6,465 70


Customer Records and Collection Expenses (903) 170,063 186,828 71


Uncollectible Accounts (904) 0 13,592 72*
Miscellaneous Customer Accounts Expenses (905) 4,976 73


Customer Service and Information Expenses (906) 0 74


179,822 206,885 Total Customer Accounts Expenses                                                      


SALES EXPENSES                                                                  
Supervision (911) 0 75


Demonstrating and Selling Expenses (912) 0 52 76


Advertising Expenses (913) 0 146 77


Miscellaneous Sales Expenses (916) 0 78


0 198 Total Sales Expenses                                                                  


ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES                                             
Administrative and General Salaries (920) 263,215 224,263 79*
Office Supplies and Expenses (921) 61,867 35,303 80*
Administrative Expenses Transferred -- Credit (922) 0 81


Outside Services Employed (923) 35,385 53,692 82*
Property Insurance (924) 19,642 9,059 83


Injuries and Damages (925) 27,842 25,597 84


Employee Pensions and Benefits (926) 255,968 193,240 85*
Regulatory Commission Expenses (928) 0 7,262 86


Duplicate Charges -- Credit (929) 0 87


Miscellaneous General Expenses (930) 16,180 10,701 88


Rents (931) 10,964 10,673 89


Maintenance of General Plant (932) 74,059 77,509 90


765,122 647,299 Total Administrative and General Expenses                                             


Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses 10,781,437 12,325,082 
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ELECTRIC OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Electric Operation & Maintenance Expenses (Page E-03)


For values that represent an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15%, but not less
$10,000, please explain.


Account 555 - Increase is due to a substantial increase in kWh sold and a wholesale rate
increase for 2010.


Account 588 - Decrease is due to a drop in labor charged to this account.  It went from $20,414
in 2009 down to $6,406 in 2010.


Account 592 - Increase is mainly from two work orders.  One was expensed as site clean up from
a land purchase to be used for a future substation.  The other was a "best value plan - study"
prepared for ATC related to switching at our North Substation.


Account 904 - Increase in account write-offs due to discharge of debt from bankruptcies.


Account 920 - More labor dollars were allocated to specific distribution expense accounts in
2010.  Total labor did not decrease.


Account 921 - See restatement of 2009 recorded as a credit to account 434.  Expense from 2009
was high due to an error in calculation of power costs for the Wastewater Treatment Plant.
Costs were allocated to all three utilities rather than the wastewater utility only.


Account 923 - Increase due to legal fees associated with labor negotiations with IBEW.  Line
crew employees are now represented by IBEW.


Account 926 - Decrease is due to a significant reduction in health insurance claims paid.
Actual claims decreased by $70,000 in 2010 (compared to 2009).
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TAXES (ACCT. 408 - ELECTRIC) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


When allocation of taxes is made between departments, explain method used.


Method Used to Allocate Between
Departments


(b)
Description of Tax


(a)
Last Year


(d)
This Year


(c)


 Property Tax Equivalent 291,922 258,797 1
 Social Security 66,000 61,913 2
 Wisconsin Gross Receipts Tax 87,441 90,428 3


Other (specify):


 PSC Remainder Assessment 12,409 11,423 4


 CLEARING (14,150) (14,631) 5


Total tax expense 443,622 407,930 
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PROPERTY TAX EQUIVALENT (ELECTRIC) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Tax rates are those issued in November (usually) of the year being reported and are available from the municipal treasurer.1.
Report the tax rates in mills to six (6) decimal places.


2. The assessment ratio is available from the municipal treasurer. Report the ratio as a decimal to six (6) places.
3. The utility plant balance first of year should include the gross book values of plant in service (total of utility financed and contributed


plant), property held for future use and construction work in progress. 
4. An "other tax rate" is included in the "Net Local and School Tax Rate Calculation" to the extent that it is local. An example is a


local library tax. Fully explain the rate in the Property Tax Equivalent schedule footnotes.
5. The Property Tax Equivalent to be reported for the year is determined pursuant to Wis. Stat § 66.0811(2). Report the higher of


the current year calculation or the tax equivalent reported in the 1994 PSC annual report, unless, the municipality has
authorized a lower amount, then that amount is reported as the property tax equivalent.


6. If the municipality has authorized a lower amount, the authorization description and date of the authorization must be reported
in the Property Tax Equivalent schedule footnotes.


County D
(g)


Particulars
(a)


Units
(b)


Total
(c)


County A
(d)


County B
(e)


County C
(f)


1


3State tax rate


County tax rate 4


5Local tax rate


6School tax rate


7


8


9


Voc. school tax rate


Other tax rate - Local


Other tax rate - Non-Local


10


11


Total tax rate


Less: state credit


Net tax rate 12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


29


30


Combined School Tax Rate


Other Tax Rate - Local


Total Local & School Tax


Total Tax Rate


Ratio of Local and School Tax to Total


Total tax net of state credit


Net Local and School Tax Rate


Utility Plant, Jan. 1


Materials & Supplies


Subtotal


Less: Plant Outside Limits


Taxable Assets


Assessment Ratio


Assessed Value


Net Local & School Rate


Tax Equiv. Computed for Current Year


Any lower tax equivalent as authorized


by municipality (see note 5)


Tax equiv. for current year (see note 5)


Local Tax Rate


31


32


2


PROPERTY TAX EQUIVALENT CALCULATION


County name


SUMMARY OF TAX RATES


$


$


$


$


mills


$


dec.


$


$


$


$


$


mills


mills


dec.


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


17,101,530 


23,602,821 


131,388 


23,734,209 


6,632,679 


16,623,576 


118,192 


291,922 


17.560703 


16,623,576 


0.972052 


17,101,530 


6,632,679 


23,734,209 


131,388 


23,602,821 


17.560703 


20.331720 


0.863710 


21.779170 


18.810880 


0.000000 


11.317020 


7.493860 


20.331720 


1.447450 


21.779170 


0.000000 


0.000000 


1.517010 


9.800010 


7.493860 


2.793700 


0.174590 


Dane


33


34


Tax Equivalent per 1994 PSC Report


35


291,922 


Footnotes


291,922 
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


INTANGIBLE PLANT                                         


Organization (301) 0 0 1


Franchises and Consents (302) 0 0 2


Miscellaneous Intangible Plant (303) 0 0 3


0 0 0 0 0 Total Intangible Plant


STEAM PRODUCTION PLANT                          


Land and Land Rights (310) 0 0 4


Structures and Improvements (311) 0 0 5


Boiler Plant Equipment (312) 0 0 6


Engines and Engine Driven Generators (313) 0 0 7


Turbogenerator Units (314) 0 0 8


Accessory Electric Equipment (315) 0 0 9


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (316) 0 0 10


0 0 0 0 0 Total Steam Production Plant


HYDRAULIC PRODUCTION PLANT                 


Land and Land Rights (330) 0 0 11


Structures and Improvements (331) 0 0 12


Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways (332) 0 0 13


Water Wheels, Turbines and Generators (333) 0 0 14


Accessory Electric Equipment (334) 0 0 15


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (335) 0 0 16


Roads, Railroads and Bridges (336) 0 0 17


0 0 0 0 0 Total Hydraulic Production Plant


OTHER PRODUCTION PLANT                          


Land and Land Rights (340) 0 0 18


Structures and Improvements (341) 0 0 19


Fuel Holders, Producers and Accessories (342) 0 0 20


Prime Movers (343) 0 0 21


Generators (344) 0 0 22


Accessory Electric Equipment (345) 0 0 23


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (346) 0 0 24


0 0 0 0 0 Total Other Production Plant


TRANSMISSION PLANT                                    


Land and Land Rights (350) 1 1 25


Structures and Improvements (352) 0 0 26


Station Equipment (353) 0 0 27


Towers and Fixtures (354) 0 0 28
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


TRANSMISSION PLANT                                    


Poles and Fixtures (355) 5,035 5,035 29


Overhead Conductors and Devices (356) 9,984 9,984 30


Underground Conduit (357) 0 0 31


Underground Conductors and Devices (358) 0 0 32


Roads and Trails (359) 0 0 33


0 0 0 15,020 15,020 Total Transmission Plant


DISTRIBUTION PLANT                                     


Land and Land Rights (360) 220,796 220,796 34


Structures and Improvements (361) 44,389 44,389 35


Station Equipment (362) 3,939,723 78,628 4,018,351 36


Storage Battery Equipment (363) 0 0 37


Poles, Towers and Fixtures (364) 2,302,648 51,897 16,886 2,337,659 38


Overhead Conductors and Devices (365) 3,895,060 225,275 22,933 4,097,402 39*
Underground Conduit (366) 251,383 17,661 269,044 40


Underground Conductors and Devices (367) 1,789,582 45,937 3,900 1,831,619 41


Line Transformers (368) 2,705,444 70,312 7,774 2,767,982 42


Services (369) 1,259,150 33,073 4,083 1,288,140 43


Meters (370) 611,844 13,620 (57) 625,407 44*
Installations on Customers' Premises (371) 0 0 45


Leased Property on Customers' Premises (372) 0 0 46


Street Lighting and Signal Systems (373) 405,247 10,386 6,520 409,113 47


546,789 62,096 (57) 17,909,902 17,425,266 Total Distribution Plant


GENERAL PLANT                                             


Land and Land Rights (389) 0 0 48


Structures and Improvements (390) 1,551,260 84,689 1,635,949 49


Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 175,860 11,605 187,465 50


Computer Equipment (391.1) 452,727 452,727 51


Transportation Equipment (392) 272,019 15,414 49,184 238,249 52


Stores Equipment (393) 9,984 9,984 53


Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 64,576 64,576 54


Laboratory Equipment (395) 50,236 50,236 55


Power Operated Equipment (396) 826,506 310,954 131,335 1,006,125 56*
Communication Equipment (397) 58,270 58,270 57


SCADA Equipment (397.1) 0 0 58


Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 0 2,490 2,490 59
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


GENERAL PLANT                                             


Other Tangible Property (399) 0 0 60


425,152 180,519 0 3,706,071 


971,941 242,615 (57) 21,630,993 


3,461,438 Total General Plant


20,901,724 Total utility plant in service directly
assignable


                                                                           


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Electric
Department (300)


0 0 61


971,941 242,615 (57) 21,630,993 20,901,724 Total utility plant in service
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Electric Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page E-06)


If Additions for any Accounts exceed $100,000, please explain.
Account 365 - Utility financed overhead line replacements.


Account 396 - Includes purchase of hybrid line vehicle (utility financed portion).


If Retirements for any Accounts exceed $100,000, please explain.
Account 396 - For trade in of old line truck.


If Adjustments for any account are nonzero, please explain.
Account 370 - Adjustment to reflect prior year retirement.
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


INTANGIBLE PLANT                                                                


Organization (301) 0 0 1
Franchises and Consents (302) 0 0 2
Miscellaneous Intangible Plant (303) 0 0 3


Total Intangible Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


STEAM PRODUCTION PLANT                                                        


Land and Land Rights (310) 0 0 4
Structures and Improvements (311) 0 0 5
Boiler Plant Equipment (312) 0 0 6
Engines and Engine Driven Generators (313) 0 0 7
Turbogenerator Units (314) 0 0 8
Accessory Electric Equipment (315) 0 0 9
Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (316) 0 0 10


Total Steam Production Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


HYDRAULIC PRODUCTION PLANT                                                


Land and Land Rights (330) 0 0 11
Structures and Improvements (331) 0 0 12
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways (332) 0 0 13
Water Wheels, Turbines and Generators (333) 0 0 14
Accessory Electric Equipment (334) 0 0 15
Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (335) 0 0 16
Roads, Railroads and Bridges (336) 0 0 17


Total Hydraulic Production Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


OTHER PRODUCTION PLANT                                                        


Land and Land Rights (340) 0 0 18
Structures and Improvements (341) 0 0 19
Fuel Holders, Producers and Accessories (342) 0 0 20
Prime Movers (343) 0 0 21
Generators (344) 0 0 22
Accessory Electric Equipment (345) 0 0 23
Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (346) 0 0 24


Total Other Production Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


TRANSMISSION PLANT                                                              


Land and Land Rights (350) 0 0 25
Structures and Improvements (352) 0 0 26
Station Equipment (353) 0 0 27
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


TRANSMISSION PLANT                                                              


Towers and Fixtures (354) 0 0 28
Poles and Fixtures (355) 0 0 29
Overhead Conductors and Devices (356) 0 0 30
Underground Conduit (357) 0 0 31
Underground Conductors and Devices (358) 0 0 32
Roads and Trails (359) 0 0 33


Total Transmission Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


DISTRIBUTION PLANT                                                              


Land and Land Rights (360) 0 0 34
Structures and Improvements (361) 0 0 35
Station Equipment (362) 0 0 36
Storage Battery Equipment (363) 0 0 37
Poles, Towers and Fixtures (364) 491,636 6,107 4,222 493,521 38
Overhead Conductors and Devices (365) 756,985 9,088 5,688 760,385 39
Underground Conduit (366) 32,776 11,812 44,588 40
Underground Conductors and Devices (367) 610,790 29,729 975 639,544 41
Line Transformers (368) 10,452 931 11,383 42
Services (369) 290,312 6,212 1,066 295,458 43
Meters (370) 0 1,501 1,501 44
Installations on Customers' Premises (371) 0 0 45
Leased Property on Customers' Premises (372) 0 0 46
Street Lighting and Signal Systems (373) 102,327 2,343 1,630 103,040 47


Total Distribution Plant 2,295,278 67,723 13,581 0 2,349,420 


GENERAL PLANT                                                                   


Land and Land Rights (389) 0 0 48
Structures and Improvements (390) 0 0 49
Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 0 0 50
Computer Equipment (391.1) 0 0 51
Transportation Equipment (392) 2,750 2,750 52
Stores Equipment (393) 0 0 53
Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 0 0 54
Laboratory Equipment (395) 0 0 55
Power Operated Equipment (396) 0 194,500 194,500 56*
Communication Equipment (397) 0 0 57
SCADA Equipment (397.1) 0 0 58
Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 0 2,500 2,500 59
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


GENERAL PLANT                                                                   


Other Tangible Property (399) 0 0 60


Total General Plant


Total utility plant in service directly
assignable


2,750 197,000 0 0 199,750 


2,298,028 264,723 13,581 0 2,549,170 


                                                                                


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Electric
Department (300)


0 0 61


Total utility plant in service 2,298,028 264,723 13,581 0 2,549,170 
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ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Electric Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Contributions-- (Page E-07)


If Additions or Retirements for any Accounts exceed $100,000, please explain.
Account 396 - WI Clean Transportation grant received for the purchase of two hybrid line
vehicles.
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


STEAM PRODUCTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (311) 10 0.00%


Boiler Plant Equipment (312) 20 0.00%


Engines and Engine Driven Generators (313) 30 0.00%


Turbogenerator Units (314) 40 0.00%


Accessory Electric Equipment (315) 50 0.00%


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (316) 60 0.00%


Total Steam Production Plant 0 0 


HYDRAULIC PRODUCTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (331) 70 0.00%


Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways (332) 80 0.00%


Water Wheels, Turbines and Generators (333) 90 0.00%


Accessory Electric Equipment (334) 100 0.00%


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (335) 110 0.00%


Roads, Railroads and Bridges (336) 120 0.00%


Total Hydraulic Production Plant 0 0 


OTHER PRODUCTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (341) 130 0.00%


Fuel Holders, Producers and Accessories (342) 140 0.00%


Prime Movers (343) 150 0.00%


Generators (344) 160 0.00%


Accessory Electric Equipment (345) 170 0.00%


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (346) 180 0.00%


Total Other Production Plant 0 0 


TRANSMISSION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (352) 190 0.00%


Station Equipment (353) 200 0.00%


Towers and Fixtures (354) 210 0.00%


Poles and Fixtures (355) 227,473 *3.03%


Overhead Conductors and Devices (356) 2311,893 *3.03%


Underground Conduit (357) 240 0.00%


Underground Conductors and Devices (358) 250 0.00%


Roads and Trails (359) 260 0.00%


Total Transmission Plant 0 19,366 


DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (361) 27821 25,860 1.85%


Station Equipment (362) 28137,277 1,908,893 3.45%


Storage Battery Equipment (363) 290 0 0.00%
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


311   10 


312   20 


313   30 


314   40 


315   50 


316   60 


0 0 0 0 0 


331   70 


332   80 


333   90 


334   100 


335   110 


336   120 


0 0 0 0 0 


341   130 


342   140 


343   150 


344   160 


345   170 


346   180 


0 0 0 0 0 


352   190 


353   200 


354   210 


355   227,473 *
356   2311,893 *
357   240 


358   250 


359   260 


0 0 0 0 19,366 


361   2726,681 


362   282,046,170 


363   290 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Poles, Towers and Fixtures (364) 3088,862 995,215 3.83%


Overhead Conductors and Devices (365) 31151,457 1,195,391 3.79%


Underground Conduit (366) 326,505 26,037 2.50%


Underground Conductors and Devices (367) 3366,992 683,707 3.70%


Line Transformers (368) 3491,133 524,468 3.33%


Services (369) 3546,743 653,441 3.67%


Meters (370) 3622,889 46,191 12.00%


Installations on Customers' Premises (371) 370 0.00%


Leased Property on Customers' Premises (372) 380 0.00%


Street Lighting and Signal Systems (373) 3916,287 178,885 4.00%


Total Distribution Plant 628,966 6,238,088 


GENERAL PLANT
Structures and Improvements (390) 4053,067 481,977 4.00%


Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 4111,808 40,292 6.25%


Computer Equipment (391.1) 4234,655 113,071 17.15%


Transportation Equipment (392) 435,907 234,218 2.52%


Stores Equipment (393) 44499 4,133 4.00%


Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 454,215 60,361 9.09%


Laboratory Equipment (395) 462,642 19,818 5.26%


Power Operated Equipment (396) 4732,810 792,317 4.14%


Communication Equipment (397) 4833,772 71,806 *5.88%


SCADA Equipment (397.1) 490 0.00%


Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 5062 0 5.00%


Total General Plant 179,437 1,817,993 


Total accum. prov. directly assignable 8,075,447 808,403 


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Electric Department 510 0.00%


Total accum. prov. for depreciation 8,075,447 808,403 


GENERAL PLANT
Other Tangible Property (399) 520 0.00%


Total General Plant 0 0 


Total accum. prov. directly assignable 8,075,447 808,403 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


364   3016,886 2,787 1,064,404 


365   3122,933 6,466 6,385 1,323,834 


366   32342 32,200 


367   333,900 819 745,980 


368   347,774 4,365 612,192 


369   354,083 728 695,373 


370   3669,080 


371   370 


372   380 


373   396,520 441 188,211 


62,096 11,583 10,750 0 6,804,125 


390   40535,044 


391   4152,100 


391.1 42147,726 


392   4349,184 3,003 193,944 


393   444,632 


394   4564,576 


395   4622,460 


396   47131,335 10,000 703,792 


397   48105,578 *
397.1 490 


398   5062 


180,519 0 13,003 0 1,829,914 


242,615 11,583 23,753 0 8,653,405 


 510 


242,615 11,583 23,753 0 8,653,405 


399   520 


0 0 0 0 0 


242,615 11,583 23,753 0 8,653,405 
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Copy 3 of Page E-9Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation - Electric --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page E-09)


If Accumulated Depreciation End of Year Balance is greater than the equivalent Plant in Service (Financed by Utility or
Municipality) EOY Balance, please explain.


Account 397 - Only one A/D account exists for two plant accounts - Communication and SCADA
equipment.


Account 355 and 356 - Overdepreciated in prior year.  No additional depreciation expense was
charged in 2010.
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


This page intentionally left blank
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Copy 1 of Page E-11Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


STEAM PRODUCTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (311) 10 0.00%


Boiler Plant Equipment (312) 20 0.00%


Engines and Engine Driven Generators (313) 30 0.00%


Turbogenerator Units (314) 40 0.00%


Accessory Electric Equipment (315) 50 0.00%


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (316) 60 0.00%


Total Steam Production Plant 0 0 


HYDRAULIC PRODUCTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (331) 70 0.00%


Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways (332) 80 0.00%


Water Wheels, Turbines and Generators (333) 90 0.00%


Accessory Electric Equipment (334) 100 0.00%


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (335) 110 0.00%


Roads, Railroads and Bridges (336) 120 0.00%


Total Hydraulic Production Plant 0 0 


OTHER PRODUCTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (341) 130 0.00%


Fuel Holders, Producers and Accessories (342) 140 0.00%


Prime Movers (343) 150 0.00%


Generators (344) 160 0.00%


Accessory Electric Equipment (345) 170 0.00%


Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (346) 180 0.00%


Total Other Production Plant 0 0 


TRANSMISSION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (352) 190 0.00%


Station Equipment (353) 200 0.00%


Towers and Fixtures (354) 210 0.00%


Poles and Fixtures (355) 220 0.00%


Overhead Conductors and Devices (356) 230 0.00%


Underground Conduit (357) 240 0.00%


Underground Conductors and Devices (358) 250 0.00%


Roads and Trails (359) 260 0.00%


Total Transmission Plant 0 0 


DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (361) 270 0.00%


Station Equipment (362) 280 0.00%


Storage Battery Equipment (363) 290 0.00%
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


311   10 


312   20 


313   30 


314   40 


315   50 


316   60 


0 0 0 0 0 


331   70 


332   80 


333   90 


334   100 


335   110 


336   120 


0 0 0 0 0 


341   130 


342   140 


343   150 


344   160 


345   170 


346   180 


0 0 0 0 0 


352   190 


353   200 


354   210 


355   220 


356   230 


357   240 


358   250 


359   260 


0 0 0 0 0 


361   270 


362   280 


363   290 
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Copy 2 of Page E-11Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Poles, Towers and Fixtures (364) 30125,169 3.83% 18,866 


Overhead Conductors and Devices (365) 31173,586 3.79% 28,754 


Underground Conduit (366) 321,322 2.50% 967 


Underground Conductors and Devices (367) 33128,193 3.70% 23,131 


Line Transformers (368) 34778 3.33% 364 


Services (369) 3566,653 3.67% 10,749 


Meters (370) 360 3.70% 28 


Installations on Customers' Premises (371) 370 0.00%


Leased Property on Customers' Premises (372) 380 0.00%


Street Lighting and Signal Systems (373) 3924,744 4.00% 4,107 


Total Distribution Plant 520,445 86,966 


GENERAL PLANT
Structures and Improvements (390) 400 0.00%


Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 410 0.00%


Computer Equipment (391.1) 420 0.00%


Transportation Equipment (392) 431,179 2.52% 393 


Stores Equipment (393) 440 0.00%


Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 450 0.00%


Laboratory Equipment (395) 460 0.00%


Power Operated Equipment (396) 470 4.14% 9,725 


Communication Equipment (397) 480 0.00%


SCADA Equipment (397.1) 490 0.00%


Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 500 5.00% 63 


Total General Plant 1,179 10,181 


Total accum. prov. directly assignable 521,624 97,147 


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Electric Department 510 0.00%


Total accum. prov. for depreciation 521,624 97,147 


GENERAL PLANT
Other Tangible Property (399) 520 0.00%


Total General Plant 0 0 


Total accum. prov. directly assignable 521,624 97,147 


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:07:46 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAE







Copy 2 of Page E-12Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - ELECTRIC (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


364   304,222 696 139,117 


365   315,688 1,662 194,990 


366   322,289 


367   33975 205 150,144 


368   341,142 


369   351,066 136 76,200 


370   3628 


371   370 


372   380 


373   391,630 110 27,111 


13,581 2,809 0 0 591,021 


390   400 


391   410 


391.1 420 


392   431,572 


393   440 


394   450 


395   460 


396   479,725 


397   480 


397.1 490 


398   5063 


0 0 0 0 11,360 


13,581 2,809 0 0 602,381 


 510 


13,581 2,809 0 0 602,381 


399   520 


0 0 0 0 0 


13,581 2,809 0 0 602,381 
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TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION LINES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Miles of Line Owned


Total
End of Year


(f)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(d)


Adjustments
During Year


(e)
First of Year


(b)
Classification


(a)


Primary Distribution System Voltage(s) -- Urban


Pole Lines


2.4/4.16 kV (4kV) 10 0


7.2/12.5 kV (12kV) 239 39


Other:


14.4/24.9 kV (25kV) 30 0


NONE 40 0


Underground Lines


2.4/4.16 kV (4kV) 50 0


7.2/12.5 kV (12kV) 633 33


Other:


14.4/24.9 kV (25kV) 70 0


NONE 80 0


Primary Distribution System Voltage(s) -- Rural


Pole Lines


2.4/4.16 kV (4kV) 90 0


7.2/12.5 kV (12kV) 10101 1 102


Other:


14.4/24.9 kV (25kV) 110 0


Secondary 7.2/12.5 (12kV) 1232 32


Underground Lines


2.4/4.16 kV (4kV) 130 0


7.2/12.5 kV (12kV) 1415 15


Other:


14.4/24.9 kV (25kV) 150 0


NONE 160 0


Transmission System


Pole Lines


34.5 kV 170 0


69 kV 180 0


115 kV 190 0


Other:


138 kV 200 0


NONE 210 0


Underground Lines


34.5 kV 220 0


69 kV 230 0


115 kV 240 0


Other:


138 kV 250 0


NONE 260 0
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RURAL LINE CUSTOMERS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Rural lines are those serving mainly rural or farm customers.


electric service for the operation of an individual farm, or for residential use in living quarters on the farm occupied by
persons principally engaged in the operation of the farm and by their families.  A


produce agricultural and dairy products, for raising livestock, poultry, game, fur-bearing animals, or for floriculture, or similar
purposes, and embracing not less than 3 acres; or, if small, where the principal income of the operator is derived therefrom.


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


 Farm Customer:  Defined as a person or organization using


 farm is a tract of land used to raise or


Customers added on rural lines during year:


Farm Customers


Nonfarm Customers


Total


Customers on rural lines at end of year:


Rural Customers (served at rural rates):


Farm


Nonfarm


Total


Customers served at other than rural rates:


Farm


Nonfarm


Total


0 


0 


8 


2,315 


2,323 


2,323 


 2


 3


 4


 5


 6


 7


 8


 9


10


11


12


13


14


 1


Total customers on rural lines at end of year
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MONTHLY PEAK DEMAND AND ENERGY USAGE 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


1. Report hereunder the information called for pertaining to simultaneous peak demand established monthly and monthly


energy usage col. (f) (in thousands of kilowatt-hours).
2. Monthly peak col. (b) (reported as actual number) should be respondent's maximum kw. load as measured by the sum of 


its coincidental net generation and purchases plus or minus net interchange, minus temporary deliveries (not interchange) 
of emergency power to another system.


3. Monthly energy usage should be the sum of respondent's net generation for load and purchases plus or minus net
interchange and plus or minus net transmission or wheeling. Total for the year should agree with Total Source of Energy


on the Electric Energy Account schedule.
4. If the utility has two or more power systems not physically connected, the information called for below should be


furnished for each system.
5. Time reported in column (e) should be in military time (e.g., 6:30 pm would be reported as 18:30).


Monthly Peak


Month
(a)


Monthly
Energy Usage


(kWh)
(000's)


(f)


Time Beginning
(HH:MM)


(e)


Date
(MM/DD/YYYY)


(d)


Day
of Week


(c)
kW
(b)


22,951 01January 12,490 17:0001/04/2010Monday 1


21,538 02February 10,853 18:0002/09/2010Tuesday 2


19,868 03March 10,925 18:0003/02/2010Tuesday 3


18,418 04April 9,718 10:0004/08/2010Thursday 4


29,494 05May 11,065 15:0005/24/2010Monday 5


28,518 06June 12,235 17:0006/22/2010Tuesday 6


31,542 07July 14,736 16:0007/14/2010Wednesday 7


32,868 08August 14,415 16:0008/12/2010Thursday 8


23,844 09September 10,741 16:0009/02/2010Thursday 9


19,609 10October 10,532 19:0010/11/2010Monday 10


21,978 11November 10,801 17:0011/30/2010Tuesday 11


23,919 12December 12,879 17:0012/13/2010Monday 12


State type of monthly peak reading (instantaneous 0, 15, 30, or 60 minutes integrated) and supplier.


Type of Reading Supplier


WPPI60 minutes integrated 1


System Name


Total 141,390 294,547 


Stoughton Electric Utility
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ELECTRIC ENERGY ACCOUNT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


kWh (000's)
(b)


Fossil Steam


Source of Energy


Generation (excluding Station Use):


Internal Combustion Reciprocating


Non-Conventional (wind, photovoltaic, etc.)


Total Generation


Out (gross)


Net


Delivered


Net


Total Source of Energy


Transmission for/by others (wheeling):


In (gross) Interchanges:


Nuclear Steam


Hydraulic


Internal Combustion Turbine


 3


 4


 5


 6


 8


 9


10


11


 2


Sales to Ultimate Consumers (including interdepartmental sales)


Disposition of Energy


Sales For Resale


Energy Used by the Company (excluding station use):


Electric Utility


Common (office, shops, garages, etc. serving 2 or more util. depts.)


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23Total Used by Company


Total Sold and Used 24


25Energy Losses:


26Transmission Losses (if applicable)


27Distribution Losses


Total Energy Losses


29Loss Percentage (% Total Energy Losses of Total Source of Energy)


Total Disposition of Energy


28


30


 7


Received


Purchases


0 


0 


0 


142,937 


138,095 


105 


105 


138,200 


4,737 


4,737 


3.3140%


142,937 


142,937 


 1*
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ELECTRIC ENERGY ACCOUNT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Electric Energy Account (Page E-15)


General footnotes
Difference between purchases on E-15 and purchased power statistics page is the power purchased
from Dunkirk Hydro Power.
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SALES OF ELECTRICITY BY RATE SCHEDULE


1. Column (e) is the sum of the 12 monthly peak demands for all of the customers in each class.


2. Column (f) is the sum of the 12 monthly customer (or distribution) demands for all of the customers in each class.


Type of Sales/Rate Class Title
(a)


Avg. No.
of Customers


(c)


kWh
(000 Omitted)


(d)


Rate
Schedule


(b)


Residential Sales


RESIDENTIAL RG-1  7,581 66,469 1


RESIDENTIAL TOD RG-2  4 69 2


Total Sales for Residential Sales 7,585 66,538 


Commercial & Industrial


SMALL POWER CP-1  50 14,071 3


LARGE POWER CP-2  10 9,663 4


INDUSTRIAL POWER CP-3  7 28,994 5


COMMERCIAL GS-1  773 17,888 6


COMMERCIAL GS-2  1 6 7


Total Sales for Commercial & Industrial 841 70,622 


Public Street & Highway Lighting


STREET LIGHTING MS-1  16 935 8


Total Sales for Public Street & Highway Lighting 16 935 


Sales for Resale


NONE 9


Total Sales for Sales for Resale 0 0 


TOTAL SALES FOR ELECTRICITY 8,442 138,095 


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:07:47 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAE
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SALES OF ELECTRICITY BY RATE SCHEDULE (cont.)


Total
Revenues


(g)+(h)


PCAC
Revenues


(h)


Tariff
Revenues


(g)


Customer or
Distribution kW


(f)
Demand kW


(e)


7,243,261 1,094,944 6,148,317 1


7,211 1,121 6,090 2


7,250,472 1,096,065 6,154,407 0 0 


1,313,188 238,221 1,074,967 57,831 45,733 3


907,490 164,422 743,068 37,379 28,617 4


2,555,924 492,199 2,063,725 89,110 81,892 5


1,852,592 298,442 1,554,150 6


794 76 718 7


6,629,988 1,193,360 5,436,628 184,320 156,242 


132,009 15,539 116,470 8


132,009 15,539 116,470 0 0 


0 9


0 0 0 0 0 


14,012,469 2,304,964 11,707,505 184,320 156,242 
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PURCHASED POWER STATISTICS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Use separate columns for each point of delivery, where a different wholesale supplier contract applies.


Particulars
(a) (b) (c)


DUNKIRK POWER


SOUTH


SURPLUS
69,000


substation


3,250 


WPPI


N & E & S SUBSTATION


Firm
69,000


Substation


294,547 


(d) (e)


0.0000


Off-peak


0 
1,547 
1,547 


65.2055%
10,899,730 


4,786 
4,571 


4,765 


4,276 
4,402 
5,426 


0.0771


Off-peak
7,704 
6,283 


6,160 


5,442 
6,663 
6,808 


8,566 


8,146 
6,108 
6,196 


6,294 


7,375 
81,745 59,645 


5,504 


4,507 


4,335 
4,633 


6,269 


6,171 


65.7569%


Off-peak Off-peakOn-peakOn-peak


On-peakOn-peak


Name of Vendor


Point of Delivery


Type of Power Purchased (firm, dump, etc.)
Voltage at Which Delivered
Point of Metering


Total of 12 Monthly Maximum Demands -- kW


Average load factor
Total Cost of Purchased Power
Average cost per kWh


On-Peak Hours (if applicable)


Monthly purchases --- kWh (000):
January
February


March


April
May
June


July


August
September


October


January
February


March


April
May


June


July
August
September
October


November


December
Total kWh (000)


Name of Vendor


Point of Delivery


Voltage at Which Delivered
Point of Metering
Type of Power Purchased (firm, dump, etc.)


Total of 12 Monthly Maximum Demands -- kW


Average load factor
Total Cost of Purchased Power
Average cost per kWh


On-Peak Hours (if applicable)


Monthly purchases --- kWh (000):


 1


 2


 3
 4
 5


 6


 7
 8
 9


10


11
12
13


14


15
16
17


18
19
20


21


22


23
24


26


27
28
29


30


31
32
33


34


35
36
37


38


39
40
41


42


43
44
45


46


47
48
49


50


November


December


Total kWh (000)


51
52


25Footnotes:


53Footnotes:
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SUBSTATION EQUIPMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Report separately each substation used wholly or in part for transmission, each distribution substation over 1,000 kVA


capacity and each substation that serves customers with energy for resale.


Utility DesignationParticulars
(a) (d) (e)(b) (c) (f)


(r)


Name of Substation


Voltage--High Side 2


11


12


26


27


3Voltage--Low Side


4Num. Main Transformers in Operation


5Total Capacity of Transformers in kVA


60 0 0 Number of Spare Transformers on Hand


713,752 10,814 15-Minute Maximum Demand in kW


8Dt and Hr of Such Maximum Demand


944,785,418 54,409,647 42,179,255 Kwh Output


13SUBSTATION EQUIPMENT (continued) 
14Utility Designation


15(i) (j) (k)(h)
Particulars


(g)


Name of Substation


Voltage--High Side


Voltage--Low Side


Num. of Main Transformers in Operation


Total Capacity of Transformers in kVA


Number of Spare Transformers on Hand


15-Minute Maximum Demand in kW


Dt and Hr of Such Maximum Demand


Kwh Output


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


28SUBSTATION EQUIPMENT (continued) 
29Utility Designation


30(q)(p)(o)(n)
Particulars


(m)


Name of Substation


32Voltage--High Side


33Voltage--Low Side


34Num. of Main Transformers in Operation


35Capacity of Transformers in kVA


36Number of Spare Transformers on Hand


3715-Minute Maximum Demand in kW


38Dt and Hr of Such Maximum Demand


39Kwh Output


EAST      North     South     


69,000 69,000 69,000 


12,470 12,470 12,470 


2 2 2 


20,000 20,000 20,000 


10,774 


10/11/2010 14:00 08/12/2010 18:00 08/12/2010 18:00


1


16


31


10Footnotes


25Footnotes


Footnotes 40


(l)
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ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION METERS & LINE TRANSFORMERS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


Total Cap.
(kVA)


(d)
Particulars


(a)


Number of
Watt-Hour


Meters
(b)


Line Transformers


Number
(c)


Total end of year 8,686 2,567 111,918 


Number first of year


Acquired during year


Total


Retired during year


Sales, transfers or adjustments increase (decrease)


Number end of year


Number end of year accounted for as follows:


In customers' use


In utility's use


Locked meters on customers' premises


In stock


 2


 3


 7


 4


 5


 6


 8


 9


10


11


12


13


8,451 


244 


8,695 


9 


8,686 


8,391 


295 


2,571 


6 


2,577 


10 


2,567 


2,474 


93 


110,456 


3,200 


113,656 


1,738 


111,918 


103,022 


8,896 


 1


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:07:47 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAE







Copy 1 of Page E-28


STREET LIGHTING EQUIPMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5740 - STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


1. Under column (a) use the following types: Sodium Vapor, Mercury Vapor, Incandescent, Fluorescent, Metal Halide/Halogen,


2. Indicate size in watts, column(b).
Other.


3. If breakdown of kWh column (d) is not available, please allocate based on utility's best estimate.


Particulars
(a)


Watts
(b)


Number
Each Type


(c)


kWh Used
Annually


(d)


Street Lighting Non-Ornamental                    


Sodium Vapor                                      250 709 704 1


Total 709 704 


Ornamental                                        


Sodium Vapor                                      150 13 21 2


Sodium Vapor                                      250 91 78 3


Total 104 99 


Other                                             


NONE                                              0 0 4


Total 0 0 
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ELECTRIC OPERATING SECTION FOOTNOTES 


Electric Operation & Maintenance Expenses (Page E-03)


For values that represent an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater
than 15%, but not less $10,000, please explain.


Account 555 - Increase is due to a substantial increase in kWh sold and a
wholesale rate increase for 2010.


Account 588 - Decrease is due to a drop in labor charged to this account.
It went from $20,414 in 2009 down to $6,406 in 2010.


Account 592 - Increase is mainly from two work orders.  One was expensed as
site clean up from a land purchase to be used for a future substation.  The
other was a "best value plan - study" prepared for ATC related to switching
at our North Substation.


Account 904 - Increase in account write-offs due to discharge of debt from
bankruptcies.


Account 920 - More labor dollars were allocated to specific distribution
expense accounts in 2010.  Total labor did not decrease.


Account 921 - See restatement of 2009 recorded as a credit to account 434.
Expense from 2009 was high due to an error in calculation of power costs for
the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Costs were allocated to all three utilities
rather than the wastewater utility only.


Account 923 - Increase due to legal fees associated with labor negotiations
with IBEW.  Line crew employees are now represented by IBEW.


Account 926 - Decrease is due to a significant reduction in health insurance
claims paid.  Actual claims decreased by $70,000 in 2010 (compared to 2009).


Electric Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page E-06)


If Additions for any Accounts exceed $100,000, please explain.


Account 365 - Utility financed overhead line replacements.


Account 396 - Includes purchase of hybrid line vehicle (utility financed
portion).


If Retirements for any Accounts exceed $100,000, please explain.


Account 396 - For trade in of old line truck.


If Adjustments for any account are nonzero, please explain.


Account 370 - Adjustment to reflect prior year retirement.


Electric Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Contributions-- (Page E-07)


If Additions or Retirements for any Accounts exceed $100,000, please explain.


Account 396 - WI Clean Transportation grant received for the purchase of two
hybrid line vehicles.
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ELECTRIC OPERATING SECTION FOOTNOTES 


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation - Electric --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page E-09


If Accumulated Depreciation End of Year Balance is greater than the equivalent Plant in Service
(Financed by Utility or Municipality) EOY Balance, please explain.


Account 397 - Only one A/D account exists for two plant accounts -
Communication and SCADA equipment.


Account 355 and 356 - Overdepreciated in prior year.  No additional
depreciation expense was charged in 2010.


Electric Energy Account (Page E-15)


General footnotes


Difference between purchases on E-15 and purchased power statistics page is
the power purchased from Dunkirk Hydro Power.
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GENERAL RULES FOR REPORTING


Page i   


1.


6.
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5


S
W
20


2.


3.


4.


5.


Prepare the report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Public Service


indicate negative values. Parentheses shall not be used for numeric items. The program will convert the
minus sign to parentheses for hard copy annual report purposes.  Negative values may not be allowed 
for certain entries in the annual report due to restrictions contained in the software program. 


The annual report should be complete in itself in all particulars.  Reference to reports of former years
should not be made to take the place of required entries except as otherwise specifically authorized. 


shown by the annual report of the previous year or an appropriate explanation given why different
data is being reported for the current year.  Where available, use an adjustment column.


Whenever schedules call for data from the previous year, the data reported must be based upon those


Wherever information is required to be shown as text, the information shall be shown in the space 
provided using other than account titles.  In each case, the information shall be properly identified.  
Footnote capability is included in the annual report software program and shall be utilized where 
necessary to further explain particulars of a schedule.


All dollar amounts will be reported in whole dollars.


Commission of  Wisconsin. 


Numeric items shall contain digits (0-9).  A minus sign "-" shall be entered in the software program to 


03/24/2011 Date Printed:  PSCW Annual Report: MAF8:07:56 AM







Copy 1 of Page ii  


SIGNATURE PAGE 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


02/07/2011


(Signature of person responsible for accounts) (Date)


FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER


(Title)


I KIM M JENNINGS of


(Person responsible for accounts)


Stoughton Water Utility , certify that I


(Utility Name)


am the person responsible for accounts; that I have examined the following report and, to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief, it is a correct statement of the business and affairs of said utility for 
the period covered by the report in respect to each and every matter set forth therein.
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IDENTIFICATION AND OWNERSHIP 
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Exact Utility Name:


Utility Address:


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


600 S. FOURTH STREET


P.O. BOX 383


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-0383


 9/15/1886When was utility organized?


Report any change in name:


Effective Date:


www.stoughtonutilities.comUtility Web Site:


Utility employee in charge of correspondence concerning this report:


600 S. FOURTH STREET                


P.O. BOX 383   


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-0383


MS KIM JENNINGS, CPAName:


FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER                Title:


Office Address:


(608) 877 - 7415 EXT       Telephone:


(608) 873 - 4878Fax Number:


kjennings@stoughtonutilities.com                                                Email Address:


Individual or firm, if other than utility employee, preparing this report:


 


 


Name:


Title:


Office Address:


Telephone:


Fax Number:


kjennings@stoughtonutilities.com                                                Email Address:


President, chairman, or head of utility commission/board or committee:


381 E. MAIN STREET                  


STOUGHTON, WI 53589     


 


DONNA OLSONName:


MAYOR                                             Title:


Office Address:


(608) 873 - 6459Telephone:


Fax Number:


dolson@ci.stoughton.wi.us                                                       Email Address:


Are records of utility audited by individuals or firms, other than utility employee? YES


Individual or firm, if other than utility employee, auditing utility records:


MADISON, WI 53718     


 


MS. JODI DOBSONName:


Title: MANAGER                                           


BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE LLP                                             Office Address:


TEN TERRACE COURT                   


(608) 249 - 6622Telephone:


Fax Number:


jodi.dobson@bakertilly.com                                                      Email Address:
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IDENTIFICATION AND OWNERSHIP 
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 1/21/2011Date of most recent audit report:


 2010Period covered by most recent audit:


Names and titles of utility management including manager or superintendent:


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-0383


P.O. BOX 383   


600 S. FOURTH STREET                


MR. ROBERT P. KARDASZ, P.E.Name:


UTILITIES DIRECTOR                                Title:


Office Address:


(608) 877 - 7423 EXT       Telephone:


(608) 873 - 4878Fax Number:


rkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com                                                 Email Address:


Name of utility commission/committee:  Utilities Committee


Names of members of utility commission/committee:
MR CARL CHENOWETH, ALDERPERSON


MR DAVID ERDMAN, CITIZEN MEMBER


MR JONATHAN HAJNY, CITIZEN MEMBER


MS ANGIE HALVERSON, CITIZEN MEMBER


MR ERIC HOHOL, ALDERPERSON


MS DONNA OLSON, MAYOR-CHAIR


MR STEVE TONE, ALDERPERSON


YESIs sewer service rendered by the utility?


If "yes," has the municipality, by ordinance, combined the water and sewer service into a single public utility, 


as provided by Wis. Stat. § 66.0819 of the Wisconsin Statutes? NO


Date of Ordinance:


Are any of the utility administrative or operational functions under contract or agreement with an


outside provider for the year covered by this annual report and/or current year (i.e., operation 


of water or sewer treatment plant)? NO


Provide the following information regarding the provider(s) of contract services:


 


 


NONEFirm Name:


Contact Person:


Title:


Telephone:


Fax Number:


Email Address:


Provide a brief description of the nature of Contract Operations being provided:


Contract/Agreement beginning-ending dates:


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:07:57 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAF







Copy 1 of Page F-1


INCOME STATEMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


UTILITY OPERATING INCOME


 Operating Expenses:


Operating Revenues (400) 1,558,841 1,320,413 1


Operation and Maintenance Expense (401-402) 710,376 713,760 2


Depreciation Expense (403) 231,353 232,637 3


Amortization Expense (404-407) 0 0 4


Total Operating Expenses


Net Operating Income


Taxes (408)


342,395 


1,216,446 1,188,778 


131,635 


274,717 242,381 5


Income from Utility Plant Leased to Others (412-413) (4,280) (4,280) 6


Utility Operating Income 338,115 127,355 


OTHER INCOME


Income from Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415-416) 0 0 7


Income from Nonutility Operations (417) 0 0 8


Nonoperating Rental Income (418) 0 0 9


Interest and Dividend Income (419) 68,129 134,766 10


Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) 612,176 3,421 11


Total Other Income


Total Income 1,018,420 


680,305 138,187 


265,542 


MISCELLANEOUS INCOME DEDUCTIONS


Miscellaneous Amortization (425) (34,228) (34,228) 12


Other Income Deductions (426) 95,806 88,588 13


Total Miscellaneous Income Deductions


Income Before Interest Charges 956,842 


61,578 54,360 


211,182 


INTEREST CHARGES


Interest on Long-Term Debt (427) 98,444 95,733 14


Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428) 0 0 15


Amortization of Premium on Debt--Cr. (429) 0 0 16


Interest on Debt to Municipality (430) 0 0 17


Other Interest Expense (431) 0 0 18


Interest Charged to Construction--Cr. (432) 0 0 19


Total Interest Charges


Net Income 858,398 


98,444 95,733 


115,449 


EARNED SURPLUS


Unappropriated Earned Surplus (Beginning of Year) (216) 9,295,688 9,229,348 20


Balance Transferred from Income (433) 858,398 115,449 21


Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (434) 19,533 0 22


Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus--Debit (435) 43,853 43,853 23


Appropriations of Surplus--Debit (436) 0 0 24


Appropriations of Income to Municipal Funds--Debit (439) 6,048 5,256 25


Total Unappropriated Earned Surplus End of Year (216) 10,123,718 9,295,688 
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Description of Item
(a)


1.  Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)
and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


2.  Nonregulated sewer income should be reported as Income from Nonutility Operations, Account 417.


Earnings
(216.1)


(b)


Contributions
(216.2)


(c)


Total
This Year


(d)


UTILITY OPERATING INCOME


 Operating Revenues (400):


 Derived 1,558,841 0 1,558,841 1


1,558,841 0 1,558,841  Total (Acct. 400):


 Operation and Maintenance Expense (401-402):


 Derived 710,376 0 710,376 2


710,376 0 710,376  Total (Acct. 401-402):


 Depreciation Expense (403):


 Derived 231,353 0 231,353 3


231,353 0 231,353  Total (Acct. 403):


 Amortization Expense (404-407):


 Derived 0 0 0 4


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 404-407):


 Taxes (408):


 Derived 274,717 0 274,717 5


274,717 0 274,717  Total (Acct. 408):


 Revenues from Utility Plant Leased to Others (412):


 NONE 0 6


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 412):


 Expenses of Utility Plant Leased to Others (413):


 NONE 4,280 4,280 7


4,280 0 4,280  Total (Acct. 413):


338,115 0 338,115 TOTAL UTILITY OPERATING INCOME:


OTHER INCOME


 Income from Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415-416):


 Derived 0 0 0 8


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 415-416):


 Income from Nonutility Operations (417):


 NONE 0 9


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 417):


 Nonoperating Rental Income (418):


 NONE 0 10


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 418):


 Interest and Dividend Income (419):


 INTEREST INCOME 68,129 68,129 11


68,129 0 68,129  Total (Acct. 419):


 Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421):


 Contributed Plant - Water 612,176 612,176 12


 NONE 0 13


0 612,176 612,176  Total (Acct. 421):


68,129 612,176 680,305 TOTAL OTHER INCOME:
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Description of Item
(a)


1.  Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)
and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


2.  Nonregulated sewer income should be reported as Income from Nonutility Operations, Account 417.


Earnings
(216.1)


(b)


Contributions
(216.2)


(c)


Total
This Year


(d)


MISCELLANEOUS INCOME DEDUCTIONS


 Miscellaneous Amortization (425):


 Regulatory Liability (253) Amortization (34,228) 0 (34,228) 14


 NONE 0 15


(34,228) 0 (34,228) Total (Acct. 425):


 Other Income Deductions (426):


 Depreciation Expense on Contributed Plant - Water 0 95,806 95,806 16


 NONE 0 17


0 95,806 95,806  Total (Acct. 426):


(34,228) 95,806 61,578 TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS INCOME DEDUCTIONS:


INTEREST CHARGES


 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427):


 Derived 98,444 0 98,444 18


98,444 0 98,444  Total (Acct. 427):


 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428):


 NONE 0 19


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 428):


 Amortization of Premium on Debt--Cr. (429):


 NONE 0 20


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 429):


 Interest on Debt to Municipality (430):


 Derived 0 0 0 21


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 430):


 Other Interest Expense (431):


 Derived 0 0 0 22


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 431):


 Interest Charged to Construction--Cr. (432):


 NONE 0 23


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 432):


98,444 0 98,444 TOTAL INTEREST CHARGES:


NET INCOME: 858,398 516,370 342,028 


EARNED SURPLUS


 Unappropriated Earned Surplus (Beginning of Year) (216):


 Derived 5,121,153 4,174,535 9,295,688 24


5,121,153 4,174,535 9,295,688  Total (Acct. 216):


 Balance Transferred from Income (433):


 Derived 342,028 516,370 858,398 25


342,028 516,370 858,398  Total (Acct. 433):


 Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (434):


 RESTATEMENT TO CORRECT ALLOCATION OF WWTP POWER CO 19,533 19,533 26*
19,533 0 19,533  Total (Acct. 434):
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Description of Item
(a)


1.  Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)
and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


2.  Nonregulated sewer income should be reported as Income from Nonutility Operations, Account 417.


Earnings
(216.1)


(b)


Contributions
(216.2)


(c)


Total
This Year


(d)


EARNED SURPLUS


 Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus--Debit (435):


 AMORTIZATION OF LOSS ON EARLY RETIREMENT OF METERS 43,853 43,853 27*
43,853 0 43,853  Total (Acct. 435)--Debit:


 Appropriations of Surplus--Debit (436):


 Detail appropriations to (from) account 215 0 28


0 0 0  Total (Acct. 436)--Debit:


 Appropriations of Income to Municipal Funds--Debit (439):


 TAX STABILIZATION PAYMENT 6,048 6,048 29


6,048 0 6,048  Total (Acct. 439)--Debit:


5,432,813 4,690,905 10,123,718 UNAPPROPRIATED EARNED SURPLUS (END OF YEAR):
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DETAILS OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Details of Income Statement Accounts (Page F-02)


If amount of Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (Acct 434) exceeds $10,000, please explain fully.
In 2009, power costs for our Wastewater Treatment Plant were being allocated to all three
utilities in error.  It should have been just wastewater expense. We restated 2009 expense to
reflect this change.


If amount of Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus (Acct 435) exceeds $10,000, please explain fully.
The debit to surplus in an amortization of loss on early retirement of meters from our AMR
replacement project in 2007-08.
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INCOME FROM MERCHANDISING, JOBBING & CONTRACT WORK (ACCTS. 415-416) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Water
(b)


Electric
(c)


Sewer
(d)


Gas
(e)


Total
(f)


Revenues (account 415) 0 1


Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (416):


Cost of merchandise sold 0 2
Payroll 0 3
Materials 0 4


Other (list by major classes):


Taxes 0 5


NONE 0 6


Total costs and expenses 0 0 0 0 0 


Net income (or loss) 0 0 0 0 0 
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REVENUES SUBJECT TO WISCONSIN REMAINDER ASSESSMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. Report data necessary to calculate revenue subject to Wisconsin remainder assessment pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 196.85(2)


and Wis. Admin. Code Ch. PSC 5.
2. If the sewer department is not regulated by the PSC, do not report sewer department data in column (d).


Description
(a)


Water
Utility


(b)


Electric
Utility


(c)


Sewer Utility
(Regulated


Only)
(d)


Gas
Utility


(e)
Total


(f)


1Total operating revenues 0 1,558,841 1,558,841 0 0 


2Less: interdepartmental sales 0 318 318 0 


3Less: interdepartmental rents 0 0 0 0 


4Less: return on net investment in meters
charged to regulated sewer department.
(Do not report if nonregulated sewer.)


0 0 


Other Increases or (Decreases)


to Operating Revenues - Specify:


5Less: uncollectibles directly expensed as
reported in water acct. 904 (690 class D),
sewer acct. 843, and electric acct. 904 -or-
Net write-offs when Accumulated Provision
for Uncollectible Accounts (acct. 144) is
maintained


0 


6NONE 0 


Revenues subject to


Wisconsin Remainder Assessment 1,558,523 0 0 0 1,558,523 
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DISTRIBUTION OF TOTAL PAYROLL 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Accounts Charged
(a)


Allocation of
Amounts Charged


Clearing Accts.
(c)


Total
(d)


Direct
Payroll


Distribution
(b)


distributions to accounts on all other lines in column (c) will be positive with the total of column (c) being zero.


3. The amount for clearing accounts in column (c) is entered as a negative for account "Clearing Accounts" and the
2. Amount originally charged to clearing accounts as shown in column (b) should be shown as finally distributed in column (c).


accumulated depreciation accounts.
1. Amounts charged to Utility Financed and to Contributed Plant accounts should be combined and reported in plant or


4. Provide additional information in the schedule footnotes when necessary.


249,860 2,146 247,714 Water operating expenses                          1


0 0 0 Electric operating expenses                       2


0 0 0 Gas operating expenses                            3


0 0 0 Heating operating expenses                        4


0 0 0 Sewer operating expenses                          5


0 0 0 Merchandising and jobbing                         6


0 0 0 Other nonutility expenses                         7


4,783 0 4,783 Water utility plant accounts                      8


0 0 0 Electric utility plant accounts                   9


0 0 0 Gas utility plant accounts                        10


0 0 0 Heating utility plant accounts                    11


0 0 0 Sewer utility plant accounts                      12


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of water plant      13


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of electric plant   14


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of gas plant        15


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of heating plant    16


0 0 0 Accum. prov. for depreciation of sewer plant      17


0 (2,146)2,146 Clearing accounts                                 18


0 0 0 All other accounts                                19


Total Payroll 254,643 0 254,643 
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FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES (FTE) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


hours worked/2080 hours for a fiscal year.  Estimate to the nearest tenth.  If an employee works part time for more than one


Use FTE numbers where FTE stands for full-time employees or full-time equivalency.  FTE can be computed by using total


industry then determine FTE based on estimate of hours worked per industry.


Example: An employee worked 35% of their time on electric jobs, 30% on water jobs, 20% on sewer jobs and 15% on 
municipal nonutility jobs.  The FTE by industry would be .4 for electric, .3 for water and .2 for sewer.


Industry
(a)


FTE
(b)


1Water 5.0


2Electric


3Gas


4Sewer
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BALANCE SHEET 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Assets and Other Debits
(a)


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Balance
First of Year


(c)


UTILITY PLANT


Utility Plant (101) 16,577,579 15,149,234 1
Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and Amortization of Utility Plant (111) 4,501,174 4,169,918 2
Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustments (117-118) 3
Other Utility Plant Adjustments (119) 4


Total Net Utility Plant 12,076,405 10,979,316 


OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS


Nonutility Property (121) 107,000 107,000 5
Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and Amortization of Nonutility Property (122)


Net Nonutility Property


50,682 


56,318 60,598 


46,402 6


Investment in Municipality (123) 0 0 7
Other Investments (124) 0 0 8
Sinking Funds (125) 461,582 332,947 9
Depreciation Fund (126) 25,000 25,000 10
Other Special Funds (128) 446,950 446,731 11


Total Other Property and Investments 989,850 865,276 


CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS


Cash (131) 141,807 (190,629) 12
Special Deposits (134) 0 0 13
Working Funds (135) 14
Temporary Cash Investments (136) 533,660 764,990 15
Notes Receivable (141) 0 0 16
Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 193,105 165,728 17
Other Accounts Receivable (143) 4,455 3,328 18
Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts- -Cr. (144) 0 0 19
Receivables from Municipality (145) (42) 1,127 20
Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (154) 27,101 33,175 21
Merchandise (155) 0 0 22
Other Materials and Supplies (156) 0 0 23
Stores Expense (163) 0 0 24
Prepayments (165) 9,470 9,623 25
Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) 5,178 4,968 26
Accrued Utility Revenues (173) 27
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets (174) 28


Total Current and Accrued Assets 914,734 792,310 


DEFERRED DEBITS


Unamortized Debt Discount and Expense (181) 0 0 29
Extraordinary Property Losses (182) 0 0 30
Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183) 0 0 31
Clearing Accounts (184) 0 0 32
Temporary Facilities (185) 0 0 33
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186) 87,705 131,558 34


Total Deferred Debits 87,705 131,558 


Total Assets and Other Debits 14,068,694 12,768,460 
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BALANCE SHEET 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Liabilities and Other Credits
(a)


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Balance
First of Year


(c)


PROPRIETARY CAPITAL


Capital Paid in by Municipality (200) 504,588 504,588 35
Appropriated Earned Surplus (215) 36
Unappropriated Earned Surplus (216) 10,123,718 9,295,688 37


Total Proprietary Capital 10,628,306 9,800,276 


LONG-TERM DEBT


Bonds (221) 2,610,018 2,150,000 38
Advances from Municipality (223) 0 0 39
Other Long-Term Debt (224) 0 0 40


Total Long-Term Debt 2,610,018 2,150,000 


CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES


Notes Payable (231) 0 0 41
Accounts Payable (232) 9,811 9,542 42
Payables to Municipality (233) 0 0 43
Customer Deposits (235) 44
Taxes Accrued (236) 259,162 228,514 45
Interest Accrued (237) 17,520 15,794 46
Tax Collections Payable (241) 47
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 48


Total Current and Accrued Liabilities 286,493 253,850 


DEFERRED CREDITS


Unamortized Premium on Debt (251) 0 0 49
Customer Advances for Construction (252) 50
Other Deferred Credits (253) 543,877 564,334 51


Total Deferred Credits 543,877 564,334 


OPERATING RESERVES


Property Insurance Reserve (261) 52
Injuries and Damages Reserve (262) 53
Pensions and Benefits Reserve (263) 54
Miscellaneous Operating Reserves (265) 55


Total Operating Reserves 0 0 


Total Liabilities and Other Credits 14,068,694 12,768,460 
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NET UTILITY PLANT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Report utility plant accounts and related accumulated provisions for depreciation and amortization after allocation


of common plant accounts and related provisions for depreciation and amortization to utility departments
as of December 31.


Particulars
(a)


Water
(b)


Sewer
(c)


Gas
(d)


Electric
(e)


First of Year:


Total Utility Plant - First of Year 15,149,234 0 0 0 1


(Should agree with Util. Plant Jan. 1 in Property Tax Equivalent Schedule)


Plant Accounts:


Utility Plant in Service - Financed by Utility Operations or by the
Municipality (101.1)


10,512,391 0 0 0 2


Utility Plant in Service - Contributed Plant (101.2) 6,019,857 0 0 0 3
Utility Plant Purchased or Sold (102) 4
Utility Plant Leased to Others (104) 5
Property Held for Future Use (105) 6
Completed Construction not Classified (106) 7
Construction Work in Progress (107) 45,331 8


Total Utility Plant 16,577,579 0 0 0 


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and Amortization:


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant in Service -
Financed by Utility Operations or by the Municipality (111.1)


3,138,256 0 0 0 9


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant in Service -
Contributed Plant (111.2)


1,362,918 0 0 0 10


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant Leased to
Others (112)


11


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Property Held for Future
Use (113)


12


Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Utility Plant in Service
(114)


13


Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Utility Plant Leased to
Others (115)


14


Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Property Held for Future
Use (116)


15


Total Accumulated Provision 4,501,174 0 0 0 


Other Utility Plant Accounts:


Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustments (117) 16
Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Utility Plant Acquisition
Adjustments (118)


17


Other Utility Plant Adjustments (119) 18


Total Other Utility Plant Accounts 0 0 0 0 


Net Utility Plant 12,076,405 0 0 0 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF UTILITY PLANT
 ON UTILITY PLANT FINANCED BY UTILITY OPERATION


OR BY THE MUNICIPALITY (ACCT. 111.1)


 
(c)


 
(d)


 
(e)


Total
(f)


Particulars
(a)


Water
(b)


1. Report the amounts charged in the operating sections to Depreciation Expense (403).
2. If sewer operations are nonregulated, do not report sewer depreciation on this schedule.


If the sewer is also a regulated utility by the PSC, report an equal amount as a reduction in the Sewer column.


4. Report all other accruals charged to other accounts, such as to clearing accounts.


3. Report the Depreciation Expense on Meters charged to sewer operations as an addition in the Water column. 


Depreciation Accruals (Credits) during the year (111.1):


Balance first of year (111.1) 2,902,806 2,902,806 


Credits During Year


Accruals:


231,353 231,353 Charged depreciation expense (403)


Depreciation expense on meters


16,557 16,557 charged to sewer (see Note 3)


Accruals charged other


accounts (specify):


clearing                           10,800 10,800 


Salvage 1,706 1,706 


Other credits (specify):


                                   0 


0 


0 


0 


Total credits 260,416 260,416 0 0 0 


Debits during year


Book cost of plant retired 24,966 24,966 


Cost of removal 0 0 


Other debits (specify):


                                   0 


0 


0 


3,138,256 0 0 0 3,138,256 


24,966 24,966 0 0 0 


0 


1


 2


 3


 5


 7


 8


11


 17


20


 4


 6


 9


10


12


 13


 14


 15


 16


 18


 19


21


22


23


 24


 25


26


27


Total debits


Balance end of year (111.1)


Footnotes
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF UTILITY PLANT
 ON CONTRIBUTED PLANT IN SERVICE


(ACCT. 111.2)


 
(c)


 
(d)


 
(e)


Total
(f)


Particulars
(a)


Water
(b)


1. Report the amounts charged in the operating sections to Other Income Deductions (426).
2. If sewer operations are nonregulated, do not report sewer depreciation on this schedule.


If the sewer is also a regulated utility by the PSC, report an equal amount as a reduction in the Sewer column.


4. Report all other accruals charged to other accounts, such as to clearing accounts.


3. Report the Depreciation Expense on Meters charged to sewer operations as an addition in the Water column. 


Depreciation Accruals (Credits) during the year (111.2):


1


 2


 3


 4


Balance first of year (111.2) 1,267,112 1,267,112 


Credits During Year


Accruals:


95,806 95,806 Charged Other Income Deductions (426)


 5Depreciation expense on meters


0 charged to sewer (see Note 3)


 7Accruals charged other


 8accounts (specify):


0 


Salvage 0 0 


11Other credits (specify):


                                   0 


0 


0 


0 


Total credits 95,806 95,806 0 0 0 


 17Debits during year


Book cost of plant retired 0 0 


Cost of removal 0 0 


Other debits (specify):


0 


0 


0 0 0 0 0 


1,362,918 0 0 0 1,362,918 


 6


 9


10


12


 13


 14


 15


 16


 18


0                                    


 19


20


27


26


23


 24


 25


21


220 


Total debits


Balance end of year (111.2)


Footnotes
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NET NONUTILITY PROPERTY (ACCTS. 121 & 122) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. Report separately each item of property with a book cost of $5,000 or more included in account 121.


2. Other items may be grouped by classes of property.
3. Describe in detail any investment in sewer department carried in this account.


Description
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Deductions
During Year


(d)


Balance
End of Year


(e)


Nonregulated sewer plant 0 0 1


Park shelter at well house 107,000 107,000 2


Total Nonutility Property (121) 107,000 0 0 107,000 


-Less accum. prov. depr. & amort. (122) 46,402 4,280 50,682 3


Net Nonutility Property 60,598 (4,280) 0 56,318 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS-CR. (ACCT. 144) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


Balance first of year                                                           1


Additions:


Provision for uncollectibles during year                                        2


Collection of accounts previously written off: Utility Customers                3


Collection of accounts previously written off: Others                           4


Total Additions 0 


Deductions:


Accounts written off during the year: Utility Customers                         5


Accounts written off during the year: Others                                    6


Total accounts written off 0 


Balance end of year 0 
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MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


 Account 
(a)


Electric Utility


 Generation 
(b)


 Transmission 
(c)


 Distribution 
(d)


 Other 
(e)


Total 
 End of Year 


(f)


Amount
 Prior Year 


(g)


Fuel (151)                              0 0 1


Fuel stock expenses (152)               0 0 2


Plant mat. & oper. sup. (154)           0 0 3


Total Electric Utility 0 0 


Account 
Total 


 End of Year 
Amount


 Prior Year 


Electric utility total                  0 0 1


Water utility (154)                     27,101 33,175 2


Sewer utility (154)                     0 3


Heating utility (154)                   0 4


Gas utility (154)                       0 5


Merchandise (155)                       0 6


Other materials & supplies (156)        0 7


Stores expense (163)                    0 8


27,101 33,175 Total Materials and Supplies
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UNAMORTIZED DEBT DISCOUNT & EXPENSE & PREMIUM ON DEBT
(ACCTS. 181 AND 251)


Report net discount and expense or premium separately for each security issue.


Debt Issue to Which Related
(a)


Amount
(b)


Balance
End of Year


(d)


Account Charged
or Credited


(c)


Written Off During Year


Unamortized debt discount & expense (181)


 NONE 1


Total 0 


Unamortized premium on debt (251)


 NONE 2


Total 0 
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CAPITAL PAID IN BY MUNICIPALITY (ACCT. 200) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


and $2,000 (class D, sewer and privates) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using
other than account titles.


Amount
(b)


1Balance first of year                                                           504,588 


Changes during year (explain):


2


Balance end of year 504,588 
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BONDS (ACCT. 221) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Description of Issue
(a)


1. Report hereunder information required for each separate issue of bonds.


2. If there is more than one interest rate for an aggregate obligation issue, average the interest rates and report one rate.
3. Proceeds advanced by the municipality from sale of general obligation bonds, if repayable by utility, should be


included in account 223.


Date of
Issue


(b)


Final
Maturity


Date
(c)


Interest
Rate
(d)


Principal
Amount


End of Year
(e)


4.49%05/01/201303/25/20032003 MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS 1235,000 


3.99%05/01/202311/15/20062006 MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS 21,800,000 


2.66%05/01/202901/27/20102010 REVENUE BONDS - EIF 3575,018 


Total Bonds (Account 221): 2,610,018 
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NOTES PAYABLE & MISCELLANEOUS LONG-TERM DEBT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


3.  If there is more than one interest rate for an aggregate obligation issue, average the interest rates and report one rate.


2.  Proceeds of general obligation issues, if subject to repayment by the utility, should be included in Account 223.


1.  Report each class of debt included in Accounts 223, 224 and 231.


Account and Description of Obligation
(a and b)


 Date of 
 Issue 


(c)


 Final
Maturity


Date
(d)


 Interest 
Rate 


(e)


Principal 
Amount


End of Year
(f)


Advances from Municipality (223)


00/00/0000 00/00/0000 0.00% 0 1NONE


0 Total for Account 223   


Other Long-Term Debt (224)


00/00/0000 00/00/0000 0.00% 0 2NONE


0 Total for Account 224   


Notes Payable (231)


00/00/0000 00/00/0000 0.00% 0 3NONE


0 Total for Account 231   
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TAXES ACCRUED (ACCT. 236) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


Balance first of year                                                           228,514 1


Accruals:


Charged water department expense                                                274,716 2


Charged electric department expense                                             3


Other (explain):


Charged sewer department expense                                                5,106 4


NONE 5


Total Accruals and other credits 279,822 


Taxes paid during year:


County, state and local taxes                                                   228,514 6


Social Security taxes                                                           19,952 7


Other (explain):


PSC Remainder Assessment                                                        1,353 8


Clearing (645) 9


Total payments and other debits 249,174 


Balance end of year 259,162 
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INTEREST ACCRUED (ACCT. 237) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. Report below interest accrued on each utility obligation.


Description of Issue
(a)


2. Report Customer Deposits under Account 235.


Interest Accrued
Balance First


of Year
(b)


Interest Accrued
During Year


(c)


Interest Paid
During Year


(d)


Interest Accrued
Balance End


of Year
(e)


Bonds (221)


2006 MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS 13,479 79,542 79,875 13,146 1


2003 MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS 2,315 11,983 12,460 1,838 2


2010 REVENUE BONDS - EIF 0 6,919 4,383 2,536 3


Subtotal 15,794 98,444 96,718 17,520 


Advances from Municipality (223)


NONE 0 0 4


Subtotal 0 0 0 0 


Other Long-Term Debt (224)


NONE 0 0 5


Subtotal 0 0 0 0 


Notes Payable (231)


NONE 0 0 6


Subtotal 0 0 0 0 


Total 15,794 98,444 96,718 17,520 
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DETAIL OF OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Investment in Municipality (123):


NONE 1


0 Total (Acct. 123):


Other Investments (124):


NONE 2


0 Total (Acct. 124):


Sinking Funds (125):


349,660 RESERVE FUND 3


111,922 REDEMPTION FUND 4


461,582 Total (Acct. 125):


Depreciation Fund (126):


25,000 DEPRECIATION FUND 5


25,000 Total (Acct. 126):


Other Special Funds (128):


79,861 SICK LEAVE RESERVE 6


367,089 PLANT AND MAINTENANCE RESERVE 7


446,950 Total (Acct. 128):


Special Deposits (134):


NONE 8


0 Total (Acct. 134):


Notes Receivable (141):


NONE 9


0 Total (Acct. 141):


Customer Accounts Receivable (142):


193,105 Water 10


Electric 11


Other (specify):


Sewer (Regulated) 12


NONE 13


193,105 Total (Acct. 142):


Other Accounts Receivable (143):


Sewer (Non-regulated) 14


Other (specify):


Merchandising, jobbing and contract work 15


4,455 MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES 16


4,455 Total (Acct. 143):


Receivables from Municipality (145):


(42)REC FROM MUNI 17


(42)Total (Acct. 145):
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DETAIL OF OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


and $2,000 (class D) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous. Describe fully using other than account titles.


Balance
End of Year


(b)


Prepayments (165):


9,470 PREPAYMENTS 18


9,470 Total (Acct. 165):


Extraordinary Property Losses (182):


NONE 19


0 Total (Acct. 182):


Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183):


NONE 20


0 Total (Acct. 183):


Clearing Accounts (184):


NONE 21


0 Total (Acct. 184):


Temporary Facilities (185):


NONE 22


0 Total (Acct. 185):


Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186):


87,705 LOSS ON EARLY RETIREMENT OF METERS 23*
87,705 Total (Acct. 186):


Payables to Municipality (233):


NONE 24


0 Total (Acct. 233):


Other Deferred Credits (253):


444,968 Regulatory Liability 25


98,909 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 26


543,877 Total (Acct. 253):
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DETAIL OF OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Detail of Other Balance Sheet Accounts (Page F-22)


Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (Acct 186): amortization requires PSC authorization.  Provide date of authorization.
Account 186 includes the balance of unamortized loss on meters.  The PSC approved this
amortization plan for our AMR project in 2008.
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RETURN ON RATE BASE COMPUTATION 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


2. Calculate those averages by summing the first-of-year and the end-of-year figures for each account and then dividing


1. The data used in calculating rate base are averages.


3. Note: Do not include contributed plant in service, property held for future use, or construction work in progress with


the sum by two.


utility plant in service. These are not rate base components.


Average Rate Base
(a)


Electric
(c)


Sewer
(d)


Gas
(e)


Total
(f)


Water
(b)


Add Average:


Utility Plant in Service (101.1) 0 0 0 10,007,353 10,007,353 1


Other (specify):


Materials and Supplies 0 0 0 30,138 30,138 2


NONE 0 3


Less Average:


Reserve for Depreciation (111.1) 0 0 0 3,020,531 3,020,531 4
Customer Advances for Construction 0 5
Regulatory Liability 0 0 0 462,082 462,082 6
NONE 0 7


6,554,878 Average Net Rate Base 6,554,878 0 0 0 


Net Operating Income 0 0 0 342,395 342,395 8


Net Operating Income 
as a percent of 


Average Net Rate Base N/A N/A N/A 5.22%5.22%
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REGULATORY LIABILITY - PRE-2003 HISTORICAL
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ON CONTRIBUTED UTILITY


PLANT (253)


Particulars
(a)


Total
(f)


Gas
(e)


Sewer
(d)


Electric
(c)


Water
(b)


Balance First of Year 0 0 0 479,196 479,196 1


Add credits during year:
0 2


Deduct charges:


Other (specify):


Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 0 0 0 34,228 34,228 3


0 4


Balance End of Year 0 0 444,968 444,968 0 
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IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Report changes of any of the following types:


1. Acquisitions.


East Side Elevated Tank construction completed in 2010.


2. Leaseholder changes.


3. Extensions of service.


4. Estimated changes in revenues due to rate changes.


Phase II of a water rate adjustment became effective on September 1, 2010.


5. Obligations incurred or assumed, excluding commercial paper.


A loan from the WI Environmental Improvement Fund closed on Jan. 27, 2010 for $575,018.  The loan was for a
portion of the new East Elevated Tank not funded through ARRA grants.


6. Formal proceedings with the Public Service Commission.


7. Any additional matters.
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FINANCIAL SECTION FOOTNOTES 


Details of Income Statement Accounts (Page F-02)


If amount of Miscellaneous Credits to Surplus (Acct 434) exceeds $10,000, please explain fully.


In 2009, power costs for our Wastewater Treatment Plant were being allocated
to all three utilities in error.  It should have been just wastewater
expense. We restated 2009 expense to reflect this change.


If amount of Miscellaneous Debits to Surplus (Acct 435) exceeds $10,000, please explain fully.


The debit to surplus in an amortization of loss on early retirement of
meters from our AMR replacement project in 2007-08.


Detail of Other Balance Sheet Accounts (Page F-22)


Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (Acct 186): amortization requires PSC authorization.  Provide date of
authorization.


Account 186 includes the balance of unamortized loss on meters.  The PSC
approved this amortization plan for our AMR project in 2008.
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WATER OPERATING REVENUES & EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


This Year
(b)


Last Year
(c)


Operating Revenues


Sales of Water


1,298,450 Sales of Water (460-467) 1,535,259 1


Total Sales of Water 1,535,259 1,298,450 


Other Operating Revenues


4,380 Forfeited Discounts (470    ) 4,607 2


0 Rents from Water Property (472    ) 0 3


0 Interdepartmental Rents (473    ) 0 4


17,583 Other Water Revenues (474    ) 18,975 5


Total Other Operating Revenues 23,582 21,963 


Total Operating Revenues 1,558,841 1,320,413 


Operation and Maintenenance Expenses


5,155 Source of Supply Expense (600-617) 1,240 6


135,682 Pumping Expenses (620-633) 141,086 7


18,443 Water Treatment Expenses (640-652) 26,475 8


181,271 Transmission and Distribution Expenses (660-678) 178,867 9


50,606 Customer Accounts Expenses (901-906) 67,640 10


0 Sales Expenses (910    ) 0 11


322,603 Administrative and General Expenses (920-932) 295,068 12


Total Operation and Maintenenance Expenses 710,376 713,760 


Other Operating Expenses


232,637 Depreciation Expense (403    ) 231,353 13


0 Amortization Expense (404-407) 14


242,381 Taxes (408    ) 274,717 15


Total Other Operating Expenses 506,070 475,018 


Total Operating Expenses 1,216,446 1,188,778 


NET OPERATING INCOME 342,395 131,635 
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WATER OPERATING REVENUES - SALES OF WATER 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


4.  Account 460, Unmetered Sales to General Customers - Gallons of Water Sold should not include in any way quantity of water,
3.  Sales to multiple dwelling buildings through a single meter serving 3 or more family units should be classified commercial.


2.  Report estimated gallons for unmetered sales.
1.  Where customer meters record cubic feet, multiply by 7.48 to obtain number of gallons.


frontage, etc.  Bulk water sales should be Account 460 if the quantity is estimated and should be Account 461 if metered or
i.e. metered, or measured by tank or pool volume.  The quantity should be estimated based on size of pipe, flow, foot of


measured by volume.  Water related to construction should be a measured sale of water (Account 461).
5.  Report average no. of individually-metered accounts (meters).  The amount reported should be the average meter count.


E.g., if a hospital has 5 meters, a total of 5 meters should be reported on this schedule in Average No. of Meters column.


Thousands of Gallons 
 of Water Sold


(c)


Sales of Water


Amounts
(d)


Operating Revenues


Particulars
(a)


Average No.
of Meters


(b)


Unmetered Sales to General Customers (460)


Residential (460.1  ) 1


Commercial (460.2  ) 2


Industrial (460.3  ) 3


Public Authority (460.4  ) 4


Total Unmetered Sales to General Customers (460) 0 0 0 


Metered Sales to General Customers (461)


Residential (461.1  ) 219,210 756,725 4,370 5


Commercial (461.2  ) 78,293 178,173 424 6


Industrial (461.3  ) 148,088 199,210 21 7


Public Authority (461.4  ) 5,740 15,828 36 8


Total Metered Sales to General Customers (461) 451,331 4,851 1,149,936 


Private Fire Protection Service (462    ) 20,999 45 9


Public Fire Protection Service (463    ) 364,006 4,796 10


Other Water Sales (465    ) 11


Sales for Resale (466    ) 0 0 12


Interdepartmental Sales (467    ) 45 318 2 13


Total Sales of Water 451,376 9,694 1,535,259 
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SALES FOR RESALE (ACCT. 466) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Point of Delivery
(b)


Customer Name
(a)


Use a separate line for each delivery point.


Thousands of
Gallons Sold


(c)
Revenues


(d)


NONE 1


0 Total 0 
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OTHER OPERATING REVENUES (WATER) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. Report revenues relating to each account and fully describe each item using other than the account title.


2. Report each item (when individually or when like items are combined) greater than $10,000 (class AB), $5,000 (class C)


3. For a combined utility which also provides sewer service that is based upon water readings, report the return on


and $2,000 (class D and privates) and all other lesser amounts grouped as Miscellaneous.


net investment in meters charged to sewer department in Other Water Revenues (474).


Particulars
(a)


Amount
(b)


Public Fire Protection Service (463):


Other (specify):


1Amount billed for fighting fires outside utility's service areas (usually per rate schedule F-2 or BW-1)


2Wholesale fire protection billed


364,006 3Amount billed (usually per rate schedule F-1 or Fd-1)


4NONE


Total Public Fire Protection Service (463) 364,006 


Forfeited Discounts (470):


5NONE


Other (specify):


4,607 6Customer late payment charges


Total Forfeited Discounts (470) 4,607 


Rents from Water Property (472):


7NONE


Total Rents from Water Property (472) 0 


Interdepartmental Rents (473):


8NONE


Total Interdepartmental Rents (473) 0 


Other Water Revenues (474):


3,339 9MISC


Other (specify):


15,636 10Return on net investment in meters charged to sewer department


Total Other Water Revenues (474) 18,975 
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OTHER OPERATING REVENUES (WATER) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Other Operating Revenues (Water) (Page W-04)


Please explain amounts in Account 474 in excess of $10,000, including like items grouped.  Please provide, for example, a
short list or detail using other than terms such as ''other revenues'' ''general'' ''miscellaneous'' or repeating the account
title.


Return on net investment in meters charged to sewer department.
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WATER OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Each expense account that has an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15 percent,


but not less than $10,000, shall be fully explained in the schedule footnotes.


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


SOURCE OF SUPPLY EXPENSES                                                       
Operation Supervision and Engineering (600) 0 1


Operation Labor and Expenses (601) 626 407 2


Purchased Water (602) 0 3


Miscellaneous Expenses (603) 0 4


Rents (604) 0 5


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (610) 0 6


Maintenance of Structures and Improvements (611) 0 7


Maintenance of Collecting and Impounding Reservoirs (612) 0 8


Maintenance of Lake, River and Other Intakes (613) 0 9


Maintenance of Wells and Springs (614) 4,529 833 10


Maintenance of Supply Mains (616) 0 11


Maintenance of Miscellaneous Water Source Plant (617) 0 12


5,155 1,240 Total Source of Supply Expenses                                                       


PUMPING EXPENSES                                                                
Operation Supervision and Engineering (620) 0 13


Fuel for Power Production (621) 0 14


Power Production Labor and Expenses (622) 0 15


Fuel or Power Purchased for Pumping (623) 112,191 105,529 16


Pumping Labor and Expenses (624) 2,045 1,332 17


Expenses Transferred--Credit (625) 0 18


Miscellaneous Expenses (626) 8,390 18,419 19*
Rents (627) 0 20


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (630) 0 21


Maintenance of Structures and Improvements (631) 0 681 22


Maintenance of Power Production Equipment (632) 0 23


Maintenance of Pumping Equipment (633) 13,056 15,125 24


135,682 141,086 Total Pumping Expenses                                                                


WATER TREATMENT EXPENSES                                                        
Operation Supervision and Engineering (640) 0 25


Chemicals (641) 11,382 14,676 26


Operation Labor and Expenses (642) 1,835 5,355 27


Miscellaneous Expenses (643) 461 336 28


Rents (644) 0 29


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (650) 0 30


Maintenance of Structures and Improvements (651) 1,450 1,550 31


Maintenance of Water Treatment Equipment (652) 3,315 4,558 32


18,443 26,475 Total Water Treatment Expenses                                                        
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WATER OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Each expense account that has an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15 percent,


but not less than $10,000, shall be fully explained in the schedule footnotes.


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES                                          
Operation Supervision and Engineering (660) 0 33


Storage Facilities Expenses (661) 0 34


Transmission and Distribution Lines Expenses (662) 4,326 3,252 35


Meter Expenses (663) 6,140 7,811 36


Customer Installations Expenses (664) 0 37


Miscellaneous Expenses (665) 25,678 19,884 38


Rents (666) 0 39


Maintenance Supervision and Engineering (670) 0 40


Maintenance of Structures and Improvements (671) 0 41


Maintenance of Distribution Reservoirs and Standpipes (672) 8,354 45,089 42*
Maintenance of Transmission and Distribution Mains (673) 81,829 50,903 43*
Maintenance of Services (675) 29,152 28,028 44


Maintenance of Meters (676) 593 4,961 45


Maintenance of Hydrants (677) 21,441 17,244 46


Maintenance of Miscellaneous Plant (678) 3,758 1,695 47


181,271 178,867 Total Transmission and Distribution Expenses                                          


CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS EXPENSES                                                      
Supervision (901) 0 48


Meter Reading Expenses (902) 2,110 3,697 49


Customer Records and Collection Expenses (903) 48,496 63,943 50*
Uncollectible Accounts (904) 0 51


Miscellaneous Customer Accounts Expenses (905) 0 52


Customer Service and Information Expenses (906) 0 53


50,606 67,640 Total Customer Accounts Expenses                                                      


SALES EXPENSES                                                                  
Sales Expenses (910) 0 54


0 0 Total Sales Expenses                                                                  


ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES                                             
Administrative and General Salaries (920) 154,782 155,042 55


Office Supplies and Expenses (921) 7,251 11,657 56


Administrative Expenses Transferred--Credit (922) 0 57


Outside Services Employed (923) 29,389 4,189 58*
Property Insurance (924) 6,992 3,295 59


Injuries and Damages (925) 10,316 10,718 60


Employee Pensions and Benefits (926) 97,372 102,052 61


Regulatory Commission Expenses (928) 8,631 62


Duplicate Charges--Credit (929) 0 63


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:08:03 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAW







Copy 3 of Page W-5


WATER OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Particulars
(a)


Each expense account that has an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15 percent,


but not less than $10,000, shall be fully explained in the schedule footnotes.


Last Year
(c)


This Year
(b)


ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES                                             
Miscellaneous General Expenses (930) 1,864 4,234 64


Rents (931) 3,986 3,881 65


Maintenance of General Plant (932) 2,020 66


322,603 295,068 Total Administrative and General Expenses                                             


Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses 713,760 710,376 
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WATER OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Water Operation & Maintenance Expenses (Page W-05)


For values that represent an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater than 15%, but not less
$10,000, please explain.


Account 626 - We recorded more labor to this account in 2010.  Also, compensated absences were
allocated to this account based on percentage of labor which was not done in 2009.


Account 672 - Increase is due to a quarterly tower maintenance contract which includes the new
tower placed in service in 2010.


Account 673 - 2009 was higher due to valve box replacements completed in 2009.


Account 903 - An A/R and Collections person was hired in May 2009.  Labor is higher in 2010 due
to a full year of this position being recorded in 2010.


Account 923 - A water distribution system study was performed by Strand & Associates in 2009.
This does not relate to a particular project and is recorded as an expense about every 5 years.
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TAXES (ACCT. 408 - WATER) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


When allocation of taxes is made between departments, explain method used.


Method Used to Allocate Between
Departments


(b)
Description of Tax


(a)
Last Year


(d)
This Year


(c)


 Property Tax Equivalent 259,162 228,514 1
 Less: Local and School Tax Equivalent on Meters
Charged to Sewer Department


5,105 4,648 2


Net property tax equivalent 254,057 223,866 


 Social Security 19,952 18,430 3


Other (specify):


 PSC Remainder Assessment 1,353 1,083 4


 CLEARING ACCOUNT (645) (998) 5


Total tax expense 274,717 242,381 


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:08:03 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAW







Copy 1 of Page W-7


PROPERTY TAX EQUIVALENT (WATER) 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. No property tax equivalent shall be determined for sewer utilities or town sanitary district water utilities.
Tax rates are those issued in November (usually) of the year being reported and are available from the municipal treasurer.2.
Report the tax rates in mills to six (6) decimal places.


3. The assessment ratio is available from the municipal treasurer. Report the ratio as a decimal to six (6) places.
4. The utility plant balance first of year should include the gross book values of plant in service (total of utility financed and contributed


plant), property held for future use and construction work in progress. 
5. An "other tax rate" is included in the "Net Local and School Tax Rate Calculation" to the extent that it is local. An example is a


local library tax. Fully explain the rate in the Property Tax Equivalent schedule footnotes.
6. The Property Tax Equivalent to be reported for the year is determined pursuant to Wis. Stat § 66.0811(2). Report the higher of


the current year calculation or the tax equivalent reported in the 1994 PSC annual report, unless, the municipality has
authorized a lower amount, then that amount is reported as the property tax equivalent.


7. If the municipality has authorized a lower amount, the authorization description and date of the authorization must be reported
in the Property Tax Equivalent schedule footnotes.


County D
(g)


Particulars
(a)


Units
(b)


Total
(c)


County A
(d)


County B
(e)


County C
(f)


1


3State tax rate


County tax rate 4


5Local tax rate


6School tax rate


7


8


9


Voc. school tax rate


Other tax rate - Local


Other tax rate - Non-Local


10


11


Total tax rate


Less: state credit


Net tax rate 12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


29


30


Combined School Tax Rate


Other Tax Rate - Local


Total Local & School Tax


Total Tax Rate


Ratio of Local and School Tax to Total


Total tax net of state credit


Net Local and School Tax Rate


Utility Plant, Jan. 1


Materials & Supplies


Subtotal


Less: Plant Outside Limits


Taxable Assets


Assessment Ratio


Assessed Value


Net Local & School Rate


Tax Equiv. Computed for Current Year


Any lower tax equivalent as authorized


by municipality (see note 6)


Tax equiv. for current year (see note 6)


Local Tax Rate


31


32


2


PROPERTY TAX EQUIVALENT CALCULATION


County name


SUMMARY OF TAX RATES


$


$


$


$


mills


$


dec.


$


$


$


$


$


mills


mills


dec.


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


mills


15,182,409 


15,149,234 


33,175 


15,182,409 


0 


14,758,091 


130,803 


259,162 


17.560703 


14,758,091 


0.972052 


15,182,409 


0 


15,182,409 


33,175 


15,149,234 


17.560703 


20.331720 


0.863710 


21.779170 


18.810880 


0.000000 


11.317020 


7.493860 


20.331720 


1.447450 


21.779170 


0.000000 


0.000000 


1.517010 


9.800010 


7.493860 


2.793700 


0.174590 


Dane


33


34


Tax Equivalent per 1994 PSC Report


35


259,162 


Footnotes


259,162 


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:08:03 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAW







Copy 1 of Page W-8Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


INTANGIBLE PLANT                                         


Organization (301) 0 0 1


Franchises and Consents (302) 0 0 2


Miscellaneous Intangible Plant (303) 0 0 3


0 0 0 0 0 Total Intangible Plant


SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLANT                           


Land and Land Rights (310) 11,635 11,635 4


Structures and Improvements (311) 0 0 5


Collecting and Impounding Reservoirs (312) 0 0 6


Lake, River and Other Intakes (313) 0 0 7


Wells and Springs (314) 563,994 563,994 8


Supply Mains (316) 0 0 9


Other Water Source Plant (317) 0 0 10


0 0 0 575,629 575,629 Total Source of Supply Plant


PUMPING PLANT                                              


Land and Land Rights (320) 0 0 11


Structures and Improvements (321) 576,342 576,342 12


Other Power Production Equipment (323) 246,036 246,036 13


Electric Pumping Equipment (325) 565,195 19,701 584,896 14


Diesel Pumping Equipment (326) 0 0 15


Other Pumping Equipment (328) 118,789 118,789 16


19,701 0 0 1,526,063 1,506,362 Total Pumping Plant


WATER TREATMENT PLANT                            


Land and Land Rights (330) 0 0 17


Structures and Improvements (331) 13,671 13,671 18


Sand or Other Media Filtration Equipment (332) 77,092 77,092 19


Membrane Filtration Equipment (333) 0 0 20


Other Water Treatment Equipment (334) 0 0 21


0 0 0 90,763 90,763 Total Water Treatment Plant


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT 


Land and Land Rights (340) 13,206 13,206 22


Structures and Improvements (341) 1,611 1,611 23


Distribution Reservoirs and Standpipes (342) 579,803 725,699 1,305,502 24*
Transmission and Distribution Mains (343) 3,883,797 221,557 7,040 4,098,314 25


Services (345) 869,815 5,983 1,130 874,668 26


Meters (346) 573,091 11,507 584,598 27


Hydrants (348) 500,961 29,123 1,100 528,984 28
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WATER UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT 


Other Transmission and Distribution Plant (349) 973 973 29


993,869 9,270 0 7,407,856 6,423,257 Total Transmission and Distribution Plant


GENERAL PLANT                                             


Land and Land Rights (389) 0 0 30


Structures and Improvements (390) 405,290 405,290 31


Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 51,399 3,349 54,748 32


Computer Equipment (391.1) 75,320 75,320 33


Transportation Equipment (392) 34,212 18,122 15,696 36,638 34


Stores Equipment (393) 8,270 8,270 35


Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 35,109 35,109 36


Laboratory Equipment (395) 0 0 37


Power Operated Equipment (396) 102,034 102,034 38


Communication Equipment (397) 35,668 35,668 39


SCADA Equipment (397.1) 158,914 158,914 40


Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 89 89 41


21,471 15,696 0 912,080 


1,035,041 24,966 0 10,512,391 


906,305 Total General Plant


9,502,316 Total utility plant in service directly
assignable


                                                                           


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Water
Department (300)


0 0 42


1,035,041 24,966 0 10,512,391 9,502,316 Total utility plant in service
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WATER UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Water Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page W-08)


If Additions for Accounts OTHER than 316, 343, 345, 346 and 348 exceed $100,000, please explain.  If applicable, provide
construction authorization.


Account 342 - Addition of East Elevated Tank financed with a WI Environmental Improvement Loan.
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WATER UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


INTANGIBLE PLANT                                                                


Organization (301) 0 0 1
Franchises and Consents (302) 0 0 2
Miscellaneous Intangible Plant (303) 0 0 3


Total Intangible Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLANT                                                         


Land and Land Rights (310) 0 0 4
Structures and Improvements (311) 0 0 5
Collecting and Impounding Reservoirs (312) 0 0 6
Lake, River and Other Intakes (313) 0 0 7
Wells and Springs (314) 0 0 8
Supply Mains (316) 0 0 9
Other Water Source Plant (317) 0 0 10


Total Source of Supply Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


PUMPING PLANT                                                                   


Land and Land Rights (320) 0 0 11
Structures and Improvements (321) 0 0 12
Other Power Production Equipment (323) 0 0 13
Electric Pumping Equipment (325) 0 0 14
Diesel Pumping Equipment (326) 0 0 15
Other Pumping Equipment (328) 0 0 16


Total Pumping Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


WATER TREATMENT PLANT                                                          


Land and Land Rights (330) 0 0 17
Structures and Improvements (331) 0 0 18
Sand or Other Media Filtration Equipment (332) 0 0 19
Membrane Filtration Equipment (333) 0 0 20
Other Water Treatment Equipment (334) 0 0 21


Total Water Treatment Plant 0 0 0 0 0 


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT                                


Land and Land Rights (340) 0 0 22
Structures and Improvements (341) 0 0 23
Distribution Reservoirs and Standpipes (342) 0 613,751 613,751 24*
Transmission and Distribution Mains (343) 3,952,433 3,952,433 25
Services (345) 928,866 928,866 26
Meters (346) 0 0 27
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WATER UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


1. All adjustments, corrections and reclassifications (including to/from plant financed by contributions) should be reported in 


total and detail by subaccount as a schedule footnote.
4. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


3. Explain as a schedule footnote the dollar additions and retirements reported in Columns (c) and (e) for each account 
2. Explain fully as a schedule footnote the nature of all entries reported in Column (f), Adjustments.


over $100,000.  If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Column (f), Adjustments.


Accounts
(a)


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Additions
During Year


(c)


Retirements
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


Balance
End of Year


(g)


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT                                


Hydrants (348) 523,807 523,807 28
Other Transmission and Distribution Plant (349) 0 0 29


Total Transmission and Distribution Plant 5,405,106 613,751 0 0 6,018,857 


GENERAL PLANT                                                                   


Land and Land Rights (389) 0 0 30
Structures and Improvements (390) 0 0 31
Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 0 0 32
Computer Equipment (391.1) 0 0 33
Transportation Equipment (392) 1,000 1,000 34
Stores Equipment (393) 0 0 35
Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 0 0 36
Laboratory Equipment (395) 0 0 37
Power Operated Equipment (396) 0 0 38
Communication Equipment (397) 0 0 39
SCADA Equipment (397.1) 0 0 40
Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 0 0 41


Total General Plant


Total utility plant in service directly
assignable


1,000 0 0 0 1,000 


5,406,106 613,751 0 0 6,019,857 


                                                                                


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Water
Department (300)


0 0 42


Total utility plant in service 5,406,106 613,751 0 0 6,019,857 
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WATER UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Water Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Contributions-- (Page W-09)


General footnotes
The addition to account 342 is for the ARRA grant received to construct our East Elevated Tank.


If Additions for Accounts OTHER than 316, 343, 345, 346 and 348 exceed $100,000, please explain.
The addition to account 342 is for the ARRA grant received to construct our East Elevated Tank.
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLANT
Structures and Improvements (311) 10 0.00%


Collecting and Impounding Reservoirs (312) 20 0.00%


Lake, River and Other Intakes (313) 30 0.00%


Wells and Springs (314) 416,356 253,729 2.90%


Supply Mains (316) 50 0.00%


Other Water Source Plant (317) 60 0.00%


Total Source of Supply Plant 16,356 253,729 


PUMPING PLANT
Structures and Improvements (321) 718,443 293,718 3.20%


Other Power Production Equipment (323) 810,826 166,171 4.40%


Electric Pumping Equipment (325) 925,302 419,244 4.40%


Diesel Pumping Equipment (326) 100 0.00%


Other Pumping Equipment (328) 115,227 39,899 4.40%


Total Pumping Plant 59,798 919,032 


WATER TREATMENT PLANT
Structures and Improvements (331) 12437 8,489 3.20%


Sand or Other Media Filtration Equipment (332) 132,544 71,125 3.30%


Membrane Filtration Equipment (333) 140 0.00%


Other Water Treatment Equipment (334) 150 0.00%


Total Water Treatment Plant 2,981 79,614 


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (341) 1652 1,178 3.20%


Distribution Reservoirs and Standpipes (342) 1717,910 256,028 1.90%


Transmission and Distribution Mains (343) 1851,884 537,400 1.30%


Services (345) 1925,295 246,367 2.90%


Meters (346) 2031,836 65,908 5.50%


Hydrants (348) 2111,329 94,451 2.20%


Other Transmission and Distribution Plant (349) 22973 5.00%


Total Transmission and Distribution Plant 138,306 1,202,305 


GENERAL PLANT
Structures and Improvements (390) 2311,753 92,725 2.90%


Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 243,078 26,885 5.80%


Computer Equipment (391.1) 2575,320 26.70%


Transportation Equipment (392) 262,664 34,024 13.30%


Stores Equipment (393) 27127 512 5.80%


Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 28670 34,439 5.80%


Laboratory Equipment (395) 290 0.00%


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:08:04 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAW







Copy 1 of Page W-11Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


311   10 


312   20 


313   30 


314   4270,085 


316   50 


317   60 


0 0 0 0 270,085 


321   7312,161 


323   8176,997 


325   9444,546 


326   100 


328   1145,126 


0 0 0 0 978,830 


331   128,926 


332   1373,669 


333   140 


334   150 


0 0 0 0 82,595 


341   161,230 


342   17273,938 


343   187,040 582,244 


345   191,130 270,532 


346   2097,744 


348   211,100 104,680 


349   22973 


9,270 0 0 0 1,331,341 


390   23104,478 


391   2429,963 


391.1 2575,320 


392   2615,696 1,706 22,698 


393   27639 


394   2835,109 


395   290 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


GENERAL PLANT
Power Operated Equipment (396) 307,079 19,922 7.50%


Communication Equipment (397) 311,278 34,390 10.00%


SCADA Equipment (397.1) 3214,620 129,815 9.20%


Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 3394 *5.80%


Total General Plant 41,269 448,126 


Total accum. prov. directly assignable 2,902,806 258,710 


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Water Department 340 0.00%


Total accum. prov. for depreciation 2,902,806 258,710 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


396   3027,001 


397   3135,668 


397.1 32144,435 


398   3394 *
15,696 0 1,706 0 475,405 


24,966 0 1,706 0 3,138,256 


 340 


24,966 0 1,706 0 3,138,256 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation - Water --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page W-10)


If Accumulated Depreciation End of Year Balance is greater than the equivalent Plant in Service (Financed by Utility or
Municipality) EOY Balance, please explain.


Account 398 - No additional depreciation was charged in 2010.
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality--


This page intentionally left blank
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLANT
Structures and Improvements (311) 10 0.00%


Collecting and Impounding Reservoirs (312) 20 0.00%


Lake, River and Other Intakes (313) 30 0.00%


Wells and Springs (314) 40 0.00%


Supply Mains (316) 50 0.00%


Other Water Source Plant (317) 60 0.00%


Total Source of Supply Plant 0 0 


PUMPING PLANT
Structures and Improvements (321) 70 0.00%


Other Power Production Equipment (323) 80 0.00%


Electric Pumping Equipment (325) 90 0.00%


Diesel Pumping Equipment (326) 100 0.00%


Other Pumping Equipment (328) 110 0.00%


Total Pumping Plant 0 0 


WATER TREATMENT PLANT
Structures and Improvements (331) 120 0.00%


Sand or Other Media Filtration Equipment (332) 130 0.00%


Membrane Filtration Equipment (333) 140 0.00%


Other Water Treatment Equipment (334) 150 0.00%


Total Water Treatment Plant 0 0 


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Structures and Improvements (341) 160 0.00%


Distribution Reservoirs and Standpipes (342) 170 1.90% 5,831 


Transmission and Distribution Mains (343) 18789,510 1.30% 51,381 


Services (345) 19333,370 2.90% 26,937 


Meters (346) 200 


Hydrants (348) 21143,969 2.20% 11,524 


Other Transmission and Distribution Plant (349) 220 0.00%


Total Transmission and Distribution Plant 1,266,849 95,673 


GENERAL PLANT
Structures and Improvements (390) 230 0.00%


Office Furniture and Equipment (391) 240 0.00%


Computer Equipment (391.1) 250 0.00%


Transportation Equipment (392) 26263 13.30% 133 


Stores Equipment (393) 270 0.00%


Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment (394) 280 0.00%


Laboratory Equipment (395) 290 0.00%
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


311   10 


312   20 


313   30 


314   40 


316   50 


317   60 


0 0 0 0 0 


321   70 


323   80 


325   90 


326   100 


328   110 


0 0 0 0 0 


331   120 


332   130 


333   140 


334   150 


0 0 0 0 0 


341   160 


342   175,831 


343   18840,891 


345   19360,307 


346   200 


348   21155,493 


349   220 


0 0 0 0 1,362,522 


390   230 


391   240 


391.1 250 


392   26396 


393   270 


394   280 


395   290 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Primary Plant Accounts
(a)


2. If more than one depreciation rate is used, report the average rate in column (c).
total and detail by subaccount in a schedule footnote.


1. Use only the account titles listed. If the utility has subaccounts other than accounts 391.1 and 397.1, combine them into one


Balance
First of Year


(b)


Rate %
Used


(c)


Accruals
During Year


(d)


GENERAL PLANT
Power Operated Equipment (396) 300 0.00%


Communication Equipment (397) 310 0.00%


SCADA Equipment (397.1) 320 0.00%


Miscellaneous Equipment (398) 330 0.00%


Total General Plant 263 133 


Total accum. prov. directly assignable 1,267,112 95,806 


Common Utility Plant Allocated to Water Department 340 0.00%


Total accum. prov. for depreciation 1,267,112 95,806 
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ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - WATER (cont.)
 --Plant Financed by Contributions--


Account
(e)


Book Cost of
Plant Retired


(f)


Cost of
Removal


(g)
Salvage


(h)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(i)


Balance
End of Year


(j)


396   300 


397   310 


397.1 320 


398   330 


0 0 0 0 396 


0 0 0 0 1,362,918 


 340 


0 0 0 0 1,362,918 
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SOURCES OF WATER SUPPLY - STATISTICS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Purchased Water
Gallons 
(000's)


(b)


Surface Water 
Gallons 
(000's)


(c)


Ground Water
Gallons 
(000's)


(d)


Sources of Water Supply


Month
(a)


Total Gallons
All Methods


(000's)
(e)


Expanded definitions of the three types of accounted-for water reported on this schedule are included in the schedule Help
and in the Reference Manual Schedule Reference Sheet.


 January   39,294 39,294 1


 February  35,907 35,907 2


 March     41,037 41,037 3


 April     37,386 37,386 4


 May       42,138 42,138 5


 June      42,591 42,591 6


 July      43,468 43,468 7


 August    43,894 43,894 8


 September 41,744 41,744 9


 October   41,130 41,130 10


 November  38,784 38,784 11


 December  38,191 38,191 12


Total annual pumpage 0 0 485,564 485,564 
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WATER AUDIT AND OTHER STATISTICS


2.  For Gallons used in the treatment process (line 3), estimate water used in production including filter backwash, pumps, and
other utility uses before the point of entry to the distribution system.


1.  Report actual metered values where possible.  If water uses are not metered, estimate values for each line based on best


maintenance, water used for non-regulated sewer utility and all other unmetered usage that is known to occur and does not 
fall into one of the other categories listed under Water Usage.


3.  For Gallons used for other system uses (line 11), report other unmetered water used for system operation and


customer meter inaccuracies, data errors, and unknown volumes. Unknown/unaccounted for volumes should be minimized
to the extent possible.


4.  For Gallons unknown/not accounted for, estimte the volume of water losses due to other real or apparent losses, including 


available information. Water entering distribution system must equal the sum of Sales (line 5), Authorized System Uses 
(line 12) and Water Losses (line 19). For assistance, see AWWW M36 Manual - Water Audits and Loss Control Programs.


7


13


Gallons (000's) lost due to hydrant leaks, tank overflows and pressure reducing valves:


Percentage of water entering distribution system sold:


Percentage of Real and Apparent Losses:


If water losses exceed 15%, identify actions taken to reduce water loss:


Authorized System Uses:


Subtotal: Gallons (000's) entering distribution system:


Less: Gallons (000's) used in the treatment process:


Less:  Gallons (000's) sold (Revenue Water):


Gallons (000's) entering distribution system but not sold (Non-Revenue Water):


22


24


25


WATER AUDIT STATISTICS


Gallons (000's) used to flush mains:


Subtotal Authorized System Uses:


Water Losses (Real and Apparent):


Gallons (000's) lost due to main leaks or breaks:


Gallons (000's) lost due to service leaks or breaks:


Gallons (000's) for unauthorized usage such as vandalism and theft:


Gallons (000's) unknown/not accounted for:


Subtotal Water Losses:


27


Source of Water Supply Statistics - Total Annual Pumpage (000's):


Gallons (000's) used for other system uses:


Gallons (000's) used to prevent freezing of distribution system:


Gallons (000's) used for fire protection:


1


2


3


4


5


6


8


9


10


11


12


14


15


16


21


20


19


18


17


23


If water losses exceed 15%, indicate causes:


26


485,564 


485,564 


451,376 


34,188 


4,961 


1,616 


6,577 


950 


216 


6%


93%


27,611 


26,445 
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WATER AUDIT AND OTHER STATISTICS (cont.)


28


32


42


36


29


30


31


33


34


35


37


38


40


41


43


44


39


2,016 


726 


1,148,784 


6 


5 


12,800 


OTHER STATISTICS


Maximum gallons pumped by all methods in any one day during reporting year (000 gal.)


Date of maximum: 08/03/2010


Cause of maximum: Maximum  resulted from a combination of hot weather and hydrant flushing performed on August 3rd.


Minimum gallons pumped by all methods in any one day during reporting year (000 gal.)


Date of minimum: 11/26/2010


Total KWH used by the utility (include pumping, treatment facilities and other utility operations):


If water is purchased:


Vendor Name:


Point of Delivery:


What percentage of purchased water is surface water?


Number of main breaks repaired this year:


Number of service breaks repaired this year:


Population served (estimate the number of individuals within service area):


Inside municipality?


Outside municipality?
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SOURCES OF WATER SUPPLY - GROUND WATERS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Location
(a)


Yield Per Day 
in gallons


(e)


Identification
Number


(b)


Depth
in feet


(c)


Well Diameter
in inches


(d)


Currently
In Service?


(f)


6 1,498,0001,132 18WELL - E. ACADEMY Yes 1


7 1,440,0001,040 17WELL - ROBY Yes 2


4 1,880,000969 15WELL - VAN BUREN/ROBY Yes 3


5 1,462,0001,112 19WELL - W. SOUTH/KING Yes 4
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SOURCES OF WATER SUPPLY - SURFACE WATERS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Location
(a)


Diameter
in inches


(e)


Identification
Number


(b)


Depth
Below Surface


in feet
(d)


Distance
From Shore


in feet
(c)


Intakes


NONE 1
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PUMPING & POWER EQUIPMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


reservoir or treatment to distribution system, or within distribution system), or S for standby pumping equipment.
3. Indicate destination (of water pumped) by: R for reservoir, T for treatment or D for distribution system.


2. Indicate purpose of pump by: P for primary (from source to reservoir, treatment or distribution system), B for booster (from
1. Use a separate column for each pump.


Particulars
(a)


Unit A
(b)


Unit B
(c)


Unit C
(d)


 8


 1RETIRED - STAND BY 1 WELL 6Identification


 2E. ACADEMY PUMPHOUSELocation


STAND BY WELL 7


ROBY ROAD


S


STAND BY 2 WELL 5


W SOUTH & KING PUMPHOUSE


 3SPurpose


 4DDestination


 5WAUKESHAPump Manufacturer


 61986Year Installed


OTHERType


1,000Actual Capacity (gpm)


 7


CUMMINS


1998


OTHER


1,000


S


R


 CUMMINS


1989


OTHER


2,000


10CUMMINSCUMMINSWAUKESHAStandby Engine Mfr


 9Pump Motor or


11199819891986Year Installed


12NATURAL GASNATURAL GASNATURAL GAS


132400


Type


Horsepower 0


Unit F
(d)


Particulars
(a)


Unit D
(b)


Unit E
(c)


Footnotes 14


WELL 5WELL 4Identification WELL 6


E. ACADEMYW. SOUTH/KINGVAN BUREN/ROBYLocation


PPPurpose P


RDDestination D


BYRON JACKSONBYRON JACKSONPump Manufacturer AURORA


19771963Year Installed 1986


VERTICAL TURBINEVERTICAL TURBINEType VERTICAL TURBINE


1,0151,200Actual Capacity (gpm) 1,040


Pump Motor or


U.S.A CGENERAL ELECTRICStandby Engine Mfr


198619771963Year Installed


ELECTRICELECTRICELECTRICType


125125125Horsepower


Footnotes


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28
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PUMPING & POWER EQUIPMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


reservoir or treatment to distribution system, or within distribution system), or S for standby pumping equipment.
3. Indicate destination (of water pumped) by: R for reservoir, T for treatment or D for distribution system.


2. Indicate purpose of pump by: P for primary (from source to reservoir, treatment or distribution system), B for booster (from
1. Use a separate column for each pump.


Particulars
(a)


Unit A
(b)


Unit B
(c)


Unit C
(d)


 8


 1WELL 7Identification


 22001 ROBY RDLocation


 3PPurpose


 4DDestination


 5GOULDSPump Manufacturer


 61998Year Installed


Type


1,000Actual Capacity (gpm)


 7VERTICAL TURBINE


10U.S.Standby Engine Mfr


 9Pump Motor or


111998Year Installed


12ELECTRIC


13


Type


Horsepower 125


Unit F
(d)


Particulars
(a)


Unit D
(b)


Unit E
(c)


Footnotes 14


Identification


Location


Purpose


Destination


Pump Manufacturer


Year Installed


Type


Actual Capacity (gpm)


Pump Motor or


Standby Engine Mfr


Year Installed


Type


Horsepower


Footnotes


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28
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RESERVOIRS, STANDPIPES & WATER TREATMENT 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


2. Use a separate column for each using additional copies if necessary.


1. Identify as R (reservoir), S (standpipe) & ET (elevated tank).


3. Enter elevation difference between highest water level in S or ET, (or R only on an elevated site) and the water main where the 


connection to the storage begins branching into the distribution system.


Particulars
(a)


Unit A
(b)


Unit B
(c)


Unit C
(d)


ET 232Identification number or name  1


12


 2RESERVOIRS, STANDPIPES


 3OR ELEVATED TANKS


 4Type: R (reservoir), S (standpipe)


or ET (elevated tank) ETETR  5


Year constructed 1989 2010 1977  6


 7Primary material (earthen, steel,


STEELSTEELCONCRETEconcrete, other)  8


 9Elevation difference in feet


    (See Headnote 3.) 111 186 0 10


Total capacity in gallons (actual) 11400,000 500,000 300,000


13WATER TREATMENT PLANT


14Disinfection, type of equipment


LIQUIDLIQUIDLIQUID(gas, liquid, powder, other) 15


16Points of application


17(wellhouse, central facilities,


18booster station, other) WELLHOUSE WELLHOUSE WELLHOUSE


19Filters, type (gravity, pressure,


20NONENONENONEother, none)


21Rated capacity of filter plant


22(m.g.d.) (note: 1,200,000 gal/day 


231.98001.98001.4400= 1.2 m.g.d.)


Is a corrosion control chemical


NNNused (yes, no)?


24


YYYIs water fluoridated (yes, no)?


25


26


27


Footnotes 28
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WATER MAINS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. Report mains separately by pipe material, function, diameter and either within or outside the municipal boundaries.


Number of Feet


First of
Year
(d)


Added
During Year


(e)


Retired
During Year


(f)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(g)


End of
Year
(h)


Main
Function


(b)


Pipe
Material


(a)


Diameter
in Inches


(c)


2. Identify pipe material as: L (Lead), M (Metal for all other metal excluding lead), A (Asbestos-cement), or P (Plastic for plastic
and all other non-metal excluding asbestos-cement).


3. Identify function as: T (Transmission), D (Distribution) or S (Supply).


4. Explain all reported adjustments as a schedule footnote.
5. For main additions reported in column (e), as a schedule footnote:


a. Explain how the additions were financed.


b. If assessed against property owners, explain the basis of the assessments.
c. If the assessments are deferred, explain.


61,419 2,520 M D 4.000 58,899 1


53,595 27 M D 6.000 53,622 * 2


115,853 M D 8.000 115,853 3


85,837 1,970 100 M D 10.000 87,707 * 4


230 M S 10.000 230 5


6,250 73 M D 12.000 6,323 * 6
Total Within Municipality 323,184 0 2,620 322,634 2,070 


Total Utility 323,184 2,070 2,620 0 322,634 
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WATER MAINS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Water Mains (Page W-21)


If Added During Year column total is greater than zero, please explain financing following the criteria listed in the schedule
headnote No. 5.


Water main additions were financed by the utility.
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WATER SERVICES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


2. Report in column (h) the number of utility-owned services included in columns (c)  through (g) which are temporarily shut off


1. Explain all reported adjustments as a schedule footnote.


3. For services added during the year in column (d), as a schedule footnote:


4. Report services separately by pipe material and diameter.
5. Identify pipe material as: L (Lead), M (Metal for all other metal excluding lead), A (Asbestos-cement) or P (Plastic for plastic


at the curb box or otherwise not in use at end of year.


a. Explain how the additions were financed.


b. If assessed against property owners, explain the basis of the assessments.
c. If installed by a property owner or developer, explain the basis of recording the cost of the additions, the total amount


d. If any were financed by application of Cz-1, provide the total amount recorded and the number of services recorded


and all other non-metal excluding asbestos-cement).


and the number of services recorded under this method.


under this method.


Pipe 
Material


(a)


First of
Year
(c)


Diameter
in Inches


(b)


Added
During Year


(d)


Removed or 
Permanently 


Disconnected 
During Year


(e)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(f)


End of
Year
(g)


Utility Owned
Services Not
In Use at End


of Year
(h)


L 0.625 374 4 370 1*
M 0.625 765 765 2


M 0.750 248 2 250 3


M 1.000 3,225 3,225 4


P 1.000 1 1 5


M 1.250 26 26 6


M 1.500 108 108 7


M 2.000 98 2 96 8


M 2.500 1 1 9


M 4.000 16 16 10


M 6.000 12 12 11


Total Utility 4,874 2 6 0 4,870 0 
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WATER SERVICES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Water Services (Page W-22)


If Utility-Owned Service Not In Use at End of Year is reported as zero, please explain.
All services are in use, we do not keep additional services on hand.
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METERS


1. Include in Columns (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) meters in stock as well as those in service.
2. Report in Column (c) all meters purchased during the year and in Column (d) all meters junked, sold or otherwise permanently retired


during the year.
3. Use Column (e) to show correction to previously reported meter count because of inventory or property record corrections.


Number of Utility-Owned Meters


Size
of


Meter
(a)


First of
Year
(b)


Added
During Year


(c)


Retired
During Year


(d)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(e)


Tested
During Year


(g)


End of
Year
(f)


10.625 4,684 15 4699 61 


21.000 91 1 92 0 


3*1.250 5 (1) 4 0 


41.500 62 2 64 9 


52.000 54 54 2 


63.000 7 7 7 


74.000 8 8 6 


Total: 4,911 18 0 (1) 4928 85 


2) Indicate the method(s) used to read customer meters (select all that apply):


1) Indicate your residential meter replacement schedule:


Meters tested once every 10 years and replaced as needed


All meters replaced within 20 years of installation


Other schedule as approved by PSC


Other


Radio Frequency - fixed network or other automatic infrastructure (AMI)


Radio Frequency - drive or walk-by technology


Manually - inside the premises


Manually - remote register


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:08:05 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAW







Copy 1 of Page W-24Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


METERS (cont.)


4. Totals by size in Column (f) should equal same size totals in Column (o).
5. Explain all reported adjustments as a schedule footnote.
6. Do not include station meters in the meter inventory used to complete these tables.


Classification of All Meters at End of Year by Customers


Residential
(i)


Size
of


Meter
(h)


Commercial
(j)


Industrial
(k)


Public
Authority


(l)


Wholesale,
Inter-


Department
or Utility Use


(m)


In Stock
and Deduct


Meters
(n)


Total
(o)


10.625 4,389 248 6 14 0 42 4699


21.000 6 68 5 2 2 9 92


3*1.250 0 4 0 0 0 0 4


41.500 2 51 0 7 0 4 64


52.000 0 31 5 10 0 8 54


63.000 0 3 3 1 0 0 7


74.000 0 5 2 1 0 0 8


Total: 4,397 410 21 35 2 63 4928
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METERS


Meters (Page W-23)


Explain all reported adjustments.
Adjustment to actual meters in service.


Explain program for replacing or testing meters 1" or smaller.
Meters are tested at least once every ten years.


Ss. PSC 185.83(2) states ''Station meters shall be maintained to ensure reasonable accuracy and shall have the accuracy
checked at least once every 2 years.''  Are all station meters being tested every two years?  Answer yes or no.  If no, please
explain.


Yes.
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METERS (cont.)
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HYDRANTS AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM VALVES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


 Hydrant Type 
(a)


Number 
In Service


First of Year
(b)


Added
During


Year
(c)


Removed
During


Year
(d)


Adjustments
Increase or
(Decrease)


(e)


Number
In Service


End of Year
(f)


3. Report fire hydrants as within or outside the municipal boundaries.
2. Explain all reported adjustments in the schedule footnotes.


or if pressure is inadequate to provide fire flow.
b. Record as a flushing hydrant where the lead size is less than 6 inches
a. Fire hydrants normally have a lead size of 6 inches or greater.


1. Distinguish between fire and flushing hydrants by lead size.


Fire Hydrants


 Outside of Municipality 0 0 1


 Within Municipality 599 4 7 39 635 2*


Total Fire Hydrants 599 4 7 39 635 


Flushing Hydrants


0 0 3


Total Flushing Hydrants 0 0 0 0 0 


NR811.08(5) recommends that a schedule shall be adopted and followed for operating each system 
valve and hydrant at least once each two years.  Please provide the number operated during the year.


674


Number of distribution system valves end of year: 1,075


Number of distribution valves operated during year: 182


Number of hydrants operated during year: *


 Date Printed:  03/24/2011 8:08:05 AM PSCW Annual Report: MAW







Copy 2 of Page W-25


HYDRANTS AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM VALVES 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Hydrants and Distribution System Valves (Page W-25)


General footnotes
Hydrants and valves are tested on a scheduled rotation.


Explain all reported Adjustments.
The adjustment of 39 hydrants resulted from a complete field inventory performed during 2010.
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LIST OF ALL STATION AND WHOLESALE METERS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


1. Definition of Station Meter is any meter in service not used to measure customer consumption.
2. Definition of Wholesale Meter is any meter used to measure sales to other utilities foe retail or wholesale sales.
3. Retail customer meters should not be included in this inventory and conversely these station and wholesale meters should not be 


included in the customer meter inventory.


Purpose
(a)


Location or Description
(c)


Date of Last
Meter Test


(e)
Type
(d)


Size (in.)
of Meter


(b)


Well #6 10/12/2010OtherStation Meter 8 1*
Well #5 10/12/2010OtherStation Meter 10 2*
Well #7 10/12/2010OtherStation Meter 10 3*
Well #4 1/12/2011MagneticStation Meter 10 4
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LIST OF ALL STATION AND WHOLESALE METERS 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


List of All Station and Wholesale Meters (Page W-26)


General footnotes
Station meters are tested at least once every two years.


If Meter Type is "other," please explain.
Station meters listed as "other" are propeller flow meters.
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WATER CUSTOMERS SERVED 


Year ended: December 31, 2010     Utility No. 5750 - STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


Number of metered single service accounts in each city, village and town supplied directly with service by reporting utility


at end of year.  Do not include Fire Protection.


Location
(a)


Customers
End of Year


(b)


Dane        County


Cities


4,853STOUGHTON


Total Cities: 4,853


Total Dane        County: 4,853


Total Company: 4,853
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WATER OPERATING SECTION FOOTNOTES 


Other Operating Revenues (Water) (Page W-04)


Please explain amounts in Account 474 in excess of $10,000, including like items grouped.  Please
provide, for example, a short list or detail using other than terms such as ''other revenues''
''general'' ''miscellaneous'' or repeating the account title.


Return on net investment in meters charged to sewer department.


Water Operation & Maintenance Expenses (Page W-05)


For values that represent an increase or a decrease when compared to the previous year of greater
than 15%, but not less $10,000, please explain.


Account 626 - We recorded more labor to this account in 2010.  Also,
compensated absences were allocated to this account based on percentage of
labor which was not done in 2009.


Account 672 - Increase is due to a quarterly tower maintenance contract
which includes the new tower placed in service in 2010.


Account 673 - 2009 was higher due to valve box replacements completed in
2009.


Account 903 - An A/R and Collections person was hired in May 2009.  Labor is
higher in 2010 due to a full year of this position being recorded in 2010.


Account 923 - A water distribution system study was performed by Strand &
Associates in 2009.  This does not relate to a particular project and is
recorded as an expense about every 5 years.


Water Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page W-08)


If Additions for Accounts OTHER than 316, 343, 345, 346 and 348 exceed $100,000, please explain.
If applicable, provide construction authorization.


Account 342 - Addition of East Elevated Tank financed with a WI
Environmental Improvement Loan.


Water Utility Plant in Service --Plant Financed by Contributions-- (Page W-09)


General footnotes


The addition to account 342 is for the ARRA grant received to construct our
East Elevated Tank.


If Additions for Accounts OTHER than 316, 343, 345, 346 and 348 exceed $100,000, please explain.


The addition to account 342 is for the ARRA grant received to construct our
East Elevated Tank.


Accumulated Provision for Depreciation - Water --Plant Financed by Utility or Municipality-- (Page W-10)


If Accumulated Depreciation End of Year Balance is greater than the equivalent Plant in Service
(Financed by Utility or Municipality) EOY Balance, please explain.


Account 398 - No additional depreciation was charged in 2010.
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WATER OPERATING SECTION FOOTNOTES 


Water Mains (Page W-21)


If Added During Year column total is greater than zero, please explain financing following the
criteria listed in the schedule headnote No. 5.


Water main additions were financed by the utility.


Water Services (Page W-22)


If Utility-Owned Service Not In Use at End of Year is reported as zero, please explain.


All services are in use, we do not keep additional services on hand.


Meters (Page W-23)


Explain all reported adjustments.


Adjustment to actual meters in service.


Explain program for replacing or testing meters 1" or smaller.


Meters are tested at least once every ten years.


Ss. PSC 185.83(2) states ''Station meters shall be maintained to ensure reasonable accuracy and
shall have the accuracy checked at least once every 2 years.''  Are all station meters being tested
every two years?  Answer yes or no.  If no, please explain.


Yes.


Hydrants and Distribution System Valves (Page W-25)


General footnotes


Hydrants and valves are tested on a scheduled rotation.


Explain all reported Adjustments.


The adjustment of 39 hydrants resulted from a complete field inventory
performed during 2010.


List of All Station and Wholesale Meters (Page W-26)


General footnotes


Station meters are tested at least once every two years.


If Meter Type is "other," please explain.


Station meters listed as "other" are propeller flow meters.
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600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Customer Collections Status Report 


 


As of May 1, 2011, amounts owed on outstanding utility account balances (active and closed) are as 


follows:    


 


 When compared to: 


Days Past 


Due 


Amount 


Outstanding 


March, 


2011 


September, 


2010 


March, 


2010 


30-60 $ 49,539 Down 20% Up 52% Down 29% 


61-90 $ 18,321 Down 53% Up 70% Down 180% 


90+ $ 64,225 Down 48% Down 43% Down 82% 


   


When comparing this year’s numbers to those from March, 2011, it can be seen that the end of the cold 


weather disconnection moratoriums on April 15
th


 plays a large role in our ability to collect outstanding 


balances.  Since March 1, SU staff negotiated 123 deferred payment arrangements (DPAs) with 


customers.  All DPAs require a down payment of at least 1/3 the outstanding past-due balance, with 


the remainder to be paid in future monthly installments, with completion in no more than 90 days.  As 


these DPAs continue to be paid down, outstanding balances will continue to decrease and approach the 


levels we were at in September, 2010. 


 


 
Figure 1- Historical Delinquent Balances 
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Currently, there are 38 accounts that remain disconnected for unpaid balances or at the owner’s 


request, holding balances totaling $13,172.  We will continue to monitor these accounts and will make 


all possible attempts to collect these balances.  If the balances remain unpaid, the delinquent balances 


may be collected through the property tax-roll. There are 16 disconnected properties that are ‘occupant 


unknown’ (no one has submitted a service application and the properties are assumed vacant). 


 


Stoughton Utilities is currently holding customer deposits totaling $131,324 for 218 accounts that have 


had a past history of unreliable payments.  Customer deposits are held until the customer has either 


made prompt payment for 12 consecutive months or they cease being a customer.  Delinquent balances 


are only paid from a customer’s deposit upon closure of their account. 


 


There are currently six accounts holding balances totaling $2,459 that are uncollectable due to the 


customer filing for bankruptcy.  These customers did not have deposits on their accounts, and their 


balances cannot be collected from the customer or through the property tax roll, and will be written off 


at a later date. 


 


Stoughton Utilities has 142 former customers that have been submitted to our contracted collections 


agencies with balances totaling $51,861.  These customers all have closed their accounts and moved 


outside of our service territory.  If our collection agency is unsuccessful, the balances accrued within 


the City limits will be placed on the property tax-roll after a reasonable amount of time has passed to 


attempt collection.  Our collection agency pursues payment through mail and phone contact, the tax 


refund intercept program (TRIP), and/or small claims court. 


 


Since July 2010, Stoughton Utilities has given 446 account credits totaling $73,064 to low-income 


customers that qualify for energy assistance.  During the 2009-10 heating season we gave 413 credits 


totaling $51,488.  Customers eligible for these credits have combined household incomes of less than 


200% of the federal poverty guidelines, which currently would be $21,780 for a single individual or 


$44,700 for a family of four.  These customers are also exempt from any residential customer deposit 


requirements. 


 


In summary, Stoughton Utilities’ efforts in working with our customers to meet their financial 


obligations continue to be successful.  Decreases in delinquent balances can be seen compared to two 


months ago as well as this time in past years.  Due diligence in soliciting initial customer information, 


strong collection perseverance, active partnerships with landlords where applicable, and working with 


financial assistance agencies all support this success.   








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee     


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Significant Accomplishments In 2010. 


 


 Well No. 7 Rehabilitation Project:  The pumping equipment was removed, rebuilt and 


replaced.  


 


 Sanitary Sewer Cured in Place Lining Program:  Installed 4,441 feet of lining.  This 


brings our seven year total to 24,329 feet.  Along with improved sanitary sewer integrity, 


significant water infiltration reductions have been noted. 


 


 Automated Methane Gas Valve Installation:  Installed a new gas valve on our sludge 


boiler at the wastewater plant that is controlled by our SCADA system. This valve 


facilitates our methane use from our digester instead of purchasing natural gas.  The 


savings in our natural gas bill has noted a 60 % reduction in use and put us in a lower 


natural gas usage tier.  Approximately $24,000 in annual savings is now being realized. 


 


 Automated Methane Waste Gas Burner Upgrade: The installation of an automated 


waste gas burner controlled by our SCADA system at the wastewater plant will now 


safely monitor our gas production and burn off excess methane gas that builds-up in our 


digesters. 


 


 Mercury Outreach Reduction Program:  Implemented an outreach program to reduce 


mercury discharges into the wastewater plant and receiving waterways.  This program 


was mandatory and enforced by the WDNR and USEPA.  We are now recognized as a 


Green Tier Utility for this effort. 


 


 Clearwater Reduction Program:  This program allowed us to eliminate over 40,000 


gallons per-day of clear water entering our sanitary sewer system and plant.  Sump pump 


inspections and televising sewers allowed us to eliminated unwanted water entering into 


our sanitary sewer collection system. 


 







 Wastewater Plant Air Compressor Modifications:  We installed regulators and a 


storage tank on our plant air compressor.  These modifications saved us about $400 a 


year in electrical usage. 


 


 Sanitary Sewer Emergency Response Program:  We realized record low sanitary 


sewer emergency call-outs in 2010.  We received 13 call-outs and only 2 sewer main 


obstructions were noted.  The other 11 issues were within the homeowners’ sewer lateral. 


 


 Rock River Watershed TMDL (Total Maximum Daily Load) Group Participation: 
We joined this group along with 13 other wastewater treatment facilities to influence new 


laws and regulations that could drastically affect our discharge limits.   


 


 InfoSend Bill Print & Mail System – WPPI Energy Pilot Participant:  Stoughton 


Utilities acted as the first member to outsource our bill printing and mailing to Infosend 


as part of a WPPI Energy pilot program.  Significant savings in materials and labor were 


immediately realized, along with a revised billing statement style that includes more 


information with a modern and customer friendly style.  Bill statement messages and 


inserts will also now be prepared and designed by WPPI Energy marketing staff to better 


educate customers on available energy conservation measures. 


 2010 Summer Savings Challenge:  Due to the average July temperature of 84 degrees 


(10 degrees higher than in 2009) the vast majority of registered participants did not meet 


their goal of a 15% reduction in consumption over the three month period of July 1 


through September 30.  Out of 685 registrants, 49 (7%) met the challenge while 636 


(93%) failed.  


 


 2010 Tax Roll Nominations:  47 accounts totaling $32,849 were submitted to City Hall 


for placement on the annual property tax bills.  A new computer program was created to 


automate the customer search and entry process, which should save staff approximately 


28 hours of preparation time. 


 Customer Deposits Program:  2010 marked our first full year of requesting customer 


deposits for customers with poor payment history.  218 deposits totaling $131,324 are 


currently on file.  Approximately 165 customers signed up for our Automatic Clearing 


House (ACH) program and 100 for our recurring credit card program in order to waive 


the deposit requirement. 


 WPPI Energy Involvement:  Stoughton Utilities staff participated in the preferred CIS 


vendor review and selection process and the Information Technology Advisory Group 


(ITAG) addressing topics including Northstar satisfaction/user experience, smart 


metering, and CIS selection.  Staff also participated in Northstar and Solomon user group 


meetings and Building Community Connections sessions.  There was also representation 


on the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee, the Personnel Committee, the Rates 


Design Advisory Group (RDSAG) and the Distribution Services Advisory Group 


(DSAG). 


 Information Technologies (I.T.) System Improvements:  Upgraded internet logging 


and filtering appliance, installed email archiving appliance and imported all archived 







messages from earlier vendors, replaced email spam filtering appliance, transitioned 


workstations to Windows 7, installed and setup the conference room audio visual 


equipment, installed the large format plotter for GIS and CAD maps and drawings, and 


installed and setup a portion of the security camera system. 


 Payment processing:  Staff processed 100,285 customer payments totaling $17,742,933. 


 


 RoundUp Program:  Three RoundUP Program donations totaling $2,200 were made.  


Recipients included the Stoughton Holiday Fund, Stoughton Wellness Coalition, and the 


Stoughton Lions and Lionesses Program. 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Administration Offices Project:  The project was closed out.   


 


 Grants Processing:  Administered American Recovery and Reinvestment (ARRA) grant 


and Wisconsin Clean Transportation grant. 


 


 Safe Drinking Water Loan:  Preparation of requests for disbursement and loan closing 


of this $575,000 loan at 2.668% interest for the East Water Tower Project. 


 


 Merchant Processing:  Partnered with US Bank for merchant processing (credit 


transactions) realizing a 25% savings in processing fees. 


 


 Cost of Service Analysis:  Performed an electric utility revenue requirements and cost of 


service analysis with WPPI Energy. 


 


 Investments:  Continued ongoing investment purchases and sales to maximize earnings. 


 


 USDA Loan Program:  Researched and requested eligibility determination for USDA 


Loan and Grant Program. 


  


 Completion of Overhead and Underground Electric Infrastructure Replacement 


Projects on River Road, Country Club Road, and in the Giehler Road area as well 


as throughout the distribution system.  Corrected problems associated with aging 


electric infrastructure. 


 


 Rental of the future West Electric Substation Property.  This property is the optimum 


site for a future electric substation and may serve the needs of other City Departments.  


The 11.2-acre agricultural portion of the property was leased in 2010.   


 


 Completed the North Electric Substation Loop Through Project with ATC.  This 


project was completed in 2010 and now offers additional switching service opportunities 


when necessary. 


 


 Well No. 5 Booster Pump Project.  Reduced energy costs associated with pumping 


water at the Well No. 5 and Reservoir Facility. 


 







 Completion of the East Water Main Project.  The project consisted of the installation 


of a transmission water main along Race Track Road and USH 51 East. 


 


 Applied for one stimulus projects grant.  Received two grants for two hybrid electric 


bucket trucks. 


 


 Completed the East Water Tower Project.  The East Water Tower Project was 


completed on schedule. 


 


 Completed the West Water Tower Project.  The project consisted the refurbishing and 


repainting the 1979 vintage tower. 


 


 Deferred the replacement of a number of vehicles with at least 10-years of useful 


life.  A review of operation and maintenance records substantiated the replacement 


deferrals.  


  


 Stoughton Utilities’ Commitment to Leadership By Example In The Use Of 


Renewable Energy.  A milestone of 870 blocks of green power is purchased by our 


customers monthly. 


 


 Conversion of the Electric, Wastewater and Water Infrastructure Maps to the ESRI 


System and the insertion of the electric continuing property records.  Staff and 


contracted support refined this effort. 


 


 Conversion of the Electric, Wastewater and Water infrastructure maps to the ESRI 


system and the insertion of the Electric Continuing Property Records into those 


infrastructure maps.  Staff refined this effort. 


 


 Ongoing maintenance to the Stoughton Utilities GIS and Data System.  Staff 


researched and inserted costs for electric infrastructure prior to the 1990’s and continued 


to perform ongoing maintenance and updates to the electric, wastewater and water system 


maps and data. 


 


 Filling of the Engineering Technician II Position with Jamie Sieren.  Mr. Sieren is 


receiving training and performing his responsibilities. 


 


 Negotiated a Three-Year contract with the International Brotherhood of Electrical 


Workers:  The eight Line Workers and the Engineering Technician II are covered by this 


agreement. 


 


 17 of Stoughton Utilities 25 employees now possess State of Wisconsin Licenses and 


Certifications to operate the electric, wastewater and water systems.  A designer of 


engineering systems joined Stoughton Utilities in 2010.   


 


 


 







 Stoughton Utilities achieved its fifth graduate in the Municipal Electric Utilities of 


Wisconsin Management Certification Program.  Two additional employees are 


scheduled to graduate from this program in 2012. 


   


 Stoughton Utilities hosted approximately 400 visitors to its National Public Power 


Week Open House Celebration.  Employees were involved with a number of safety 


presentations, new program explanations, and bucket truck rides. 


 


 Received the American Public Power Association RP3 (Reliable Public Power 


Provider) certification for the 2010-2011 service period.  This prestigious award has 


now been received from 2006 when the program started through 2011.  


 


 Stoughton Utilities was recognized As a Tree Line USA Utility by the National 


Arbor Day Foundation for the Tenth Consecutive Year.  All employees participated 


in achieving this honor. 


 


 Stoughton Utilities was recognized by the American Public Power Association, the 


Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin, and the American Water Works 


Association for safe practices.  All employees participated in achieving these honors. 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Received The WPPI Energy “Leading By Example” Award.  


WPPI Energy recognized ten utilities for practicing energy sustainability and 


stewardship. 


 


 Stoughton Utilities recognized by the U.S. Department of Energy National 


Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL):  The NREL list ranked Stoughton Utilities 


ninth in the nation for 5.2% customer participation in the green power program.  


 


 Stoughton Utilities Community Development Grant Program:  Recipients of the $500 


grants were the Stoughton Holiday Fund, the Stoughton Food Pantry, and the Stoughton 


Youth Center. 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Economic Development Grant Program.  The recipient of the 


$1,000 grant was the City of Stoughton. 


 


 In 2010, the City of Stoughton received a contribution of $523,855 from Stoughton 


Utilities via Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) and Tax Stabilization Dividends.  


Considering that a number of electric and water infrastructure projects occurred within 


the City this contribution will increase to over $582,471 in 2010.   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


 Utilities Operations Superintendent              
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Date: Wednesday, May 04, 2011 Stoughton Utilities Page: 1 7
Time: 09:28: AM 03699W.rpt


User: SGUNSOLUS Check Register Summary - Standard Company: 7430


Period: - As of: 5/4/2011


Check Amount Description


Nbr Type Date Paid Vendor ID / Name


Company: 7430


000433 4/30/2011 8,941.33 020 Wells Fargo Client Ana-Ach Client Analysis-April Ach/Client Analysis-April 


Ach/Client Analysis-April Ach


000434 4/30/2011 711,261.40 017 STATE OF WISCONSIN State Wi-April Ach/State Wi-April Ach/State Wi-April 


Ach/State Wi-April Ach/State Wi-April Ach/State Wi-


April Ach/State Wi-April Ach/State Wi-April Ach


000435 4/30/2011 209.99 547 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS Charter-April Ach/Charter-April Ach/Charter-April Ach


000436 4/30/2011 189,952.50 015 Associated Bank-Ach Assoc Bank-April Ach/Assoc Bank-April Ach/Assoc 


Bank-April Ach


000437 4/30/2011 1,614.00 014 A T C Company - Ach A T C Co - April Ach


000438 4/30/2011 1,247.66 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach Emp Ben Corp - April Ach/Emp Ben Corp - April 


Ach/Emp Ben Corp - April Ach/Emp Ben Corp - April 


Ach


000439 4/30/2011 79.35 004 Us Cellular - Ach Us Cellular - April Ach


000440 4/30/2011 1,957.85 003 Alliant Energy - Ach Alliant Energy - April Ach/Alliant Energy - April 


Ach/Alliant Energy - April Ach/Alliant Energy - April 


Ach/Alliant Energy - April Ach/Alliant Energy - April 


Ach


000441 4/30/2011 43,471.48 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach Federal Taxes-April Ach/Federal Taxes-April 


Ach/Federal Taxes-April Ach/Federal Taxes-April Ach


000442 4/30/2011 9,858.34 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach State Taxes-April Ach


000443 4/30/2011 1,591.52 001 Delta Dental - Ach Delta Dental - April Ach/Delta Dental - April Ach/Delta 


Dental - April Ach


020590 4/6/2011 116.76 096 JOSEPH BURKLAND J Burkland-Customer Refund


020591 4/6/2011 220.00 103 JOLENE CAMPBELL & JACK SOCEKA J Campbell-public Benefits


020592 4/6/2011 1.69 111 AUTO PARTS OF STOUGHTON Auto Parts-Trk 1 bulb


020593 4/6/2011 477.26 123 US CELLULAR Us Cell-Phones/Us Cell-Phones


020594 4/6/2011 634.05 166 INKWORKS, INC. Inkworks-Annual Water Report
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020595 4/6/2011 3,480.65 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY Border States-Inventory/Border States-50 kva transf


020596 4/6/2011 250.00 335 LUBE E-Z LLC Lube Ez-Oil


020597 4/6/2011 385.89 353 MAIN STREET APTS Main Street-Customer Refund


020598 4/6/2011 2,112.24 355 STUART C IRBY CO. Stuart Irby-70 arrestors/Stuart Irby-Inventory/Stuart 


Irby-freight


020599 4/6/2011 36.00 390 BADGER WATER LLC Badger Water-Lab Water


020600 4/6/2011 28.17 436 STOUGHTON LUMBER CO., INC. Stoton Lumber-Misc Hardware


020601 4/6/2011 15,290.51 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC. Strand-East Main Project/Strand-General Eng/Strand-


Scada upgrade/Strand-Scada upgrade/Strand-East 


Main Project


020602 4/6/2011 219.61 474 UNIFIED NEWSPAPER GROUP Unif Newspaper-Ads/Unif Newspaper-Ads/Unif 


Newspaper-Ads


020603 4/6/2011 368.54 482 AT & T AT & T-Field Analog Lines/AT & T-Field Analog 


Lines/AT & T-Field Analog Lines


020604 4/6/2011 586.69 503 KURT ZIEGLER K Ziegler-Customer Refund


020605 4/6/2011 42.36 542 ERFURTH BODY SHOP Erfurth-Customer Refund


020606 4/6/2011 7,489.99 590 AUXIANT Auxiant-Medical Claims/Auxiant-Medical 


Claims/Auxiant-Medical Claims/Auxiant-Medical 


Claims


020607 4/6/2011 41,929.64 591 AUXIANT Auxiant-Medical Claims/Auxiant-Medical 


Claims/Auxiant-Medical Claims


020608 4/6/2011 276.52 592 OZ PROPERTIES LLC OZ Prop-Customer Refund


020609 4/6/2011 85.27 594 EMILY WIETERS E Wieters-Customer Refund


020610 4/6/2011 42.82 595 ROBERT VORPAHL R Vorpahl-Customer Refund


020611 4/6/2011 1.44 636 DANE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE Dane Cnty-Copies


020612 4/6/2011 447.05 647 JOHN & REBECCA SCHELLER J Scheller-Customer Refund


020613 4/6/2011 941.40 674 NORTHERN SEWER EQUIP. CO. INC N Sewer-Telev. tractor parts


020614 4/6/2011 5,078.90 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC Dunkirk-March Dunkirk


020615 4/6/2011 127.92 842 WISCONSIN LIFT TRUCK CORP. Wi Lift Truck-Fork Lift Maint.


020616 4/6/2011 4,005.00 855 CRANE ENGINEERING SALES, INC. Crane-Balance project
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020617 4/6/2011 246.21 889 PITNEY BOWES INC Pitney Bowes-Postage Mach Supp/Pitney Bowes-


Postage Mach Supp/Pitney Bowes-Postage Mach 


Supp


020618 4/6/2011 76.60 986 CENTURY 21 AFFILIATED Century 21-Customer Refund


020619 4/6/2011 22.26 987 2240 2252 JACKSON ST 2240 2252-Customer Refund


020620 4/6/2011 183.00 989 JOAN SCHROEDER TRAPPANI & J Schroeder-Public Benefits


020621 4/6/2011 250.00 995 MEUW MEUW-Mgmt Class


020622 4/13/2011 8,207.89 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON City Stoton-April Rent/City Stoton-April Rent/City 


Stoton-April Rent/City Stoton-Legal Services/City 


Stoton-Life Insurance/City Stoton-Life Insurance/City 


Stoton-Life Insurance/City Stoton-April Rent/City 


Stoton-April Rent/City Stoton-April Rent+


020623 4/13/2011 138.46 133 WISCONSIN SCTF WI SCTF-Apr B Support


020624 4/13/2011 44.83 148 FASTENAL COMPANY Fastenal-Trk #12 Maint/Fastenal-Trk #16 Maint


020625 4/13/2011 164.00 172 DUECO, INC. Dueco-Trk #16 Maint


020626 4/13/2011 68.96 183 MIDWEST SAFETY SUPPLY LLC Midwest-Supplies/Midwest-Supplies/Midwest-


Supplies


020627 4/13/2011 26.85 279 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL ASSOC. Stoton Hosp-Drug Tests


020628 4/13/2011 268.56 312 STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT State Disb-Apr B Support


020629 4/13/2011 1,286.50 313 MUNICIPAL ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP Mun Env Group-Member Fees


020630 4/13/2011 170.00 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC. Elec Testing-Testing


020631 4/13/2011 8,587.56 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY Border States-2-3" meters/Border States-Usco Kit 


parts/Border States-Bare SD/Border States-OH 


Tool/Border States-Supplies/Border States-


Supplies/Border States-Inventory/Border States-


supplies/Border States-Supplies


020632 4/13/2011 975.65 400 RESCO Resco-Crossarms/Resco-Inventory/Resco-Supplies


020633 4/13/2011 546.57 452 HOWARD SIEBERT H Siebert-Deposit Refund


020634 4/13/2011 1,750.00 463 GREAT-WEST Great-West-Apr B Def Comp


020635 4/13/2011 871.37 464 RICHARD SPIKE R Spike-Deposit Refund


020636 4/13/2011 172.80 465 JERRY CHAT J Chat-Deposit Refund
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020637 4/13/2011 548.70 549 IBEW LOCAL 965 IBEW April Union Dues


020638 4/13/2011 3,736.88 589 IOWA ASSOC. OF MUNICIPAL UTILITIES Iowa Assoc-Spring Issue ECO


020639 4/13/2011 264.28 638 EL BURRITO LOCO El Burrito-Deposit Refund


020640 4/13/2011 150.00 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB N Shore Bank-Apr B Def Comp


020641 4/13/2011 377.50 752 WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOC. WI Prof-April Union Dues


020642 4/13/2011 500.55 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 Cintas-11 clothing/Cintas-11 clothing/Cintas-11 


clothing


020643 4/13/2011 12.01 864 AUTO-WARES WISCONSIN INC. Auto Wares-Trk 18 Oil/filter


020644 4/13/2011 145.00 966 CONNIE JANISH C Janish-Deposit Refund


020645 4/13/2011 85.41 978 MEE MATERIAL HANDLING LLC Mee Material-Car 11 maint


020646 4/20/2011 86.52 101 PROFESSIONAL PLACEMENT SERVICES, LLC Prof Placement-Collection Fees


020647 4/20/2011 153.38 148 FASTENAL COMPANY Fastenal-Sharp Cut Regrind/Fastenal-Rubber 


Strap/Fastenal-Bulb-Blades


020648 4/20/2011 943.48 166 INKWORKS, INC. Inkworks-Envelopes-Notices/Inkworks-Envelopes-


Notices/Inkworks-Envelopes-Notices


020649 4/20/2011 30.94 177 DUNHAM EXPRESS CORP. Dunham-Sample delivery charge


020650 4/20/2011 11,835.81 207 L.W. ALLEN, INC. LW Allen-Well 4 flow meter/LW Allen-DNR 


Replacement/LW allen-Repair Strainer


020651 4/20/2011 2,065.22 309 HAWKINS, INC. Hawkins-Chlorine & Fluoride


020652 4/20/2011 1,134.82 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY Border States-Conn stud flat/Border States-San-


Cp1SR/Border States-Zinc It/Border States-Conn 


stud flat


020653 4/20/2011 260.00 331 MONONA PLUMB. & FIRE PROT. INC Monona Plumb-Leak Repair


020654 4/20/2011 7,858.00 400 RESCO Resco-inventory items


020655 4/20/2011 346.42 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV. Rosenbaum-Main Repair Material/Rosenbaum-Main 


Repair material


020656 4/20/2011 3,058.69 451 FRONTIER FS COOPERATIVE Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-Fuel


020657 4/20/2011 610.02 482 AT & T AT & T-Office Pri Lines/AT & T-Office Pri Lines/AT & 


T-Office Pri Lines


020658 4/20/2011 25.00 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P. Vining Sparks-Safekeeping


020659 4/20/2011 157.65 585 KITTLESON ENTERPRISES Kittleson-Customer Refund
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020660 4/20/2011 2,300.00 587 OSMOSE UTILITIES SERVICES, INC. Osmose-Pole Landing software


020661 4/20/2011 11,629.22 591 AUXIANT Auxiant-Medical Claims/Auxiant-Medical 


Claims/Auxiant-Medical Claims/Auxiant-Medical 


Claims/Auxiant-Medical Claims/Auxiant-Medical 


Claims


020662 4/20/2011 5,509.07 603 SEERA Seera-Pub Ben


020663 4/20/2011 52.09 644 PAYMENT REMITTANCE CENTER Pymt Rem Ctr-Paint


020664 4/20/2011 3,546.32 644 PAYMENT REMITTANCE CENTER Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt 


Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem 


Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-


Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-


Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-


Staples/Pymt Rem Ctr-Staples+


020665 4/20/2011 434.38 644 PAYMENT REMITTANCE CENTER Pymt Rem Ctr-Edison/Pymt Rem Ctr-Ups/Pymt Rem 


Ctr-Krueger/Pymt Rem Ctr-Meals


020666 4/20/2011 226.15 717 HACH COMPANY Hach-Lab Supplies


020667 4/20/2011 836.55 727 GLS UTILITY LLC GLS-March Locates


020668 4/20/2011 8,215.00 737 BROWN WOOD PRESERVING CO INC Brown Wood-Inventory Item


020669 4/20/2011 59.53 108 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


Hardware/Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


Hardware/Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


Hardware/Aslesons-Misc Hardware


020670 4/20/2011 80.82 108 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


hardware/Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


hardware/Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


Hardware/Aslesons-Misc Hardware/Aslesons-Misc 


Hardware


020671 4/27/2011 0.00 133 WISCONSIN SCTF WI SCTF-Annual R & D/WI SCTF-April C Support/WI 


SCTF-April C Support/WI SCTF-Annual R & D


020672 4/27/2011 21,828.70 191 WI. RETIREMENT SYSTEM Wi Ret Sys-April Retirement/Wi Ret Sys-April 


Retirement/Wi Ret Sys-April Retirement


020673 4/27/2011 223.80 236 GRAINGER, INC Grainger-Hvac Filters


020674 4/27/2011 93.00 293 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY United Way-April contribution


020675 4/27/2011 268.56 312 STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT State Disb-April C Support


020676 4/27/2011 250.00 322 SUN DANCE CLEANING SVCS LLC Sun Dance-April Cleaning/Sun Dance-April 


Cleaning/Sun Dance-April Cleaning
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020677 4/27/2011 347.00 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC. Elec Testing-Tests of Equip


020678 4/27/2011 1,750.00 463 GREAT-WEST Great-West-April C Def Comp


020679 4/27/2011 316.96 473 CITIBANK (SOUTH DAKOTA) N.A. Citibank-April C Payment


020680 4/27/2011 500.30 521 WESCO RECEIVABLES CORP. Wesco-Guy Marker/Wesco-Grd Rod/Wesco-Pintype 


Insul


020681 4/27/2011 40.00 675 WI STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE Lab of Hygiene-Fluoride sample


020682 4/27/2011 150.00 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB N Shore Bank-April C Def Comp


020683 4/27/2011 14.04 906 ALLIANT ENERGY Alliant-Water Tower


020684 4/27/2011 0.00 133 WISCONSIN SCTF WI SCTF-to void ck 020671/WI SCTF-to void ck 


020671/WI SCTF-April C Support/WI SCTF-Annual R 


& D


020685 4/27/2011 138.46 133 WISCONSIN SCTF WI SCTF-April C Support


020686 4/27/2011 65.00 133 WISCONSIN SCTF WI SCTF-Annual R & D


100468 4/6/2011 2,038.66 259 ITRON, INC. Itron-Annual Amr System


100469 4/6/2011 532.11 571 USA BLUE BOOK Usa Blue BK-Chemical pump sup/Usa Blue BK-Saw 


blade/Usa Blue BK-freight


100470 4/6/2011 217.04 830 NCL OF WISCONSIN, INC. NCL-Lab supplies


100471 4/6/2011 33.31 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC. Gordon Flesch-Monthly Maint.


100472 4/26/2011 951,326.61 009 WPPI WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solor 


Credit/WPPI-Buy Back Solor Credit


100473 4/26/2011 27.00 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT Hanson Pest-Pest Control


100474 4/26/2011 50.84 544 JOHN LEIGH J Leigh-Meal Reimb


100475 4/26/2011 4,020.00 648 BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-Audit


100476 4/26/2011 2,476.00 974 NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, INC. Northern Lake-Water Samples/Northern Lake-


Mercury Tests/Northern Lake-Water Samples


Company Total 2,132,902.66

















Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through March 2011.


Staff is closely reviewing water utility sales, cash flow, and cash position to confirm


rates are adequate for the remainder of 2011.  


A wastewater cost of service analysis is in progress.  Staff does not anticipate an


increase in overall revenue required.  The results of the analysis may show the need for


adjustments in fixed and volume charges for proper cost recovery.  Staff  will


provide updates as the study progresses.


Submitted by: 


 Kim M. Jennings, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


March 2011-YTD







Stoughton Utilities
Income Statement


March 2011-YTD


Electric Water Wastewater Total


Operating Revenue:


Sales 3,669,215$         412,246$          472,668$             4,554,129$        


Other 55,807                11,659              30,496                 97,962               


Total Operating Revenue: 3,725,022$         423,905$          503,164$             4,652,091$        


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 2,850,929$         -$                  -$                    2,850,929$        


Expenses 386,525              157,459            164,246               708,229             


Taxes (PILOT) 77,499                69,999              -                      147,498             


Depreciation 225,000              87,501              165,000               477,501             


Total Operating Expense: 3,539,953$         314,959$          329,246$             4,184,157$        


Operating Income 185,069$            108,946$          173,918$             467,933$           


Non-Operating Income 24,865                13,045              8,724                   46,635               


Non-Operating Expense (73,363)               (25,170)             (31,002)               (129,535)            


Net Income 136,571$            96,821$            151,641$             385,033$           







Stoughton Utilities
Rate of Return


March 2011-YTD


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 185,069$            108,946$          


Average Utility Plant in Service 21,357,208         10,061,300       


Average Accumulated Depreciation (8,551,583)          (3,090,972)        


Average Materials and Supplies 133,325              29,607              


Average Regulatory Liability (299,164)             (462,082)           


Average Net Rate Base 12,639,787$       6,537,853$       


Actual Rate of Return 1.46% 1.67%


Authorized Rate of Return 6.50% 6.50%







Stoughton Utilities
Cash & Investments


Electric Mar-11


Unrestricted 4,214,408      


Bond Reserve 1,046,094      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 504,841         


Designated 1,169,486      


Total 6,934,829      


Water Mar-11


Unrestricted 202,819         


Bond Reserve 349,660         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 180,983         


Designated 1,198,861      


Total 1,932,322      


Wastewater Mar-11


Unrestricted 593,241         


DNR Replacement 1,279,484      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 616,542         


Designated 1,060,584      


Total 3,549,851      


4,214,408 , 61%1,046,094 , 15%


504,841 , 7% 1,169,486 , 17%


Electric Cash - March 2011


Unrestricted Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


202,819 , 11%


349,660 , 18%


180,983 , 9%


1,198,861 , 62%


Water Cash - March 2011


Unrestricted Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


593,241 , 17%


1,279,484 , 36%616,542 , 17%


1,060,584 , 30%


Wastewater Cash - March 2011


Unrestricted DNR Replacement Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Stoughton Utilities
Balance Sheet


March 2011-YTD


Assets Electric Water WW Total


Cash & Investments 6,934,829$         1,932,322$       3,549,851$         12,417,002$     


Customer A/R 213,178              31,575              (6,577)                 238,176            


Other A/R 123,645              4,414                64,328                192,387            


Other Current Assets 308,844              131,348            1,982                  442,174            


Plant in Service 21,812,681         10,620,284       21,834,697         54,267,662       


Accumulated Depreciation (9,027,718)          (3,279,138)        (7,411,797)          (19,718,654)      


Plant in Service - CIAC 2,549,172           6,019,856         -                      8,569,027         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (602,381)             (1,362,918)        -                      (1,965,299)        


Construction Work in Progress 71,636                79,442              98,487                249,565            


Total Assets 22,383,885$       14,177,183$     18,130,971$       54,692,039$     


Liabilities + Net Assets


A/P 99,699$              (1,521)$             (27)$                    98,151$            


Taxes Accrued 369,421              329,161            -                      698,583            


Interest Accrued 1,204                  42,690              53,749                97,644              


Other Current Liabilities 176,269              125,590            113,964              415,823            


Long-Term Debt 6,443,637           2,695,709         4,795,454           13,934,800       


Net Assets 15,293,655         10,985,553       13,167,831         39,447,038       


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 22,383,885$       14,177,183$     18,130,971$       54,692,039$     








Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2010 KwH Purchased 2010 2011 KwH Purchased 2011 Peak 2010 Peak 2011


January 11,313,409 12,490,465 12,142,244 12,980,864 22,951 22,711


February 10,605,387 10,853,221 11,071,774 11,329,334 21,538 22,957


March 11,051,543 10,924,733 11,549,390 11,753,295 19,872 21,040


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 32,970,339 34,268,419 34,763,408 36,063,493


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2010 Gallons Pumped 2010 2011 Gallons Pumped 2011 2010 2011


January 33,859,000 39,294,000 36,810,000 40,710,000 1,577,000 1,611,000


February 33,256,000 35,907,000 36,303,000 42,108,000 1,405,000 2,139,000


March 39,191,000 41,037,000 40,841,000 46,582,000 1,572,000 1,659,000


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 106,306,000 116,238,000 113,954,000 129,400,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2010 Gallons Gallons 2010 2011 Gallons Gallons 2011 2010 2011


January 26,338,000 39,334,000 25,817,000 32,619,000 0.84 0.90


February 25,768,000 33,586,000 23,941,000 30,597,000 0.74 1.79


March 29,115,000 41,700,000 26,266,000 38,223,000 1.39 3.05


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 81,221,000 114,620,000 76,024,000 101,439,000 2.97 5.74


2011 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater








 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


         


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Communications. 


 


 February 28, 2011 letter from the Arbor Day Foundation regarding the tenth year of 


recognition of Stoughton Utilities as a Tree Line USA Utility. 


 March 1, 2011 news release from the Arbor Day Foundation regarding the recognition of 


Stoughton Utilities as a Tree Line USA Utility. 


 March 22, 2011 news release regarding Stoughton Utilities receipt of the American 


Public Power Association (APPA) First Place 2010 Safety Award. 


 April 1, 2011 e-mail from Dan Kittelson regarding Stoughton Utilities’ receipt of the 


APPA 2010 Safety Award. 


 April 5, 2011 memorandum from Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin Safety and 


Health Manager Lisa Haen regarding Stoughton Utilities’ receipt of the APPA 2010 


Safety Award. 


 April 5, 2011 news release regarding Stoughton Utilities’ receipt of the Municipal 


Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 2010 Safety Award. 


 April 6, 2011 Workplace Facility Health and Safety Inspection Report. 


 April 13, 2011 e-mail from John Randall regarding the Stoughton Utilities website. 


 April 13, 2011 news release regarding the merger of ATC and Duke Energy. 


 April 20, 2011 news release regarding Stoughton Utilities Office and Information 


Systems Supervisor Brian Hoop’s re-election to the WPPI Energy Information 


Technology Advisory Group. 


 April 20, 2011 news release regarding Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz’s 


election to the WPPI Energy Distribution Services Advisory Group. 


 April 25, 2011 news release and Proclamation for Drinking Water Week.  


 April 2011 MEUW Live Lines article regarding the 2011 APPA Legislative Rally. 


 April/May 2011 Wisconsin Clean Transportation Program “Fleet Partner News” 


newsletter article regarding Stoughton Utilities. 


 May 5, 2011 news release regarding Stoughton Utilities 120 years of Public Power 


Service. 


 May 2011 MEUW Live Lines article regarding Stoughton Utilities receipt of the 2010 


APPA Safety Award. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 
























































































 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar. 


 


The following calendar is provided for information and discussion. 


 


 


May 16, 2011 Regular Meeting - First Regular Meeting after the Common 


Council Reorganization Meeting - Elect Committee Chair 


and Vice Chair – Elect Liaison and Alternate Liaison - 


Establish Meeting Time and Monthly Meeting Date - 


Stoughton Utilities 2010 Annual Audit and Management 


Letter presentation discussion, approval and 


recommendation to the Common Council - Stoughton 


Utilities Tax Stabilization Dividends discussion, approval, 


and recommendation to the Common Council - Customer 


Collections Status Report - Review Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission Annual Electric and Water Reports - 


Discuss Stoughton Utilities 2010 Accomplishments - Tour 


Stoughton Utilities Building  


 


May 24, 2011 Common Council - Stoughton Utilities 2010 Audit and 


Management Letter Presentation and Approval - Accept 


Stoughton Utilities Tax Stabilization Dividends 


Recommendation 


 


June 8-10, 2011 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) Annual 


Conference in Appleton 


 


June 19-22, 2011 American Public Power Association (APPA) Annual 


Conference 


 


June 20, 2011 Regular Meeting - Annual Meeting at the wastewater 


treatment facility - Approve and recommend the 







Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


(CMAR) and Resolution to the Common Council - 


Approve and recommend the write-offs to the Common 


Council -  Discuss Stoughton Utilities CIP - Stoughton 


Utilities RoundUp Donation Annual Studies Discussion  


 


June 24, 2011 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) Sixth 


Annual Lineman’s Rodeo in Oconomowoc 


 


June 28, 2011 Common Council - Approve the recommended Compliance 


Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) and adopt the 


corresponding Resolution - Approve write-offs 


 


July 18, 2011 Regular Meeting - Annual Stoughton Utilities Goals 


Discussion and Approval - Annual Stoughton Utilities 


Studies Discussion 


 


August 15, 2011 Regular Meeting - Tour East Electric Substation 


 


September 14-16, 2011 American Water Works Association Annual Conference in 


Milwaukee 


 


September 15-16, 2011 WPPI Energy (WPPI) Annual Conference in Madison 


 


September 18-24, 2011 Stoughton Utilities Public Power Week 


 


September 21, 2011 Stoughton Utilities Public Power Week Open House 


 


September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting - Approve the Stoughton Utilities 2011 


Budget and Ten-Year (2011-2020) Capital Projects 


Program and recommend them to the Stoughton Common 


Council - Approve the Stoughton Utilities Non-


Represented employees wage adjustments and recommend 


them to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and the 


Stoughton Common Council - Customer Collections Status 


Report 


 


October 11, 2011 WPPI Energy Orientation Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


October 6, 2011 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) District 


Dinner Meeting   


 


October 24, 2011 Special Meeting - Conduct hearings for the 2010 Tax Roll 


Nomination 


 


October 24, 2011 Regular Meeting  


 


October 26-28, 2011 Wisconsin Wastewater Operators Association (WWOA) 


Annual Conference in Wisconsin Dells 


 







November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting - Tour Well No. 7 - WPPI Energy 


Presentation  


 


December 15, 2011  Stoughton Utilities Holiday Open House 


 


December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting - Stoughton Utilities RoundUp Donation 


 


January 17, 2012 Regular Meeting 


 


February 20, 2012   Regular Meeting 


     


March 11-14, 2012 American Public Power Association Legislative Rally in 


Washington, D.C. 


 


March 19, 2012 Regular Meeting - Agricultural Land Rental 


recommendation to the Common Council - Declaration(s) 


of Official Intent - Customer Collections Status Report - 


Review Drinking Water Consumer Confidence Report 


(CCR) 


   


March 27, 2012 Common Council Meeting - Approve Agricultural Land 


Rental  


 


April 16, 2012 Regular Meeting  


  


May 6-12, 2012 Drinking Water Week 


 


May 8, 2012 WPPI Energy Orientation Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


May 14, 2012 Regular Meeting 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


      Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








 


 


Stoughton Utilities 
Activities Reports 


 


April 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATION – Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
 
Seasonal activities including sanitary sewer collection system televising and cleaning, 
and water valve rehabilitation continued.  Ultraviolet light disinfection was initiated at the 
Wastewater Treatment Facility.  The CTH N South Electric Distribution System 
Reconstruction Project is underway.  The E. Main Street Project was initiated.  Office 
staff partnered with field crews to initiate the first electric system disconnection effort.  
Office staff continues to work with customers fulfilling their financial obligations.  
 
The Utilities Director represented Stoughton Utilities at the following meetings:  
Emergency Preparedness Team, Slips, Trips and Fall Prevention Training, a potential 
developer proposal meeting, East Main Street Project Detour meeting, GFOA 
Budgeting, Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project Design, tour of a potential 
development, Redevelopment Authority, Community Affairs and Council Policy, B&G 
Foods, Drinking Water Week Proclamation Ceremony, Leadership Team, Utilities 
Committee, Finance Committee, Common Council, WPPI Energy Executive Committee, 
and WPPI Energy Personnel Committee.             
 
 
ACCOUNTING – Utilities Accounting and Administrative Manager Kim M. 
Jennings, CPA 
 
Accomplishments: 


 MEUW management training course. 


 Participated in Stoughton High School Reality Check for students. 


 A/P, payroll and treasury management approvals. 


 Investment sales/purchases and income tracking.   


 Monthly account reconciliation, reporting and billing statistics for March 2011. 
 
In Progress: 


 Wastewater rate review. 


 2012 budget. 


 Budgeting for outcomes process. 


 Responding to customers regarding USDA Loan Program. 


 Purchase card program – Wells Fargo. 


 Monthly account reconciliation and reporting for April 2011. 







CUSTOMER SERVICES AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES DIVISION – Utilities 
Office and Information Systems Supervisor Brian R. Hoops 
 
Activities & Accomplishments: 


 Staff processed 7,857 payments totaling $1,505,845, including 4,484 checks, 
381 credit card payments, 560 online E-Pay payments, 1,880 automated bank 
withdrawals, and $21,905 in cash.   


 Staff mailed 275 notices of pending disconnection for customers with delinquent 
utility accounts.  254 of these were for past-due accounts (balances or deposits) 
$200 or greater, and 21 were for current customers with delinquent final accounts 
from another address.  Future months will have a reduced dollar threshold. 


 Staff disconnected 33 accounts for non-payment.  12 of these accounts remain 
disconnected, the majority of which are believed to be vacant.  A total of 60 
addresses remain disconnected, either due to vacancy or nonpayment. 


 Staff processed utility billing and collections, accounts payable, payroll, and daily 
cash deposits throughout the month.  April was a busy month for collections due 
to the end of the cold weather disconnection moratorium.  Numerous customers 
had accumulated large balances over the winter months and many deferred 
payment arrangements were created.  Staff was complimented on this being one 
of the smoothest disconnection cycles in recent history.  Our collection activities 
throughout the winter, including customer deposits and water disconnections, 
played a large role in keeping numbers and balances low. 


 Two customer inquiries/complaints were lodged with the Wisconsin Public 
Service Commission during the month of April.  One complaint regarding an 
outstanding balance is ongoing as we attempt to make contact with the 
customer’s former landlord.  The second complaint was closed and considered 
unjustified since the customer was simply refusing to pay anything.  This 
customer remains disconnected despite continuing to reside at that address. 


 Contracts have been signed with Teleworks to provide inbound real-time phone 
integration with the Northstar billing system.  Customers would have 24/7 access 
to their account information over the phone, as well as have the option to make 
phone payments with no employee interaction.  Outbound calling will be added at 
a future date. 


 Brian Hoops has been continuing to work with AT&T to correct their billing of 
$0.75/minute for local-toll calls and to receive refunds for the past months of 
erroneous billings, estimated to be about $150/month. 


 Brian Hoops met with Rodney Scheel to discuss our use of networked security 
cameras in our facilities, as well as our configurations and recording schedules.  
City Hall is looking to incorporate additional security measures into various City 
buildings. 


 


 







 Brian Hoops attended a Utility Planning and Risk Management training session 
as part of the MEUW Management Certification Program.  This was his last 
session in the program, and his certificate was presented during the session.   
Brian Hoops also attended an Advanced Metering Infrastructure Workshop at 
WPPI Energy which provided information on smart metering, including tips, 
history, and costs. 


 Brian Hoops, Erin Bothum, and Enecia Sabroff met to finalize procedures for the 
end of the moratorium disconnections.  Several minor changes were made. 
However for the most part, the process remained the same as in the past. 


 Brian Hoops and Erin Bothum both continued to participate in the Budgeting for 
Outcomes process.  Numerous group meetings were attended, as well as 
presentations to both the City Leadership Team and the Stoughton City Council. 


 Erin Bothum completed the monthly utility billing as well as issued 149 final billing 
statements for customers who have moved from their prior addresses. 


 Enecia Sabroff continues to follow up with deferred payment arrangements 
created by customers for outstanding deposits and/or balances.  As agreements 
are broken, notices of disconnection are mailed, and we attempt to work with 
customers to create a new agreement or obtain payment.   


 Enecia Sabroff continued to follow-up on deposit requests from delinquent 
customers.  In total, we have collected deposits from 218 customers (about 3%) 
and have $131,324 on file. 


 


ELECTRIC DIVISION AND PLANNING DIVISION – Utilities Operations 
Superintendent Sean O Grady 
 
East Main Street Project:  R.T. Fox Contractors activated the detour route and project  
construction started on Monday, April 25, 2011.  The initial detour created some 
learning curves for both pedestrians and motorists. 
   
Jefferson Street Storm Water Project:  Staff has prepared and estimate of customer 
contribution for the City to support/relocate existing overhead electrical facilities required 
for upgrading the existing storm water collection system along a portion of West 
Jefferson Street. 
 
Movin Out Project:  We continue to work closely with the owner and developers on this 
project as it moves forward.  All underground water and sanitary sewer mains and 
laterals have been installed and tested.  We are tentatively scheduled to start installing 
underground electrical facilities on Monday, May 9, 2011. 
 
Business Park North Expansion:  We have started preparing preliminary cost 
estimates for electrical distribution service and street lighting.  We should have an 
estimate of costs available in early May for the City. 
 
 







Wisconsin Clean Cities-Southeast Area Inc (WCCSA):  Staff participated in a 
mandatory marketing meeting with cities who have deployed green vehicles.  I am 
working with WCCSA staff with the development of a training program for owners of 
hybrid units.  Users will receive training on general maintenance requirements as well 
as an overview of how the hybrid units work and what to do with and how to report 
errors on the system.  We hope to have this course available in July of this year.  
Dueco, the supplier of hybrid bucket trucks and digger-derricks has agreed to host and 
provide the training to users. 
 
Wastewater and Water Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
Systems: This project was awarded and came in within budget.  Contracts have been 
circulated and the project is on schedule to be completed this year. 
   
Substation Fusing Project:  Underground work for this project was completed.  
Equipment has been delivered and installation is scheduled to begin in May.  
  
2011 Annual Line Clearance Contract:  Asplundh Tree Experts mobilized and started 
our 2011 line clearance work.  The start to the program was a little slower than normal 
due to weather and unplanned equipment failures.  Let’s hope May is a little dryer and 
warmer for all. 
 
County Highway N Reconstruction Project:  Crews have started on the south end of 
this project and will be working north.  The first phase is between Leslie Road and 
Hogie Road 
.   
Capital Improvement Plans:  Staff is working on updating our plans.  Our goal is to 
have the plans completed and available for Utility Committee Review in June. 
   
Metering Division:  With the winter moratorium lifted, we started our disconnection 
process for customers unwilling to pay for utility services.  We were pleasantly surprised 
this year as the number of 24-hour tags issued and the actual number of customers 
disconnected was extremely low.  We did have two customers who self reconnected 
and weare working with the local authorities on theft charges. 
Fleet Replacements:  We are currently advertising for equipment replacements and 
hope to award purchases in May. 
   
Library Truck Show:  Staff participated in the annual show at Mandt Park for kids and 
adults.  Weather was cooperative but the attendance seemed to be lower than in the 
past. 
 
Training:  Staff attended and participated in the following training for the month: 
Slips/Trips/Falls and Advanced Metering Infrastructure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Monthly Statistics: 
 


6 unscheduled customer power outages affecting 85 customers for a total of 
720 minutes. 
 


 No new customers 
 
 1 electrical service upgrade 
 
 1 electrical service repair 
 
 33 customers disconnected for non-payment 
 
 33 work orders issued and completed 
 
 
WASTEWATER DIVISION – Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian G. 
Erickson 
 
Sanitary Sewer Collection System:  Staff continues to televise the collection system 
throughout the City.  2011 Sanitary sewer projects continue to move forward.   
 
Ultraviolet Disinfection system was started up for the 2011 season.  The Wastewater 
plant is required to disinfect the effluent wastewater from April 15 to October 15th. 
 
Generator Maintenance: We worked with a new firm this year on our generator 
maintenance program.  The contractor performed routine maintenance and load bank 
testing on all six utilities generators. 
 
Sump Pump Inspections:  We are performing sump pump inspections in areas where 
we will be installing new liners in the sanitary sewer system and where new storm 
sewers are being installed. 
 
Influent Screw pump painting project:  We are receiving bids to sandblast and paint two 
influent screw pumps. 
 
Spring Sludge hauling:  Sludge analysis results were sent off to our sludge hauling 
contractor for this year’s spring hauling program.  We estimate about 550,000 gallons of 
sludge to be hauled out to farmer’s fields for fertilizer. 
 
Training for the month:  Slip / falls and Ladder safety training took place for the month of 
April 
 
Digester Gas: We are looking into ways we can utilize our gas from our digesters. 
Currently we use the gas to heat our sludge to 95 degrees F.  In the summer months, 
we flare the gas off. 
 
 







The precipitation for the month was 3.52 inches.  Year to date precipitation totals 9.26 
inches.  
 
The wastewater treatment facility processed an average flow of 1.190 million gallons 
per day with a monthly total of 36 million gallons.   
 
 
WATER DIVISION – Utilities Water System Supervisor Roger M. Thorson 
 
Construction started on the first of two phases of the  East Main St water main 
replacement / reinforcement project. This project is scheduled to be completed 
sometime in August. 
 
Turned on water to all City Parks and shelters. 
 
 We have been  working on system maintenance along with our Spring flushing of water 
mains. We  continue flushing certain  areas of the city throughout the summer months. 
 
If you did not know the first week in May is recognized as Drinking Water Week. The 
Stoughton Water Utility was founded in 1886.  
 
Total water pumped for the month of April was  41,124,000  gallons 
 


 
ENERGY SERVICES SECTION OF THE PLANNING DIVISION – Stoughton 
Utilities/WPPI Energy Energy Services Representative Alicia VandenOever 
 
Customer Account Activities 
 
City of Stoughton: 


 Sean Grady and I met with Rodney Scheel to discuss progress on the City’s 
energy efficiency initiatives. Plans to pursue lighting and HVAC projects at many 
City buildings are being in the works, and Focus on Energy has preapproved the 
Library for incentive funding for DDC controls. 


 Left a message for Bill Brehm hoping to talk about planned improvements to 
existing media equipment and associated energy efficiency opportunities. 


 Contacted the Streets Department in an attempt to coordinate SU’s appliance 
recycling program with their annual pick-up. The Streets Department already 
offers this as a free service for residents. 


Universal AET: Coordinated and attended a meeting with administration and grounds 
staff at Universal’s office to discuss a potential lighting upgrade. The project 
would be eligible for incentive funding from Focus on Energy, and Universal may 
also be interested in participating in the Shared Savings Program.  


Wastewater Treatment Plant:  Accompanied Strand Associates on an energy 
assessment of the HVAC system at the wastewater plant and simultaneously 
conducted a lighting audit. 







Stoughton Quality Inn:  Met with the new owner of the Quality Inn to discuss energy 
efficiency improvement opportunities. 


Stoughton School District:  Provided energy usage history information to Focus on 
Energy for analysis of a computer monitor replacement project at the schools. 


 
Energy Services Administration 
 
Public Power Week/Anniversary Event: Purchased drawing contest and raffle prizes 


for the event from the local Radio Shack. Received drawings from local 4th and 
5th graders for the Public Power Week drawing contest. 


Focus on Energy Training:  Promoted Focus’s annual Buildings and Grounds meeting 
to school district. 


K-12 Energy Education Program (KEEP):  Promoted KEEP course to be held in June 
at WPPI Energy’s office in Sun Prairie to area teachers. 


Home Energy Suite: Postcards were mailed to customers by WPPI Energy promoting 
the online Home Energy Suite tool. 


Personal Training:  Attended Certified Energy Manager (CEM) training in Milwaukee. 
 
Dates at Stoughton Utilities in April: 7, 21, 28 
 
 
SAFETY COMPLIANCE SECTION OF THE PLANNING DIVISION – Stoughton 
Utilities/Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin Southeastern Regional Safety 
Coordinator Christopher Belz 
 
Accomplishments 
  


Training 
 Completed Slips/Trips/Fall Training Preparations 


 
Audits/Inspections  


 Inspected Water Crew 
 Completed a Forklift compliance inspection 
 Inspected a potential work zone with the Electric Lead Lineman and 


Crew  


    Compliance/Risk Management  


 Hearing Audiogram Review  
 Revised the Hearing Conservation Written Program 
 Filed Continuing Education Credits 
 Revised Lock Out/Tag Out Written Program 
 Revised the Forklift Written Program 
 Completed Emergency Action Plan Written Program Update 
 Completed Incident Report 
 Updated incident logs and filed incident reports 
 Completed Inspection Report of Water Crew inspection 


 







Goals & Objectives 
 
 Training 


 Complete Control of Hazardous Energy (LO/TO) training 
 Audits/Inspections  


 Inspect Crews for proper Work Zone set ups and Personal Protective 
Equipment   


 Perform facility inspections in all Stoughton Utilities facilities 


     Compliance/Risk Management  


 Finish Reviewing General Safety Rules 
 


Scheduled dates MEUW SCRSC Safety Coordinator, Chris Belz, was at Stoughton 
Utilities: April 5, 11, 18 and 25  
 
 
Please visit us on our website at www.stoughtonutilities.com to view current events, 
follow project schedules, view meeting notices and minutes, review our energy 
conservation programs, pay your utilities bill via the internet, or to learn more 
about your Stoughton Utilities Electric, Wastewater and Water services.  
 



http://www.stoughtonutilities.com/






Embedded letter goes here


kWh: 335,514.02


kW: 180.07


Therms: 29,210.00


Incentives: 49,397.88$                    


Summary of Results - All Sectors


Semi-Annual Progress Report for Stoughton Utilities 
 


 
July 1, 2010 – December 31, 2010 
 
The tabs below will provide a summary of how many of your residential and business customers have 
participated over the past six months, the types of projects completed or products purchased, estimated 
energy savings, and incentives paid.  (Business projects will include the business name; residential 
projects will not include customer names for confidentiality purposes per our contract with SEERA.)  The 
data included in these reports has not yet been verified or adjusted by the Focus on Energy evaluation 
contractor and is subject to change. Please note that lighting totals include a combination of documented 
mail-in customer coupons, but also an estimate of additional lighting participation for in-store buy-downs 
where no coupon or customer data is collected.   
 
It’s important to note that the data in the following worksheets includes only incentives paid directly to 
customers and does not include the additional services that are provided through your partnership with 
Focus on Energy. Examples of these services include call center support, application form printing and 
processing, customer/trade ally training and workshops, literature and marketing support, in-field 
implementation work by energy advisors, etc. Focus on Energy’s expenses for July 1, 2010 – December 
31, 2010 totaled $41,954,815. Of this amount, 68% was paid as direct customer incentives.   
 
Below is a brief summary of your contributions and incentives paid during the second half of the year 
compared to the overall figures for Focus on Energy.  
 
July – December 2010 
Total incentives (gas & electric) paid by Focus on Energy:  $28,488,070  
Portion of incentives paid to Stoughton Utilities customers:  .17% 
 
 
If you have questions about this report please contact Beth Asen, Utility Data Reporting Analyst, at 
betha@weccusa.org or (608) 249-1271, ext. 326. 
 
 


 







Embedded letter goes here


kWh: 131,318.94


kW: 25.57


Therms: 6,131.50


Incentives: 23,716.35$                    


Summary of Results - All Sectors


Quarterly Progress Report for Stoughton Utilities 
 


 
January 1, 2011 – March 31, 2011 
 
The tabs below will provide a summary of how many of your residential and business customers have 
participated over the past quarter, the types of projects completed or products purchased, estimated 
energy savings, and incentives paid.  (Business projects will include the business name; residential 
projects will not include customer names for confidentiality purposes per our contract with SEERA.)  The 
data included in these reports has not yet been verified or adjusted by the Focus on Energy evaluation 
contractor and is subject to change. Please note that lighting totals include a combination of documented 
mail-in customer coupons, but also an estimate of additional lighting participation for in-store buy-downs 
where no coupon or customer data is collected.   
 
It’s important to note that the data in the following worksheets includes only incentives paid directly to 
customers and does not include the additional services that are provided through your partnership with 
Focus on Energy. Examples of these services include call center support, application form printing and 
processing, customer/trade ally training and workshops, literature and marketing support, in-field 
implementation work by energy advisors, etc.  
 
Given the short period of time covered by these reports, summary information containing incentive and 
contribution comparisons will be included on every other quarterly report.  
 
If you have questions about this report please contact Beth Asen, Utility Data Reporting Analyst, at 
betha@weccusa.org or (608) 249-1271, ext. 326. 
 
 


 







Summary of Results - All Sectors







Summary of Results - All Sectors








 


600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  May 10, 2011 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Recommended Actions At The May 16, 2011 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting. 


 


AGENDA: 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda. 


 


a) Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report.  (Review, discuss and accept the Stoughton 


Utilities Payments Due List Report via the consent agenda approval.) 


 


b) Draft Minutes of the April 18, 2011 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting. 


(Approve the Draft Minutes of the April 18, 2011 Regular Stoughton Utilities 


Committee Meeting via the consent agenda approval.) 


 


c) Stoughton Utilities March 2011 Financial Summary.  (Discuss and accept the Stoughton 


Utilities March 2011 Financial Summary via the consent agenda approval.) 


 


d) Stoughton Utilities March 2011 Statistical Information.  (Discuss and accept the March 


2011 Stoughton Utilities Statistical Information via the consent agenda approval.) 


 


e) Stoughton Utilities Communications.  (Discuss and accept the Stoughton Utilities 


Communications via the consent agenda approval.) 


 


f) Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar.  (Discuss and accept the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee Annual Calendar via the consent agenda approval.) 


 


g) Stoughton Utilities April 2011 Activities Report.  (Discuss and accept the Stoughton 


Utilities April 2011 Stoughton Utilities Activities Report via the consent agenda 


approval.) 


 


 







BUSINESS: 


   


1. Stoughton Utilities Committee Chairperson And Vice-Chairperson.  (Action.)  (Elect 


Stoughton Utilities Committee Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.) 


 


2. Stoughton Utilities Committee Liaison And Alternate Liaison To The Stoughton 


Common Council.  (Action.)  (Select Stoughton Utilities Committee Liaison and 


Alternate Liaison to the Stoughton Common Council.) 


 


3. Stoughton Utilities Committee Monthly Meeting Date And Time.  (Action.)  (Select 


Stoughton Utilities Committee Monthly Date and Time.) 


 


4. Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Recommendation(s) To The Stoughton Common 


Council.  (Discussion.)  (Review and discuss the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council.) 


 


5. Stoughton Utilities Audit Report And Management Letter.  (Action.)  (Review, 


discuss, approve and recommend the approval of the Stoughton Utilities Audit 


Report and Management Letter to the Stoughton Common Council on May 24, 


2011.) 


 


6. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric And Water Tax Stabilization Dividends.  


(Action.)  (Review, discus, approve, and recommend the acceptance of the 


proposed Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends to the Stoughton 


Common Council on May 24, 2011.) 


 


7.  Stoughton Utilities Electric And Water Annual Reports To The Public Service 


Commission Of Wisconsin.  (Discussion.)  (Review and discuss the Stoughton 


Utilities Annual Reports to the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin.) 


 


8. Stoughton Utilities Customer Collections Status Report.  (Discussion.)  (Review and 


discuss the Stoughton Utilities Collection Status Report.) 


 


9. Stoughton Utilities 2010 Accomplishments.  (Discussion.)  (Review and discuss the 


Stoughton Utilities 2010 accomplishments.) 


 


10. Stoughton Utilities Committee Agenda Items Requiring Post-Committee Action.  


(Discussion.) 


 


11. Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Meeting Agenda Item(s).  (Discussion.) 


(Review and discuss future Stoughton Utilities Committee agenda items.) 


 


12. Stoughton Utilities Committee Tour Of The Utilities Administration Complex.  


(Discussion.)  (Participate in the tour.)   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 





